1 THE WITHNEES: Yes, I'm sorry.

2 | BY MS5. GRAHAM:

3 o] Ckay., And isan't it true, sir that 363.%, that

4 | diagnosis epecifically indicates that the use of alcohol,

5 | despite -- that he uses alcohol, despite adverse consequences
& | and distortions in thinking most notably denial is cne of

7| those; is that correct?

g A Yes.

2] 4] Ckay. You were just asked if you knew if Brian

10 | 0'Keefe had suffered any blackouts or is that what Ms. Palm
11 | asked you?

12 A Yes,

13 Q Ckay. And based on your recollection, again, if --
14 | if Mr. O‘Keefe would have told you he had never suffersd from
15 | blackouts, then that's where you would have gotten that

16 | information; is that correct?

17 A Yes.

18 Q Do you recall if he ever kald you he suffered from
i% | blackouta?
20 .} I believe he did.

21 4] Ckay. And but you would agres with me, sir, that if
22 | ke told the theraspist at the MINEES that he denied ever having
23 | blackouts, that that would have come Erom Brian as well?
24 A I was a therapist from the MINES facility.

25 Q I'm sorry?
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I was a therapist from the MINES facility,.

Ckay. 5o the records from MINES, you generatsd

Yes.

Gkay. If -- if I showed you those records, and I --

I showed you where you indicated that Brian self-reported he

never guffered from blackouts, would that be helpful to you?

A

Yesg,

MZ. GRAHAM:

May 1 approach the witness?

THE COUORT: Yes.

Can 1 BEes iC?

M2, EFALM:

M5, GRAHAM: ©Oh, suUre,

{Pause in the procesdings).

MS. GRAHAM:

May T approach, Judge?

THE COURT: Yems,

BY M&E. GRAHAM:

17 Q I'm handing you a document, sir. What is that

document? What does it appear ta be?

1% A Looke like a release form.

20 2 So that a copy of -- if you read it, sir, does it --

doep it indicate that this is a copy from the custodian of

records of MINES & Asscciates (phomebic).

A

Yas.

] And that would include his medical recordsz?

A

Ho.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT

02551




10

1l

12

13

i4

15

1€

17

18

13

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q Or hia records from MINES.

p.§ Right.
Q Ckay.
A Yeah.

o And so if it would have come from the custodian of
records, you're aware, sir, that a custodian of records
basically attests to the btruth and the accuracy of what's
contained therein; is that right?

A Yea.

9 Okay.

MS. PALM; Your Honoer, I den't think he recognizes
this document, and I daon't think she's properly refreshing his
recollection. I think if they asked him does be recognize ic.

THE COURT: Do you recognize the document, siz?

THE WITHESS: Mo, sir. It's the first cime I've seen
it.

THE COURT: Did you generate that document?

THE WITHESS: I have no idea because again, it -- it
-- ie'tg -- it's a ralease form Lo corporate office, and --

BY MS. GRAHAM:

] If you could flip through thet and mee 1f that jusc
coptbaing treatment notes pertaining to Brian DtKeefa,

M5. PAEM: You know, your Honor, I'm happy if she
just wants to move the entire document in instead of doing it

thig way. I don't think the witness compiled the documents in
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1| there. He's not the custodian of records.
2 THE COURT: Ms. Graham, are you seeking to admit the
3 | active records into esvidence?
9 MS. GRAHAM: Court's indulgence. Judge, if I may
5| just save some time and rurn to one page snd ask Mr. Palsgano if
€ | this -- this particular page in the records refreshes his
7 | recollection.
B| BY M5. GRBHAM-
8 4] If you could just start reading that to yourself
1g | right here.
11 A Okay.
1z 4] Wers those records from MINES?
13 A Mo, thiz leg from the detox Facility, I believe, which
14 | is Las Yegas Recovery Center.
15 o Okay. And what 1s MINES, then?
1g A MINEE is the manage care company for the Labors Union
17 | 872, which Mr. O'Keefe belonged to.
] 4] Ckay., I'm a little bit confused bhecause you said you
13 | ware MINES.
20 . I'm a contractor with MINES.
21 Q Okay. But you would have had access ta these
22 | records.
23 A Hot those, unlesgs the facility gave me & copy of the
24 | admit report and the discharge summary.
25 4] Is that typically something that they would do?
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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A It depends upon whether or not they -- they feel ik's
necessary for me to have., Usually it -- it's -- they send me a
digcharge summary, but I don't see the discharge summary in
that dogument.

4] Okay, =0 essentially you treat somabody without
locking at the -- the records?

A Who -- who treats the person?

o] Didn't you testify that you treated Mr. O'Keefe?

A Yes,

Q S0 you wouldn't feel it was necessary to have records

from MINES for your treatment of Mr. --

A I have --

Q -- O'Keefea?

A 1 do the records from MINES. You're locking at the
== tha detox facility. I -- I don't have access to their
records.

] Okay. And if -- if somebody were to enter detox,

would they do the same evaluation? You're familiar with the --

a Yes,
Q -- the svaluationz?
A Right. But -- but their evaluation's more excensive

because they're going to be using medications whers I don't.
g Okay. .Just then a quick guestion, sir. During their
evaluations when they interview somebody that's there for

Lreatment, who provides that Information to those <- those
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persons?
A The -- the patient.
Q The patient?
A Um-h'm.
g So that would he Brian Q'Keefa?
A Right .

Q Ckay, 5o if Briaa O'Keefs had told the people at

iopatient

M5. PALM: Your Honor, I'm going to object to this
because this witnese doesn't have any knowledge of what Brian
O'Keefe told the people at treatment. And she's trying to
testify about the contents of records that she's not willing to
moveE in.

THE COURT: Ms, Graham.

MS. GRAHAM: Well, we can admit them.

THE COURT: Are you -- both sides agree to have those
documents admitted?

M5. GRAHAM: State does.

M5. PALM: I have no problem with admitbting the
documents. I -- I have a problem with har continuing to
guestion him --

THE COURT: Okay.

MS. PAIM: -- cn the document.

THE COURT: All right, well, let's have them marked

and they'll be admitted in.
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M3. GRAHAM: Just for the reccord, Judge, thiz iz a
marked copy. I have --

M3. BALM: Well --

MS. GRAHAM: -- (indiscernible}.

THE COURT: Do we have a clean copy?

MS. PALM: T have a clean gopy that I wag going to
move in anywsay. And it would be {indiscernible). Defenge
Exhibit five Cg,

THE COURT: A&ll right. It will be admitted.

(Exhibic COCCC admitted).

MS. GRAHAM: No cbjection.

BY M5. GRARHIM:
4] ¥ou heard of the term tolerance, sirp
A Yes,

o] Arid -- and basically, is it Erue that -- that

tolerance is somebody that drinke a period of alcohol for many,

many years, they develop a tolerance ko alcohol whersin they

can actually consume more alcohol and still function at a level

whereas somebody that doesn't drink all the time drimk; is that

-

A Yag,

Q -- your -- is that -- is that a correct -- you're the

therapist., I'm not.

A ¥Yes, that's (indiscernible}.

] A1l right. Do you -- are you aware as his therapist
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of the amount of alcohol and the amount of years that Mr.
O'Heefe drank?

A I'm not sure exactly of the ampunt and years because
I dgn't have that document in front of me. But yes, he did
exprass & length of time and -- and a -- and a high consumption
rate,

Q Ckay. And do you recall testifying in a previous
hearing?

¥ Yes,

a In this case? Do you recall when asked how much

Erian reported that he drank, it would ke five to eight quarts
a beer on a daily bagis?
MZ. PALM: Fage number?
MS. GRAHAM: Thabt's on Page 41.
THE WITNESS: I don't have that in front of me.
BY M5. GRAHAM
L] Did¢ defendant O'Keefe indicate to you that he had
gevere subgtance abuse problem?
A He -- he had mentioned that he had previous probleme
azsociated to alcohol.
a Dkay.
-3 I'm ot gure 1f he indicared & severity level.
g 211 right, sir, so basically, everything -- when
you're treating defendant O'Keefe, when he comes to you,

everything that he tells you is self-reported; is that righe?
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F: Yes,

Q And you don't have those notes in front of you ko
tell us how much he reported to you that be drank?

A He, I do ast,

Q Okay. And the length ¢f time that he drank?

¥.3 I do not have that eicher,

Q Ckay. But yet, vou were able Lo assess that he had a
gavers alcohol problem?

A Yes. If T gave him a diagnosis of 303.9.

6] Ckay. And would somsbody that had that diagnosis be
able to tolerate alcchol pretty well?

F.4 It depends upon the individual because each -- each
individual's mwetabolism is different.

Q Um-H'm.

A Sc you can't -- I mean, I can't lump averybody
together with that,

Q In a general sense you've heard rhe term hold your
own liguor, holds liguor well?

A Yes, I've heard of it.

Q Okay. So that basically, a kind of a slang for
tolerance?

A I've never heard it in those terms as a -- as a slang
for telerange,

o Okay. Thank vou, sir,

THE CQURT: Any redirect?
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REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. PALM:

Q Mr. Paisano, would it r=fresh vour recollection to
lock at a transcript of your prior testimony to see whether you
ever testified aw to how much a day my client drank?

o I'm--I'm serry?

4] Would it help you te logk at your prior testimony to
see if you ever testified, as Me. Graham it jusc stated, as to
how much my client drank?

F-3 Yes,

M5. PALM: May I approach the witness?
THE COURT: Yas,
MS. FALM: Same FPage 41,

BY ME. PALM:

o] Here's the guestion and here's your answer.

Pt Yes.

Q Does that help you recall?

B Yes,

o Cid you ever testify as to how much my client drank &
day?

A According to that statement, yes.

Q You said -- did you testify you -- you can't answer

that truthfully because you didn't have the documentation in
freont of you?

A Yeg .,
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1 Q So her -- the statement was just the DA's question?
2 A Yes.
3 Q Ckay. &And would it refresh your recollection to loock

4| at a copy of the MINES report to see what the dates of

5| treatment were?

& A Yes.

? Q (Indiscernikle) records?

8 M5. PRLM: May I approach?

9 THE WITNESS: Okay. Thege are dates that I --

1% | BY M5, PALM:

11 Q Ckay.

12 A «- saw him,

13 o So it would be from 9/11 of 2008 to early November
14 ) 20087

1= A Tas,

16 2 And he was seeing you several times a week?

17 B Tes,

18 Q And would it be unusual at all for somebody going

13 | into detox to minimize how bad their problem is?

20 A Tes.

21 4] And is alcoholism considered a disease?

22 A Yes, it is,

23 Q Why?

24 A Because it has its own symptom characteristics,

25 | manifestation period, and it was deemed so by the American
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Medical Associatbtion in 1954,

[+ Ckay. And is part of that because people have a hard

time stopping?

A Yanm.

Q Ckay. And even when they stop they have a hard time

staying dry?
A Yes.
M3. PALM: No further gquestions. Thapk you.
THE COURT: Any recross?
M2, GRAHAM: No, Judge.
THE CQURT: Any questions from any of the jurors?

questions. Thank you, sir, for your testimony. You are

excused

THE WITHNESS: Thank vou.

THE QOURT: Next witness for the defenze.

M3, PALM: Your Honor, that concludass the lay
witnesses,

THE COURT: All right.

M5. PALM: May we approach?

THE COURT: Yeg.

(Qff-record bench conference).

THE CCURT: Ladies and gentlemen, we're just going to

take a -~ just a five minute recess to resclve an isgue. It is

-- during this recess, it is your duty not to converse among

yourselves or with anyone else on any subject connected with
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this case or to read, watch or listen to any report of or
commentary on the trial by any person connected with the trial
or by any medium of information, including without limitation,
newspapey, television, radio ¢r the Intermet. You are not to
form or express an opinion on any subject connected with the
ease until this matter is submitted to you. It should be very
quickly five minutes.

(Cutgide the presence of the jury).

THE COURT: A1l right, we're outside the presence of
the jury panel. And Ma. Palm, there was a instruction that you
were requesting.

MS. PALM: Well --

THE COURT: I mean in regards teo that -- regarding
the voluntary manslaughter.

ME. PALM: The involuntary manslaughter.

THE COURT: Invoiuntary, I'm sorry, ves.

MS. PALM: 2pnd -- and I have objections to many of
their ingtructions still to put on the record. I don't know
when the court wants to dg that, but --

THE COURT: PBut for your client's decision on whether
or not he's going to testify, that's dependsnt on the decision
whether or not I will give a involuntary manslaughter
instruction; is that correct?

M3. FALM: That's correct, and as -- as well ag we

wiould like cto know the outcome of the instruction on whether
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the jury can consider alechol intoxication or not,

THE COURT: Okay. &ll right, let's deal with the
volutitary instruction.

ME. LALLY: The voluntariness?

THE COURT: Involuntary.

MR. LALLI: Oh, and just -- just for the court's
edification, the medifications that we had discussed at the
last break on the voluntariness, I've made thagse and I e-mailed
the version to the court.

THE COURT: Yes, I do have those.

M&. PAIM: BAnd your Honor, my lnvoluntary instruction
is at Page 13 of my instruction packer.

THE COURT: All right. Do you have that one, Mr.
Lalliz

MR. TALLI: I do.

THE COURT: &ll right. Do you have any abjection to
the giving of the instruction?

ME. LALLT: Yes.

TRE COURT: Okay.

ME. LALLI: A number of chjections. MNumber one, it'g
nob their thecry of the case. And I think throughout these
proceedings and pleadings, while gettling instruccions, it is
abundantly clear it is not their theory of the case. Their
theory is that this was an accident and/or it was some form of

or gsome ilk of self-defense. That's their defenses, not
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inveluntary manslaughter,
The problem with the inveluntary manslaughter is what
the defense is attempting to do in this iostruction, and parkt

of it is taking -- taken from NRS 200.070, they're only citing

a4 portion of the instruction. They're -- they're not citing
the complete statute an -- on involuntary manslaughter.
They've -- they've removed a section. ®hen this case

was reversed by the Supreme Court, they locked at thig issue of
involuntary manslaughter and how it operated with second degree
murder. Obviously, the ccourt well knows those two things are
related. Has to do with when does an involuntary manslaughter
become a seqcnd degree murder.

I'm entitled to the entire instruction if it's given.
The problem is that is precisely the reason it got reversed.
And our Supreme Court said there is no evidence to support
this. Mot only is the instruction improper, but there's no
evidence to support it. They said that in their gpinien
reversing the case.

¢ it's not their theory, there's no evidence to
support it, and -- and just as a matter of the record as -- as
we've seen it thus far, there is no evidence to support it.
And finally, it creates this issue, this legal issus that the
-- the -- the Supreme Court has already said is a problem. So
you can't just give part of the statute. You've gotta give all

of it. And that ie going ko create a problem.
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THE COURT: 3All right, thank you. Ms. Palm.

ME. PALM: Well, your Honor, when the reversal came
back it was because the instruction had gone to the jury, which
we obijected to, and the court had determined not to give, but
ended up in the packet anyway addressing a second degree murder
based on a felony murder theory unlawful act.

And the court sald there's no notice of such a theory
and there was no evidence of such an unlawful act. So that's
the problem when -- why it got reversed. As far as the
involuntary goes, the statute hagp two alternacive way3 you <an
have an involuntary. You can have the lawful act involuntary
or the unlawful act involuntary.

What T did with this instruction is I took out the
language from the statute for the unlawful act because that's
what would be 2 problem in this case. There's Been no notice
that he did an unlawful act. But you still have the regular
involuntary that's based on recklessness doing a lawful ack.
And 1 think that we do have evidence in this case from which
the jury could f£ind thac.

There's evidence that she was coming at him with a
knife. And thers was evidence that he wag extremely
intoxicated. The jury could determine that -- that if there
wag a killing, it happened as a result of hie recklessnese. So
that is our theory that there iz not 2 murder in this cate.

However, if Lhere's anything at all, it would be an
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inveluntary. That's hour theory.

Sc we are entitled te imstructicns on our theory of
the case. I'm just defining inveluntary manslaughter based on
the lawful act manslaughter that's ser forth in the statute.
And instructicns are supposed to be tailored, specifically to
the facts of the case.

Mr. Lalli iz not eptitled to inatruction baged on
theories that are not related to the facts of the case and
theories upen which we haven't had any notice for an unlawful
2ot involuntary. So we are entitled to those tailared
instructiona. The State has a burden of -- of proving malice
beyond a reascnable doubt. And if they don't prove malice,
that they prove something less than malice, there's Cwo types
of recklessness. You have either the extreme malignant
reckleseness, which is malice for murder. Or you have just
regular recklessnese, which is enough for involuntary.

S0 ic's a subset of that type of murder. It's a
legser included under these clircumgtances. Ib's My. O'Keefa's
theory of the casae. We're entitled to tailor instructions and
that's all this is -- this is setting forth. This iz the
instruction we're reguesting.

ME. LALLI: In ooc one document that she's Eiled with
the court has she ever said it's her theory of the case. 1In
fact, in pleadings she §aid just the opposite. Yesterday it's

my recocllection she -- T mean, she was incapable of coming up
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with a factual scenarie that -- that has been adduced in this
cage that fits that cheory.

Her theory is that it was ap accident or that it was
in self-defense or that the wvictim committed suicide. I mean,
that was & theory that was advanced in the opening. This --
thie does absclutely -- it's not a lesser included of second
degree murder as we'wve alleged it as a malice murder. It is
not a leszer included. It's not her theory of the case.

THE COURT: Ms. Palm, I don't see this as a lesser
included. And with -- without any other testimony or evidence
in this case, I don't find thar ir's appropriate to give the I
happen voluntary manslaughter ipstruction. If your client
takes the stand and perhaps some other theory comes up, then
the court can address that. But at this point I don't find
that it's apprepriate. So at this point I'm not going to give
Lhe inztruction.

If your -- like I 2aid, if your client takes che
etand and some other evidence comes out, then the court would
be more than happy toc revigit this igsue.

ME. PAILM: And then the other gquestion was the
intaxication.

THE COURT: There was a new ingtruction that came
ocut. I have 1t here.

MR. TALLI: This would have baen the came one thak

the court printed cut yvesterday evening.
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THE CCURT: Do you have an extra gopy for Ms. Palm or
you can just show Ms. Palm yours, Mr. Lalli.

MS_ PALM: 2And I see the State's inatructicn, and I
think it's -- it's confusing. It shifts the burden of proof.
Felieves the State cof the burden of proving malice. We have an
alternative instruction at Page 28 that is based on the statute
that is just the wording of NRS 193.320.

And I understand that Mr. Lalli is going to probably
argue, as he did, last evening in chambers. I would say that
te cites the Leader {(phonetic} case for mere intoxication can't
reduce murder. And if the court's not going to give a
manslaughter, T guess it's irrelevanc any way, that language
wouldn't need ta he in there. But the no act may be less
criminal is part of the statue -- statute, The rast is from
Leaders {phonetic), which would not be relevant if the court's
not giving the involuntary.

However, I think Leadersz was just talking about mere
intoxication. It didn't say the jury couldn'c consider
evidence of intoxication. And here the species of crime is
second degree murder, It requires the State to prove malice
beyond a reasonable doubt, either expressed or implied malies.
And T think that, you no ke, in recent years since Leaders the
court has strengthened the independent remuirements under the
Btatutes for murder. We have Bifurd {phonetie) that was

setting forth the -- the separate elements. Coleman (phonetic)
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talked about the fact that not every murder requires a specific
intent ko kill does not relieve the State of the burden of
proving some kind of malice.

I think under a contemporary understanding of Mevada
law evervhody knows we have to prove malice. And I think that
this instructiom is our statute, it's relevant ta whether they
can show mallice, that Mr. 0'Keefe was 3o intoxicated that he
fell, that he did somathing he didn't intend to deo. I mean, I
think this -- their -- their instruction, if you stop just at
-- at by reason of hie condition, just completely relieves the
State of their burden of proving malice.

It says, you koow, ngt to even consider hisg
intoxication. I think the jury's allowed to consider his
intoxicacion but under Hevada law.

MR, LALLI: Your Homor, Leaders says exactly the
opposite. And Leaders is still the law today. In Leaders
exactly whart Counsel is doing hers, counssl did in Leaders.
They wanted an instruction the effect that voluntary
intoxication negates malice. That's what they wanted to do.
That 's what she's requesting. That iz not the law. And when
in the statute, che voluntary intoxication statute, they're
taiking about degrees or species of a crime, they're talking
about crimes like wurder, which can be of the first or of the
zecond, kidnapping, which can be first or of the second. Aand

volunbary intoxication can be considered if a jury wants to in
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asseesing the various degrees of those types of crimes,

Degres is no longer an issus hers. This is a second
degree murder. It is the lowest degree of murder. So in
obedience to Leaders, I don't think the court can give the
instruction that Counsel is agking for. It viclates Leaders,
and our instruction is taken verbatim from the statute up ko
that section and then the language that we're uging comes
almost verbatim from Leaders.

THE COURT: Although Leaders is, I think 2002 or =o,
Leaders is still good law. It's pot been overruled. And in
Leaders we deal with the issue of gpecies or degrees of crime
and we don't have that anymore jin this cage. It's one crime at
second degree. And so for those reasens, I'm not going to give
that ipnstruction.

ME. LALLT: You will give thes instruction proffered
by Btate?

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. LALLI: Thank you.

M5. PALM: Well, and your -- your Honor, it's not --
we're not reducing it to manzlaughter anymore, se I don't know
why that final sentence should be even in their instruction
anymara.,

ME. GRAHAM: We changed the sentence.

MR. LALLI: ©Oh, that's --

MS. PALM: (Indiscernible).
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MR. LALLI: The —- the -- I'm sorry.

MS. FALM: ©h, I see. Okay, I -- you know what, I do
have yours, ckay. G5o voluntary intoxication does not negate
the element. And if you're giving this instruction, I would
say -- well, I guess you're going to give it,

THE COURT: Okay. All right, do you need to confer
with your client?

ME. PALM: Yes.

THE COURT: All right,

M5. PALM: Can we gg ouCsidae?

THE COURET: All right. well, make sure the
corrections officer is with you.

{Court recessed at 11:40 a.m. until 11:59 a.m.).
{Outside the presence of the jury).

THE COURT: We're waiting for the late Mr. Lalli.

MS. GRAHAM: I chipnk he just -- he's been in --

THE CQLEREX: He's coming.

MS. GRAHAM: -- there this whole time. He might be
in the bathroom.,

(Pause in the procesdings).

THE CCURT: Okay., Ms. Palm, do you have any cther
witneszsges?

MZ. PALM: Your Homor, I have discussed -- my only
final witness would have been Mr. O'Keefe, but after discusaing

the court's ruling oa the alcohol evidence as well as the
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gecond or the involuntary as a lesser included, the second
degree malice murder, it's our positicn that the gourt's ruling
have burdened hisz decisicn on his right to testify. He does
not want to testify ar this time because of thoee rulings.

THE COURT: Okay. Is the S5tate going te have any
rebuttal witnegges?

MR. LALLI: MHope.

THE COURT: &LL right, let's just ¢all the jury in.
We'll break for lunch. They have a lunch here in the back,
We'll -- we'll have the jury come= back at 1:30. I'll have
counsel back at 1:00 o'clock so we can put it on the record all
the instructions, number them, and go through that process.

ME. LALLI: Very good,

MZ. PALM: And T still have objections on their
instructions. Are we going to do that ac 1:007

THE COURT: Yeah. That's why --

M5. PALM: OCkay.

THE COURYT: -- I s4id we'll put the ohjections on the
record.

5. FALM: All right.

THE COURT: And Mr., Lalkli, if you -- if you have all
the instructions there, I think you've made the changes, can
you be so kind to -- we have so many copies here. If you can
be so kind te e-mail them to my JER, and then we'll print out

copies for everybody so we have a complete --
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MR. LALLI: Yes, now --

THE COURT: Copy.

MR. LALLI: -- the cnly ones that T don't have are --

THE COURT: Well, we'll deal with that in just a
minute,

MR. LALLI: Okay.

THE COURT: MWe'll just tell the jury we're going to
take a break.

{In the presence of the jury).

TEE MARSHAL: Please be seated,

{Pause in the proceedings}.

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, appreciate your
patience. The lunch for the jurors has been deliversd and
we're godng to provide to you at this time. The marshal will
escort you to the jury deliberation, not for deliberation,
You're not to deliberate because you haven't heard closing
arguments. We're just going to put yvou in that room for lunch
that courtt's providing for you.

Se during this lunch recess, it is your duty not to
converse amang yoursalves or with anyone else on any subject
connected with this case or te read, watch or listen to any
Teport over commentary on the trial by any person connected
with the trial or by any medium of information, including
without limitation, newspaper, television, radic or the

Internet. You are nat to form or express an opinion on any

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

00253

66




9

11l

iz

13

1a

15

1E

17

18

18

20

21

42

23

<4

25

subject comnected with the case until this matter ia submitted
o you. We'll see you back ab 1:30.
{outside the presence of the juryl.
{Pause in the proceesdings).

THE COURT: All right, we'res cutside Che presence.
Mr. Lalli, you said you had -- you had a question about one of
the instructions?

MR. LALLT: No, no, no, what -- what I was -- oh, the
-- I will forward to the ecourt all the ones thac I have either
typed or formacted. They're -- they're not in a perfect order

THE COURT: OCkay.

MR. LALLYI: -- but I agsume we can order thoee when
we --

THE COURT: Yes.

MR. LALLI: -- when we come back.

MS. PALM: And -- and --

MR. LALLI: The -- I'm BOIrry.

M5, PALM: Did you get the one that I -- the ones I
e-mailad you that were just the blank rewritten ones that T
said I would do? 1 e-mailed them to you --

MR. LALET: I gid, but I --

MS. PATM: -- Clark and te Mr. Lalli.

MR. LALLI: I did recelwve them but I did not reform
at chem.
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MS. PALM: Okay, because I thought that's -- you were

going to do that.

MR. LALLI: I wzs going to --

THEE COURT: Can you get --

ME. LALLF: «~- but I didn'c get them in time.

THE OOURT: Okay, can you do that now? I mean, do
you have them in your computer?

MR, LALLI: I'm sure I can.

M5, PALM: And Mr, 0'Keefe will want the instruction
on testimony -- on his testimonoy.

THE COURT: Ckay, was that in the packet or did you
pull that one gut, Mr. Lalli?

M5, PALM: It was --

MR. LALLI: It was -- it should be in the packet that

I sent.
THE COURT: Okay. 50 —- S0 you're able to e-mail
that to the clerk or to my law clerk, my court clerk, my JEA.

MR. LALLI: Your Homor, I'm e-mailing these to your

THE COURT: Okay.

MF. LALLI: ~-- g0 that the batch that I have hag -—-
has just hesn sgent to her,

THE COURT: And that includes the ones Ms. Palm
provided; iz that correct?

MR. LALLI: Mot the ones that she provided this
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moraing. Although, I can -- do you want me to just forward
those to your JER?

THE COURT: Yes, then I'1l --

ME. LALLI: Okay.

THE COURT: -- then I'll -- we can put them in order
and make copies for everybody.

ME. LALLI: OCkay.

THE COURT: 2And if we need to reformat we can do that
this afterncon.

ME. LALLI:; Okay, those have been sent to your JEA.

THE COURT: ©Okay. NWe'll counsel back at 1:00,
clesing at 1:;39,

ME. LALLI: Thank you.

(Court recessed at 12:06 p.m. until 1:42 p.m.}.
{Outside the pregence of the jury).

THE COURT: We're on the record outside the presence
of the jury panel. I've been provided with some jury
ingtructions here that initially have been agreed upon by the
Courkt. Mz. Palm, we'll number these in just a minute, but
besides these instructione here, are there additicnal
instructions you wish the court to give?

MZ. RPARLM: Well, I had some objections to the
instructions still that we haven't made a record of.

THE COURT: Well, I --

MZ. PALM: Okay.
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THE COURT: -- always agk that from both sides.
M5. PAIM: Ckay. My cbjection to the in arriwving at
a verdict in this --

THE COURT: No, no, do you have any additional so I

can --
MS. PALM: Oh, additional, yes.
THE COURT: That's -- that 's what I'm asking for.
MS. PALM: As far afd malice, thelr definition of
malice -- I'm trying to find which cne that is in the srack,

Okay, I think it'g --

THE COURT: About the fourth or £ifth one in.

M5. FALM: Fourth one in.

THE COURT: And there'a one with expresszed malice
right after.

MS. PALM: Okay. I have 4 proposed instructicn on
malice that aleo has the if -- if the State fails to eithar
prove malice or afcrethought or disprove accident or
self-defense it's your quilty to return a verdict of not
guilty. I want them to have a2 instruction phrased in the
negative with respect to the second degree murder, which we
don't hawve in this packet, which T asked for on second degree
murdaer that if che Srtate fajls to prove any of elewents, then
the juxy has to refurn a aot guilty verdict.

We are entitled to negatively phrased imstructions

under Crawford i(phonetic). and that's cited in my instructions.
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MR. LALLI: Your Honor, the wvoluntary -- I'm sorry,
the malice aforethought instruction in the pacvket has been
approved by the Mevada Supreme Court.

M5. PAILM: And they'wve also approved negatively
phrased instructions. Meaning that just because there's a
gorrect instruction doesn't mean the defendant doesn't get the
negatively phraged instruction.

THE CCURT: Ckay. Let's mark your proposed so you
can have that as part of your record.

ME. PALM: Well, it's -- they're filed with the
court. Do you --

THE COURT: Okay. Well, which number is it zo you
can identify --

MS, BALM: It's on page --

MR. LALLI: ({Indiscernible) a page rumber.

ME. PAIM: It's -- well --

THE QOURT: Do you have that?

MS. PALM: -- that one ig Page 8, and if -- if the
gourt wants to do some other tweaking on the language to
include the negatively phrased, I'1l do that, too. But I think
he's entitled to a negatively phrased instruction on -- on
that.

The other one is on Page 10.

THE COURT: Okay, lst's deal with the malice --

MS. PALM: Okay.
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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THE CQURT: -- instruction. Do you have anything
elee to add, Mr. Lalli, as far as your objection to Ms. Palm's
proposed?

MR. LALLI: Yesa, I don't think that instruction as
written has ever been approved by the Nevada Supreme Court,
Whereas, the one we're submitting has.

THE COURT: All right, the -- the malice aforethought
instruction and expressed malice propused by the State have
both been approved by the Nevada Supreme Court. They are
accurate statements of the law, and they -- they specifically
set forth the definiticon of those two terms, and so that's why
I'm going to give these instructions and I'm not going to give
the defense proposed and -- and which number was that again,
Ms. Palm, s0 we can put it on the record?

MS. FALM: It was -- well, I actually had a second
one, but Mr. Lalli started talking. I have another definition
for malice on Page 10 of mine --

THE COURT: Okay.

M5. PALM: -- of my proposed instructions. And that
explains more what abandonment and malignant heart malica
requires. The extrem= recklessness regarding homicidal riske,
that's from Coleman. I don't think that malice aforethought,
as explained in this old instructicn, has been given forever
adequately defines for the jury the concept of malice.

I don't think rhat it tells them exactly what that
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think this instructicn's better.
(Pause in the proceedings).
3 THE COURT: Okay, that*s instrurction 14,

4 MS. FALM: Yes. Well, it's on my Page 10,

5 M3, GRAHAM: It's Page 10.

& THE COURT: Page 10, I'm gorry, yes., Okayv, Mr.

instruction 10,

ME. the -- her instruction 14 is

LALI,T: Your Honor,
covered by the malice afcrethought instrucktion that the court
has indicated it's going to give,

11 THE COURT: That ie correct, 8¢ I'm not going to givae

-~ atfually it's Page 10 of Ms. Palm's proposed instructions,
fiot imstruction 10. Yes, Ms. Falm, next.

14 M5. PALM:; Next is flight. We are requesting che

anti-flight imstruction. That he is 2n on Page 27 of my

proposed instructions. And I think since the juries are

allowed to consider evidence of flight as guilt, they ought to
be able to consider evidence of non-flight ag indicating the

oppogite.

ME. LALLI: Your Honor, the citation for this

instruction is Caljick (phonetic). This i3 not the law in the

State of Nevada. the —- the cases in ¥evada chat talk

In fack,
about flight say that in order to glve a flight instructicnm,
there has to he no other indication as to why the person left

the =zcene.
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Here if there were a reverse flighe situation in
Nevada or non-flight situation, which there's not, it's not as
though the defendant was thers to embrace law enforcement when

they arrived. I mean, the facts are certainly contrary to

that.

50 he didn't say there to turn himself in or -- or to,
you know, in a forthright manner tell the police what happened,
§0 it's not supported by the law, and it's factually oot
appropriate.
3 THE CQQURT: There isn't any relevant Nevada authority

on giving this jinstruction. I'm not going to give ir,

However, it does oot precludes Ms. Palm from arguing thab he

didn't run, he stayed (indizcernihie) he stayed ta provide

assistance or not. BHut you're free to argue his non-flight,

M5. PALM: &And I thipnk that's all that I had ag far

ax additional instructions go.

18 THEE COURT: Okay. I'm going to number thess --

M5. PALM: Yeah.

1a THE COURT: -- real quick and assuming you have all

I mean the game order. The second co last

the same numbers,
instruction 1s read back, it should be play back. That would
be number 27, but we need to get gne for play back. So there
are 28 --
21 MR. LALLI: I've got a play back, your Honar --
24 THE COURT: You have a play back, all righet.

25 ME. LALLI: -- if you just want to substitucte mine.
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THE COURT: Thank you.
MR. LALLI: Can I have the one you just throw away?
I'm just goinmg to put it in my packet and just make the

amendment te it. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. There's 28 jury inatructions.

Mr. Lalli, iz State famillar with instructione 1 through 287

MR. LALLI: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Do you object to the giving of any of
thaose instructions?

MR. LALLI: HNz.

THE CQURT: All right. And do you request any
additional instructions?

MR, LALLI: No.

THE OOURT: And you're familiar with the werdict
forms and de you have any objections thereto?

MR. LALLI: I do not,

THE COURT: Okay. Me. Palm, you're familiar with
instructions 1 through 287

MS. BALM: Yes.

THE CCURT: Do you nave any objection te the giwving
of instruction 1 through 28, other than you'wve already set
forth?

ME. PALM: In addition, your Homor, I object to
instruction 26. I think that the --

THE COURT: I'm sorry, which number?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

75

2382




MS, PATM: 24.
THE COURT: Okay.
M3. PALM: I think --
THE COURT: Yes.
MS5. PALM: -- that the language as to whether
defendant im® guilty or not gquiliy misstates the burden. I
think it's misleadipng. I think it should say whather the State
has met its burden to prove beyond a reascnable doubt that the
defendant is guilty.
MER. LALLI: Which one, 267
THE COURT: That's not Z5.
MS. GRAFRAM: That's 25.
M5, PALM: I'm sorry. I have it ag 26,
THE COURT: All right, 2s5.
MS. PAIM: Is ic 257 o0Okay. In arriving at a
verdict?
COURT: Yes.
PALM: 5o we're not starting with one as one.
COURT: HNo page one --
PALM: Or the first page as 1.
CORT: -~ iz 1.
LALLI: First page one is 1.
PATM: OQkay, I've got an extra one in here, then.

COURT: well, it's number 25, so your objection
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MS. PALM: My objection ie I think it misstatesz the
burden by saying whether the defendant is guilty or not guilty.
It ocught to say whether the State has met its burden to prove
beyond a reascnable deubt that the defendant is guilry, strike
oot gullby,

THE CQURT: OCkay, Mr. Lalli.

MR. LALLT: W®Well, that's their charge. I mean, there
is a guilty verdict on the verdict form and there's a not
guilty verdict. 5S¢ that's their charge. The court has already
instructed them in -- in veoir dire in these instructions that
it's our burden to prove guilt beyond a reasonable doubt.

THE COURT: All right, 5o --

ME. LALT.T: In addicienm, this just talks about
whether they can consider punishment.

THE COURT: Yeah, that's correct. 5o you're
cbjection's noted. Any other numbered instructions?

M3. PALM: Ag far &s their malice aforsthought
instruction, which is number %, I think that it shoizld have a
pericd after the first sentence or excused because or what the
law considers adequate provocation does mot apply to
circumstances here. and I think it's confusing.

MR. LALLI: Well, adeguate provocation could be, for
instance, self-defemse. I mean it could be a whole number of
things, and it's phrased in terme of what the law considers.

%o 1 think the mentence is proper.
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THE COURT: Yeah, I don't think this -- that
instruction S is misleading to the jury, so you're cbjectico's
noted for the record. Aoy other numbers?

M3. PALM: Nope, that was the fine one -- the finpal
chiection,

THE CQURT: Okay. And besides those ghjecticns, do
you have any other cbjecticns to the giving of 1 through 287

MS . PALM: HNo.

THE QOURT: And you're requesting additionsl
instructions other than you'wve already -- vou've already
digcussed on the record?

MS. PALM: MNo,

THE COURT: Ckay. And are you famillar with the
verdict farm? Any objectien thereto?

M5. PALM; HNa.

THE COURT: oOkay. ALl right, we'll call the jury in,
and Ms. Palm, since we did pot -- defense did not rest in front

of the jury, I'll ask you if you have any other witnesses and
then you'll say r=st and I'll ask che State if they have any
rebuttal and chen we'll 9o into clposing.

MS, EFALM: Ckay.

THE COURT: Well, jury instructions.

MR. LALLI: Okay.

THE COURT: All right.

MS. CGRAHAM: And, Judge, can we tcake ten minutes
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after reading to go into closing?

ME.

MS.

LALLI:

GRAHAM :

Well, why don't you set up now?

I --well, I am. I just want to make

sure technically it's --

MR,

M5.

MR.

in.

ME.

THE

Ma.

have an extra

2

THE

second kto --

LATLLT:
COURT :
LALET:
GRAHAM:

LALLI:

CRAHAM :
COURT:

BRIM;

gne in herse somewhers.

Right, let's do it now za --
Well, set it up now if you have --
-- we don't hava to break --

Okay. All right.

-- take the jury out and bring them back

How -- show me.

Yeah, I don‘t want to --

Can T look at your instructicns becauge I

{Pause in the proceedings}.

LATLLT :
PALM:
LATTT;

CLERK:

A¥e we --

Found the culpritc.

Are we turned ocver?

Yom.

{Pause in the procesdinga}l.

COURT: Are we ready for the jury to come in?
LALLI: 1It'a not reading it. T just need one
COURT: Ckay.
LALLI: -- reboot it.
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MR,
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MS.

THE MARSHAT,:

seatad.

COURT:

reading the instructions?

LAT.LI:

GRAHAM:

LALLI :

COURT :

GEAHAM -

COURT :

went cff the record at 1:58 p.m. untill 2:09 p.m.J.

THE CCURT:

for your patience.

ragolved.

to call in this case?

MS.

documente that I need to admit in.

Mg. Falm, do you have any other witnesses you wish

PALM:

THE COURT:

(Pauge in the proceedings).

(Pause in the proceedings) .

{In the presence of the jury).

We had a2 computer problem that's been

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT

Well, can we work on that while I'm

Well ~--

Well, I have to change one --
-- it will be distracting.
Ckay .

-- because of Trish's change.

All right.

211 rige for the presence of the jury.

Ladies and gentlemern, I want to thank you

No, your Honor, but T do Rave some

All right. Defendant's Proposed Exhihit

No objection,

it will be admitted.

Okay,

{Exhibitr K admitted! .
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MS. PALM: And Defendant's Proposed Exhibic E.
THE CLERK: E's already admitted.

MS. PATM: Qh, I'm sorry, I'm looking at the wrong

thing then, I think:

thos= are

yeah.

THE CLERK: I have E and M.
ME. PALM: Oh, I'm sorry, it's five d's.
THE CLERX: Five d's? The military records, yes,

admitted. Sorry, those are nor admitted. Five d's,

MR. LALLI: Yeah, I have no obje=ction to that.
THE COURT: Okay, they'll be admitted.
(Exhibit DIDOD admitted).
M5 . FAIM: Thank you.
THE COURT: Any other exhibite or --
Ms5. PAIM: No, your Honor, and the defense reste.
THE COURT: {Okay. Any rebuttal witnesses for State?
MR. LALLIL: Nec, your Honor,

TEE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, boch sides have

rested in this case. It is now my duty as judge to instruct

you on the law that applies to this casge.

her and

{Jury instructicns; not be transceribed).
THE COURT: State, your glo=sing, pleass.
STATE'S CLOSING ARGUMENT
MS. GRAHAM: Thank you, Judge. She's poiscn. I hate

wank to kill her. EShe took three years of my lifas.
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Fhe gent me to prison. That's what the defendant said about
Victoria Whitmarsh. He killed her on the night of November
S5th, 2008. He did it intentionally and he had a motive,

This is the verdict form that you will have in your
packet and you're guing to be asked to deliberate on. And ic's
really simple. If you can see itc, there are three boxes. THe
first box s second degree murder with use of a deadly weapon,
second degree murder without use of a deadly weapon and not
guilty.

I'm going to walk you through the evidence as you've
heard it in this past week, past seven days, and -- and I'm
going to apply that evidence to the law that the just -- judge
just instructed te you on this case. I'm going to show you how
{indiscernible) this case. First of all, let's get c¢ne thing
right out of the way from the get go. There's been all kinds
of talk about Brian being intoxicatad.

There's no doubt, Detective Wildemann said he smelled
of alechol, that he appeared to be intoxicated. There's been
teatimony from neighbore that were on the scene on the night of
November 5th, 2008, that he appeared to be intoxicated. There
were gtatements by officers that he smelled of alcchol. In
fact, I think it was Officer Ballejos who testified that he
sppeared to be extremely intoxicated. Guess what? ‘That
doesn't matter.

MS. PALM: Objection, your Honor. May we approach?
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(Cff-record bench conference)
THE COURT: You're chjection's sustalned.
ME., FALM: Thank you.

MS. GRAHAM: Voluntary intoxication is not z dafense

to second degree murder. No act committed by a persen while in

the grate of voluntary intoxication shall be deemed less
criminal by reason of {indiscernibie),. Voluntayy intoxication
does not negate the slement of malice inherit in the crime of
murder as we've charged it, zecond degree murder. And I'11
explain second degree murder just a little bit lacer.

Mg. Palm has made a point of -- of showing a
phictograph of the defendant after the -- the interview that he
had with Detective Wildemann, and the fact that he was so
intoxicated that che photo -- in the photo it depicted ancther
officer having to hold him up., That was in the interview room
several hours after he murdered victoria. fThis was at the
crime scene.

He stood on hig own with his hands behind his back.
Didn't have any trouble standing up Dy himself., He was not so
intoxicated that he did not understand what was going on in

that interview room.

Deadly weapon. You're going te be asked to determine

vhether a deadly weapon wae used in this case. And the law
defines a deadly weapon as in this case any weapon, device,

instrument, under the clrcumstances in which it was used is

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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readily capable of causing substantizl bodily harm or death.
The weapon in this case, a knife,

I think that we can all agree that that knife that
was used to stab Victoria Whitmarsh is a deadly weapon that is
capable of causing substantial beodily harm or death. Resule,
knock that out right away. What we have left is not guilty and
quilty of murder of a second degree with use of a deadly
weapon.

So let's talk about how we get there. First of all,
there's been some claims that perhaps defendant acred in
self-defense. 1 think you've heard statements and some
evidence throughout these past few days that perhaps Victoria

attacked him, that Victoria cur him. This is not -- this is

11 | not a case of salf-defence.

15 We're going to go through the instructions of

I 16 | self-defense, but first of all, Victoria was described by many

17 | witnesges as petite, small, little girl. The medical examiner

i 1B | testified that whe was five foot, four and welighad 108 pounds.

19 | She's slight,

20 Self-defenpe, the killing of another in self-defense

21 | is juscified and not uniawful when the person who does the

22 | killing actually and reascnably believes that there was eminent
23 | danger, that he -- thar Victoria, in this case, would have

24 | killed him or caused him great bodily injury., and that it is

25 | absolutely necessary -- chat it was absolutely necessary for
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the defendant under the circumstances for him to use in
self-defense force or means that might cause the death of
Victoria for the purpose -- for the purpose of avoiding death
or great bodily injury to himself.

A bear fear of death alone or great bodily injury is
not sufficient to justify that killing. To justify taking the
life of ancther in self-defense, the circumstances must be
sufficient to excite the fears of a reascnable peéerson placed ino
a aimilar gituation, The perzon killing must not act under the
influence of those fears alene -- must act under thoge fears
alone and not in revenge.

An honest but unrxeasonable bellef and the necessity
four self-defense does not negate malice. Was defendant's
belief, if that's his theory, was it reazonable under the
gircumstances? There's absolutely na evidence to corroborate
defendant's claim that he murdered Victoria in gelf-defense.
There isn't, except for his statements.

ME&. PALM: Youx Honor, I'm goling to object to burden
shifting at this time,

THE COURT: I'm going to owerrule the objecticon.

MS5. GRAHAM: Thank you, your Honor.

THE COURT: It's clesing argument.

M5. GRAHAM: You -- we've admitted into evidence the
statement that defendant wade to Detective Wildemann. It was

audio recorded, video recorded, You're going to be abla to
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have that back into deliberations with you o view again. But
there's some interesting things that defendsnt, you'll nots,
you know, states in there. Detective Wildemann asked him
repeatedly how did you cut your hand?

I challenge you to g2 back there and count how many
times defendant said I don't know, I don't konow, I don't kanow.
Later, later he says he grabbed the knife out of V's hand,
Victoria's hand, and said whar the fuck are you doing, don't he
stupid. Prior to that, throughout the whole interview when
Detective Wildemann is questioning him on how he got the cut on
his happened, I doa't know, I don't know, I don't know, But he
does know all kinds of other details. ‘That audio/vides speaks
for itself, folks., It does. It speaks for itself.

Credibility. The judge has given you instruction on
eredibility. Sc that's really important here because not just
defendant, but all of the witnesses that have tescified, you
have te judge their credibility, And credibility can be judged
based on somehody's fears, motives, interests or feelings.

What were Brian's motives when he made statements to Detective
Wildemann? What was his maokbive?

Buc, you say. okay, dafendant hasg injuries, what are
-- what about defendant's injuries? We'wve got possibly a rug
burn on his face because he was taken into custody, he had bo
be tazed and forced down and taken inte custady at the =scena,

He's got a cut on his finger. That cut, State submits to you
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that cut happened when he stabbed Victoria because ha lost his
grip when the blood got on his hands. And that's congisrent
with others that have committed stabbings,

He's got, I don't ktiow, some -- gome bruising on his
arm there. Well, Detective Tayloer testified that when he took
him into custody, he had one arm behind his back and defendant
wasn't budging even after he had to be -- after he was tazed
once. 1L took a second cycle. The officers had to take him
into custody, And then the scratches on the bask. T don't
know. Defendant's acticns are not lagally juetified by a ¢laim
of BEelf-defense in this case.

He murdered Victoria. Now we're going to talk about

13 | what second degree murder ia. Murder in the zecond dagree isg
14 | the unlawful killing of a human being with malice aforethought.

15 | And that's a really strange word, malice aforethought. And

I 16 [ it's -- it's -- it's & concept that I'm hoping that I can

17 | explain to you becauss it can be confusing if you're hearing it
| 18 | for the first time.

13 And malice aforecthought can be either expressed

20| malice or implied malice. The unlawful killing may be

21 | effective by any of the various neads by which (indiscernible)
22 { in this case a stabbing. Malice dforechought means the

21 | intentional doing of a wrongful act without legal cause or

€4 | excuse or what the law considers adeguate provoecation. For

25 | instance, self-defenses. We'vae already ruled that out.
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The condition of the mind described as malice
aforethought may arise -- ckay, so the condition of mind of
malice afeorethought may arise from anger, hatred, revenge or
from a particular ill will, gpite or grudge toward the person
killed. It may also arise from any unjustifiable or unlawful
motive ©r purpose to injure another perscn receiving from a
heart, excuse me, fatally bent on mi=schief or with reckiess

disregard of the congegquences of the act.

-] Malice aforethought doesn't apply any deliberation,
10| the judge has told you that, or any lacks of time. It depctes
11 | an unlawful purpose and a design as oppased to accident or
12 | mischance. Victoria's murder was not an accident. She didn't
13 | stab herzelf, Although, that may ba another theory that it was
14 | an accident. I think that with regard to the accident we have
15 | some testimony from Mr. Schiro, I think it was that testified
16 | to the State -- or I mean for the -- for the Qdefense accidental
17 | stabbing. It wasn't an accident and it wasn't -- and she
18 | didn't stah herself.

1o We can use common sense, guys, but not imaginacion.
20 | And that's exactly what Mr. Schiro did. He used his
21 | imagination when he talked about this being an accidental
22 | stabbing. In addition to his report being a supplementail
23 | report after he had read some transcripts from a prior
24 | proceeding of the defendant's testimony, he expanded -- he
23 | expanded his report to include an accidental stabbing. And you
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talked to you about how he came to the conclusion that it could
have been an accident, and I think he testified he yused his
imagination.

Well, he didn't use scientific means like a durmy ar
any kind of taping or any kind of Lrajectory rods or anything
like that. But no, Just his imagination. And let me tell you
something about that imagination., That imagination assumes
that Victoria was standing up when she was stabbed. Now, I
think the pictures kind of speak for themselves. ¥You can look
At those. But it's highly doubrful based on the photcs at the
crime scene that Victoria was standing when the defendant
stabbed hear to death,

This is important, teo, to understand, common Sgnse,
not imagination. There's a jury instruction on cowmon sense.
And the law allows you to use your common genss, and it allows
you to use the experiences and hackground that you bring to the
table. You're not =mupposed to leave that outside the door.
You can use your common sense and make reasonable inferences
based on your common sense from the svidence that'e presented
to you from these last few days. And that's what that
instructieon says, and you have that in your packet when you go
back.

Before we go to malice, I just want to make a couple
of points on -- on why thig is not a suicide aither. You know,

that -- that was another possible theory that the defendant has
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thrown out there for you. And -- and I think, yvou know, based
on the fact that there was & stipulated portion of gome medical
recorda that Victorila suffered from depressicn. She attempted

£¢ commit guicide a few Limes.

5 And yes, sometimes she used & knmife in that attempt

&€ | ko commit suicide, sometimes scissors. But ghe alwaya slit her
7| wrists. She didn't try to stab herself in an awkward position,
8 | which both medical examiners, both Dr. Benjamin wha performed

2 | the autopsy and their expert medical examiner indicated to you
10| that it was not likely that that stab wound wag gelf-inflicted.
11 | It's wery awkward, based on the trajectory and the entrance and
12| -~ and the peositioning, you know, oo her right side for her to
13 | get up there. It just doesn't even make a0y senga. Commoen

14 | senge. It doesn't make gense that that was self-inflicted.
15 The fact that she was depressed and had anger

16 | cuthursts and that she committed suicide and coh, oh; of course,
17 | of course, she was on medication, toco. She was on medication
18 | and darn ik, she was on medication for depression so Bomehow

1% | that makes her an aggressor in the gituation. But asver in any

20 | of thoss medical records that are stipulated in evidence does

21 | it ever state that she ever turned her aggression oubwards and

22 | went --

23 MS. FALM: Your Hooor --

24 MS5. GRAHAM: -- and tried ro harm gomebody elee,
25 M5. PALM: -- may we approach?
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THE COURT: All right.
{Off-record bench conference) .
M3. GRAHAM: Again, faolks, there's no evidence
(indiscernible) evidence in the record that you'we heard that

Victoria ever rturned a knife on anybody else, scissors on

anybody else but herself., Yes, she had episcdes of depressicon,

she was on Effexor. Does that give somebody the right to can
kill her? To murder her? T don't think so., I den't think sg

All right, o let's get back to malice because a3
I've explained, second degree murder requires State to Rprove
that the defendant bad malice afcrethought. So what is malice
Well, we've got expressed malice and implied malice. ALl
right. Expressed malice is deliberare intention unlawfully to
Lake away Lhe life of a human being, which is manifested by
external circumstances capable of proof.

Okay, expressed malice requires the intenticnal act,

intentional unlawful act {indiscernible} of an intentional

unlawful act, the stabbing. Malice may alsc be implied when no

considerable provocation appears or when all the circumstances
of the killing show an abandoned and malignant heart. And I
think all the circumstances together definitely show that
thezre's art a minimum implied malicas.

Motive wversus intent. Okay, thar's important here,
okay, The State's not required to prove motive. And we'll ge

to that. To congtitute the crime charged in this case it's

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

L

t

N(2598




second degree murder, thers must exist a joint -- a union or
joint operation of an act that's forbidden by law aod intent to
do that act. In summary that means forbidden by law, a murder,
a atabbing, and the intent to do the act. The intentional

stabbing into Viectoria's body.

6 The intent with which an act is done is shown by the
7 | tacts and circumstances surrounding the case. Do not confuss

B | intent with motive. Motive is what prompts a persan to act.

3t Intent refers only to the state of mind. The state of mind

10 | with which the act was done., Motive is not an element of the
11 | crime charged, in this ¢ase second degree murder. We don't

12 | have to prove a motive,

13 However, you may consider evidence of motive or lack
14 | of motive when you come to your decision. The prosecution, we
15 | are not required to present dirvect evidence of the defendant's
16 | state of mind. You may infer it from the facts of the case.

17 | That means the demeanor, che credibllity, all the evidence

ig | {indiscernible). We don't have to prove -- it would be kind of
18 | hard, actually, to get in somebody's mind and knew what they

20 | were Lhinking at that momenr. You kind of have to infer that
21 | from all of the avidence. And that's gaing to be your job back
22 | in the deliberation room once you have the evidence to use yorur
<3 | conmon. sense and infer all of those things.
24 When defendant murdered Victoria acted with malice

25 | aforethought, and although we are not required to prove motive,
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THE COURT: 211 right.
{(0ff-record bench conferenca)

MS. PALM:

Ckay.

BY M3. PALM:

o] So when -- for the three months or so that you lived
with Brian and Cheryl, you saw them every day?
3 Ch, yes.

o] Okay. And did you ever hear Brian say that he wanted

co kill Victoria?

A

Never.

Did you ever see Brian demonstrats how he

g

Ckay.
would kill somebody with knives®

A No. HNot at all.

Q Okay. Did you want -- did you ever tell Brian you

wanted him out of the house?
Ho.

Did you ever tell Cheryl you wanted Brian out of the

Ho, I didn'e.

When Brian actually moved out of the house and got
the apartment, did he do that on hiz own?

A

Yas,
4] And then did Cheryl follow him to the apartment?
b Well she -- they went together, as far as I can

remember,

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

ne23n0



1o

il

12

13

14

15

1&

17

18

18

20

21

22

23

24

25

220

Q Ckay. Did you ever come to know Victoria Whitmarsh?

B

I met her cwice.

Q Okay. What were the gircumstances of that?

A Well one day -- I think it was twice. They came
over, and Brian washed clothes all day. And I visited with
Victoria. &and I can't remember the other time. But I think it
wa3 twice thar they were over thare.

Q Okay. From the time that you spent with her, would
you consider heyr to be a mesk person?

A Hot at all.

Q 0id you have -- were you able to form an cpinien
whether she was a submissive perscn?

A Definitely noc.

Q Did you ever see Brian threaten her when ghe was with
him,

A Mo, he created her --

Q Neo --

A -- great,

Q Ckay, Are you still friends with Brian today?

A Yesa.

L] Thank you, Dorothy.
MS. PALM: No more questions.
THE WITNESS: That'\s ali?
THE COURT: ©h, just -~

ME. PALM: That's all for ma,
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THE COURT: -- hang on, ma'am,
THE WITMNESS: O©Oh,
THE COURT: The districk attorney may have -- the
deputy district attorney --
THE WITNESE: Okay.
THE CQURT: -- may have some guestions for you.
THE WITKESS: Okay.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MR. LALLI:
2 Ma. Robe, just one question. Were you aware that Mr.

@'keefe actually was convicted and sent to prison for battering

Victoria? Did you know that? pnd just --

-1 Yes,

Q -- ¥ea3 or no. Okay. Poes that --

A Yeg,

o Does that change your opinion about how he treated
her?

A Ha,

Q Okay, thank you,
MR. LALLI: HNothing else.
THE COURT: Any redirect?
M5. PALM: No.
THE COURT: Any dquestions from any of the jurcrs? No
guestion=s, All right. 4Thank you, ma'am. You are excused.

THE WITNESS: Okay.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

002502




10

11

12

13

i4

15

1§

17

18

19

AQ

2k

22

23

24

45

222

THE COURT: Thank you very much.

THE WITNESS: MNow can I bhe in the audience?

THE COURT: No, you need to --

THE WITHE=SS: Oh.

THE COURT: -- leave the sourtroom,

THE WITHNEES: Okay. And sit gut there

{indiscernible} .

THE COURT: ©Be careful.

THE WITNESS: Okay. {Indiscernible) very shaky
today.

{Fanse in proceedings)

THE COURT: Do you have any other witnesses for
today, Ms. Falm?

MS. PALM: I do not, Your Honor. My witnesses -- the
rest of them are lined up for tomorrzow morning.

THE COURT: Okay. Ladies and gentlemen, I've been
adviged by the attorneys that they will complete the
evidentiary portion af this trial tomorrow. We will have
deliberation tomorrow as well, But there are a coupla -- poma
more savidence that will be presented to you as part of this
Erial.

Because of your service last week and this week, and
we should be getting inko closing zrguments tomorrow, the Court
will provide your lunch for tomorrow. Okay.

During this evening receas, it is your duty mot ta
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converse among yourselves, or with anyone else on any subject
connecked with this trial. ©Or ta read, watch or listen to any
report of or commentary on the trial by any perscon connected
with the trial, or by any medium of infarmation, ineluding
without limitation, newspaper, televizion, radio, or the
internat. You are not to form or express an cpinion on any
subject connected with this case until this matter is submitted
Lo you,

Before I give you the exact time, can I have coungel
approach, pleage?

{Off-recozd bench conference}

THE COURT:; All right. Ladies and gentlemen, we'll
resume tomorrow at 9:45. I do have a lengthy calendar
tomorrow, and I hope to be able to get it through for a -- we
may be a few minutes late. But I'm shooting for $%:45 tomorrow.
S50 we'll ses you back 9:45. Please have a safe drive home.

{Outside the presence of the jury}

THE COURT: All right. HWe're outside the presence of
the jury panel. And State, T think you say you just need ta go
run back to your cffice to get your jury instructions?

MR. LALLI: Yes, air.

THE COURT: And Ms. Paim, do you have those with you
today?

M. PALM: I do, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right. As sgon as everyone's ready,
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we can hash out the inetructicns.

ME. LALLI: Thank you. You want to do that in
chambers first? Or how does -- I'm not sure how ==+

THE COURT: Yeah, let's do that,

MR. LALLI: =-- the (ourt does thar.

THE COURT: And we can --

MES. PAIM: TI'm sorry., how much time do we have before
we do that?

THE COURT: Whatever you need. Whatever --

M5. PALM: HNo, I mean --

THE COURT: -- both sides nead.

M3. PALM: I'm just going to talk to her for a minute
cutsida,

THE COURT: How long will it take vou?

MS. PALM: He has to go get his instructioms, right?

THE QOURT: About ten minutes, Mr. Lalli?

MR. LALLI: Yeah, at the most,

MS. PAIM: Okay.

THE COURT: All rightr,

{Court recessed at 5:27 p.m., until Tuesday,

add

Adugust 21, 2010)
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LAS VEGAS, NEVADA, TUESDAY, AUGUST 31, 2010, AT 10:15 A.M.
{Outside the presence of the jury}.

THE MARSHAL: A&ll right, let's come to order and make
sure ocur cell phones are turned off, please.

THE COURT: Where's our defendant? Okay. We're on
the record, Michelle?

THE COURT RECORDER: Yes, we are.

THE COURT: All right, we're outside the presence of
the jury panel. Mr. Lalli, during the conference with you and
Ma. Palm in chambers, vou advised me of a sicuakcion on the
elevator. If you could put that on the record, please.

MR. LALLI: Yes. Your Honor, this moring I was
coming up to the 1lth floor on the elevator and I entered a
crowded elevator, and there were & number of pecple on it, one
of whom was Debra Ratanapool {phonetic), Jury No. 6, I beliasve.

On the way up to the 1lth floor two attorneyvs, Jeanie
Wa (phonetic) and Dan Winder were on the elevator having a
disgussion between themselves. And at one point Mr. Winder,
and certainly am not zuggesting was intentional or anything of
chat nature, but Mr, Winder lockad at me and he zaid words to
the effect, T understand you're in trial. 2pd I said, yes.

And he said, I believe you're doing that with Trish, reference
to Ms. Palm, and I gaid, yes. And he -- he menticned something
about he was supposed to cone see part of it or wakbch partc of

the trial. And then he said the defendant's pame. He said
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G'Keefe, I think that's a retrial or I heard rhat's a retrial
or it is a retrial. Certainly he said something audible about
2*'Keefe and retrial.

And as soon as he did that, I immediately placed my
finger to my lips in the be quiet sort of gesture without
saying anything to either confirm or deny it. And he
acknowledged that. And my concern is that Ms. Ratanapcol migh
have heard it. And if she did, you kuow, there's always the
possibility that she might have disclosed something to another
juror, so obvicusly I'we got an ethical obligation to disclose
that to the court. And it would be our request that Mas.
Fatanapool just come in and perhaps be gquestioned by the court
on a, did she hear anything, what did she hear, and did she
disclose it to jurors.

THE COURT: Righr.

ME. LALLI: And then depending on what she says, the
court at some point would have to make 3 determination to
whether she were still fit to be on the jury.

THE COURT: Anything te add, Ms. Palm, because I'm
going to bring her in?

MS. PALM: Not at this point. We'll wait wuneil
after --

THE CCURT: Yeazh.

MS. PALM: -- bhecause I still need to talk te Mr.

O'Kaafe about ir.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT
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THE COURT: Okay, well, can we -- I can bring -- I'm
going to bring her in right new.

MZ. PALM: Yes, mo -~

THE COURT: All right,

M5. PAIM: -- that's fine.

THE COURT: Miss, what is it, how do you promounce
her name?

THE MARSHAL: HNo. 6, Ratanapool.

THE COURT: Ratanmapeol. Bring just her in., All
right, Cliff. Morning, Ms. Ratanapocl.

JUROR NHO. 6: Good morning.

THE COURT: We called you in here, vou're not in
trouble, okay,

JURCR NCO. &: Okay.

THE COURT: All right, you look a little nervous.
This morning when you were coming up to the ilth floor Mr,
Lalll saw you in cne of the elevators.

JUROR NO. 6: (Indiscernible).

THE COURT: And he mentioned to me and to Ms. Balm
chat eome atterneys, other attorneys were in the elevator and
they may have spoke to Mr. Lalll or may have made some comments
about this case. Did you coverhear anything?

JURCR NO. 6: The oply thing I know that happened,
which I thought of like after I said it, I was scanding next to

a lady that probably worked in the coure, I think, she had a

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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very young.

newborn baby, four-week-old baby, and we were in the middie gof
two ladies. Darling little baby next to me, like I said, wvery,
She had her -- the baby had her necklace, her
chain necklace in her hend, and all I said was because 1 know
we're not supposed te say anyching, but I said it, and then I

thought oh, I'm not supposed to talk to anybody, she's got your

And that's all I heard.

necklace. And that's all I said.

{Indiscernible) . I thought well (indiscernibie) newborn baby
and she's got the necklace in her hand, and I just -- that's

all I said and that's all I heard and that's it.

THE COURT: Did you overhear any conversations with

anyone else in the slevator?

JURQRE NGO, 6: Ho, I did not.

THE COURT: Did you overhear any conversatlons

involving M. Falli?

JURCGR NO.

No .

G:

THE CQURT: Not directed at you, directed at anybody

JURCR NO., 6: No.

THE COURT: Did you hear anyone --
JUROCR NO, 6: I just -- I just thought to myself I

shouldn't talk, I'm not supposed to.

THE CQURT: Okay. Did vou hear anyone else direct a

conversation to Mr. Lalli?

JURQR NO. 6: I really wasn't listening to anybody

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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i troubhle.

that's all.

questions?

I was thinking I wasn't supposed to talk, and I just

THE CQURT:

JUROR NO, 6:
THE COURT:
JURDE NGO, 6£:

THE COURT:

JUROR MO, &:

THE COURT:

JUROR NO. 8:

THE COURT:

MR. LALLI:

Well, talking to someone with a baby,

You're not in -- no, that's --

Ckay.

Ho, if there's a cute baby in the

hear anything regarding this casge?

Ng.

Ckay, Mr. Lalli,

No questions.

21

25

evidence of this case,

THE COURT:

PALM:

Ms.

THE COURT:

questisns with the jurors.

JURGQR NO. 6:

None,

Ms. Fal

Okay.

Ckay.

thanks .

Oh, no, okay.

Noc oh, all right.

elevator, that's -- that's fine, okay.

m?

And Ms.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

that's ckay, s you're not talking about the case.

¥ou jusk can't talk about the case,

Eatanapcol,

right here are -- you know, have nothing to do with the

go I direct you not to discuss these

But you -- you didn‘c

Youtzre not

do you have any

this igsue's




1 THE COURT: All right, Why don't you have a seat

2 | outside, and we'll call everybody in in just a minute.

3 JURDR NO, #: All right.

4 THE COURT: Okay, thank you,

g JURQOR HO. &6: Thank you.

6 THE MARSHAL: Do we know probably how loing the jury
7| ingtructions will be so --

8 THE COURT: We're not going to do them right now,

9 THE MARSHAL: -- {indiscernible} get coffee ar --

10 THE COURT: MNo, we'll start with the testimony

11 | because we're ready. Ms. Palm, do you have anpything regarding
12 | this juror?
i3 MS. PALM: WMo, your Honor.

i4 THE COURT: ({Indiscernible}? Okay. And at this time
15 | gince the State hasg rested, I'm going to give vour client the
16 | Carter instruction., Mr. O'Keefe, gan you please listen very
17| carefully.

1B Under the Constitution of the United States of
19 | America and the Constitution of the State of Mevada, you cannot
20 | be compelled to testify in thiaz case. Do you understand that,
21 | air?
22 THE CEFENDANT: Y¥Yes, your Honor.

23 THE COQURT: All right. Y¥ou may at your own reguest
24 | give up that right apd take the witness stand and testify. If
25 | you do, you will be subject to cross-examinaticon by cne of the

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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deputy district attorneys, and anything that you may say, be it
on direct from -- question from Ms. Palm or on
crosg-examination will be the subject of fair comment when you
deputy district attorney speaks to the jury in final argument.

Do you understand thak, sir?

THE DEFENDANT: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: If you choose not to testify, the court
will not permit the distriet attornays to make any comment to

the jury because you have nof testified. Do you understand

gir?

that,

THE DEFENDANT:

YTees, your Honor.

THE COURT: If you elect not ta testify, the court
will instruct the jury, but only if your attorney specifically

The law does not compel a defendant in a

requests as follaows:
c¢riminal case to take Cthe stand and testify and no presumption
may be raised and no inference of any kind may be drawn from a
failure of a defendant to testify. Do you understand chat,

gir?

THE OEFENDANT: Yes, your Hooor.

Do you have any guestions

THE COURT: Okay.

regarding these rights I've just advised you of7?

THE DEFENDANT :

HGo, your Honer.

THE COURT: Qkay. If you have a felony conwviction

within the last ten years, sir, the distriect attorney, if you

take the stand, can inguire or your attornmey can as far as

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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whether or not you've baen caopvicted of a felony., what was the
felony and when did it happen. Do you understand that, sir?

THE DEFEMDANT: Yes, your Honor.

THE COURT: Okay. Ms. Palm, does your client have
any prior felony convictions that you've adviesd him about?

M3. PALM: He does, your Henor, and I have advized
him.

THE COURT: oOkay. ALl right, amything slse before we
call the jury? Ey the defense?

MS. PALM: No.

THE OQURT: By the State?

MR. LALLI: Mo, your Honor.

TBE COUET: All right.

MR, LALLI: Thank you,

THE COQURT: PBring the jury ino and call ¥Ms. Palm's
witness.

MS. PALM: Mr, Burger.

THE COURT: Mse. Palm, total witnegssas time wise o I
can schedule lunch.

MS. PALM: Gosh, these witnesseg are all really
short. But I can tell you the last cne's not going to be here
until 11:40, sc -- and he's probably going to be a 20 minute
wicness.

THE COURT: Okay.

THE CLERK: (Indigcernible).

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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i MS. PALM: Paisanoc.

2 THE COURT: Ms. Palm, and I understand if for

3 | tactical reasons you haven't made a decision yet or I don't

4 | know if you're able to tell me whether or not your client's

5| going to take the stand. I'm just trying to schedule the lunch
6 | for cthe jurors to order lunch.

7 MS. PATM: And your Honor, I'm just trying to talk to
8| him about it right now.

g THE COURT: Okay, all right, And if you feel that

10 | would effect your tact as a trial strategy, then feel frae to
11 | #ay you haven't decided yet, okay.
1z ME. PALM: Okay. I haven't decided at this exact

13 | moment,

14 THE QOURT: Okay. 0Officer, could you catch our

15 | marshal and ask bim to inguire from the jurcrs if rhere's

16 | anyone wvegetarian.

17 THE CORRECTIONS COFFICER: ({Indiscernible).

13 THE COURT: Yeah.

15 {Fause in the procesdings).

20 THE COURT: Are we ready, CLiff?

21 THE MARSHAL: We'res ready, but I know we're waiting

£2 | on something.

23 THE COURT: What? VNo, we're ready to go.
24 MS. PALM: Can we approach --
25 THE COURT: All tight.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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Departmant 17 jurcrs.

please.

MS. PAIM. -

THE MARSHAL:

THE MARSHAL:

Let's make sure cell phones are turned off, please.

THE {COURT:

M5. PALM:

14

22

please, sir,

first nams=.

THE COURT:

We've called some witnesses alrsady.

THE MARSHAL:

THE MARSHATL:

microphone and place gcate and spell your name for the rscord.

THE WITHESE:

THE COURT:

ME. PALM:

PALM:

{Cff-Tecord bench conference) .

{In the preseare of the juryl.

(Off -Tecord bench conference) .

Tracy Burger.

FRaise your right hand and face the clerk.

TRACY BURGER, DEFENDANT'S WITNESS, SWORN

Lapt name, Burger, B-u-r-g-e-r.

Thank you.

Good morning, Mr, Burger.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPY

- while we're waiting.

Officers and members of the court,

FPlease be seated, ladies and gentlemen.

All righk, Mz, Palm, your first witnegs,

Actually, if‘s nort your first witness.

Mr. Burger, if vou'll remain standing,

Slide up te the

Please have a seat.

My name is Tracy Burger, T-r-a-c-y

Go ahead, Ms. Palm.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
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Q
A

Morning.

Can you tell che jury how you're employed, sir?
Well, presently I'm unemployed.

Ckay. How were you employed in November of 20087

I was the labor superintendent for MJ Dean

Construction (phonetic).,

Q
A
o
A

Q

Ckay. And where i= that company located?
Lae Vegas, Nevada.

And do you know Brian O'Keefe?

I de.

And could you tell ths jury where he's seated and

what he's wearing, if he's in here today?

A

gSirting at the table there with a black tie -- or

biue tie and black suit.

Q

Thank you.
M3. PALM: May the court reflect the identificaticn?
THE COURT: Yesg, it will.

MS. FALM: Thank you.

BY MS5. BALM:

Q
A
Q
A
Q
A

And did Mr. O'Keefe ever work for you?
Yes, he did.

How waa it he -- he came to your employment?
He was dispatched through the labor's union.
What labor's union ig thak?

Local B72.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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13
o Qkay. Was he an apprentice?
A At that time, he was, yes,
0 Okay. Are all your employees union members?
A Yem, yas.
o And did he work for you from about November 2007 to
July 20087

A Yes, he did,
Q Ckay. Was it full time?
. Yes, it was.

4] Do you recall November 5th of 2008 speaking with Mr.

O'Heefe?
A I do.
Q Okay. Was -- what kind of -- was that a telephone

call, in person, what?
A Yeah, Brian it telephoned me.
Okay. Do you recall what time?

A It was in -- in the afterncon around 3:00-c'clock or
go, maybe a few minutes after. 23:00, 3:1%, somewhere in that
aresa,

Q Okay. Do you know what he wanted?

A He was --

M3. GRAHAM: Objection. Hearsay.
THE COURT: Sustained.
BY M5. PALM:

Q Do you know what the purpose of his phone call was?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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BY M5.

o

A
normal.

Q
A

Q
A
9]

have any hope of going back to work for you?

A

Q

CALM

laid off or --

Well, yeah, he inguired -- he had recently been laid

MS., GRAHAM: Objection. It calls for hearsay.

THE COURT: Sustained.

Did you know Mr. O'Keefe's employment zituaction?

Yes, 1 did.

I -- yes,
What was it?

Well, he was unemployed as far as working for Mg

Okay,

Yeah, I assumed he was unemployed.

Ckay. And how was work going with MJ Dean at the

It -- it was slow. It was very slowed compared to

Okay. ©&o when you say he was unemployed, he had been

Dh, yeah, Brian had been reduction in force.
Qkay.
Had been downsized.

Okay. As a result of the phone call, did Mr. O'Keefe

Yeah, yeah Brian was eligible for rehire.

Okay.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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until the

NEWSPADET ,

(indlscernible) .

MS. PALM:

THE WITNESS: Um-h'm.

THE COQURT: Any cross-examination?

MS. GRRHAM: HNo, Judge.

THE COURT:

THE WITHNESS: All right,

THE COURT: Thank you, sir.

Ms. PALM:

THE COURT: All right.

ME. DALM:

THE COURT: Okay.

next witness shows up.

televisicn, radio or the Internek.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

No furthar guestions, thank you, sir.

Any questions from any of the jurors?

All righk, thank you, Mr. Burger, for your testimony.

Hext witness for the

My next witness would be Chelaea Collins

¥Your Honor, she's actually scheduled for

All right, ladies and gentleman,
what we'll do is we'll just take a guick -- I know you just sat

down, but we're just going to btake a recess for kten minutes

During this recess, it is your duty not toe converse
among yourselves or with anyone elze on any subject connected
with this case or to read, watch or listen to any report of or
commentary on the trial by any person connected with the crial

or by any medium of informatien, Including without limitation,

You are

¥ou are

not to
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form or express an opinion on any subject connected with the
case until this matter is submitted o you. We'll see you back
approximately 10:30.
{Cutside the presence of the jury).

MR. LALLI: Do you want to work on jury instructions?

THE COURT: Yeah, let's do that. Let we go get my
package. Do you have -- evaryone have their copy of
instructions? BAnd the State was going to amend some of the
instructions.

ME. LALLI: Yes. And I did send those Lo the court.

THE COURT: You did?

MR. LALLI: Y¥e¢ah, I --

MS. GRAHAM: They were e-mailed, Judge?

ME. LALLI: They were e-mailed both to you and your
secretary.

THE COURT: It you get & copy of those?

MS. PALM: Mo, I mean, I don't have --

THE COURT: What I'll do ig I'll print out --

MS. PALM: A copy.

THE COURT: ~-- I'll princ ouk a couple copies right
now .

MS. PALM: Okay, thank you.

THE CODRT: 1Is5 that to my e-mall or to the law clerk?

{Court recessed at 10:21 a.m. to 10:32 a.m.}.

{Cuteide the presence of the juryl.
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THE COURT: All right, State had provided additional
instructiong over the evening or this morning. Do you have a
cocpy of those Ms. Falm?

M2. PALM: I bhave the actual danger or the killing is
justified and the statements of the defandant .

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, the actual danger --

THE COURT: Yes.

MR, LALLI: Ya&s5 we've already offered that. 8o it
was just included in the -- in the small group that I sent, but
ie's already -- it's already being offered. So the court can
disregard ic.

THE COURT: Okay.

M5. PALM: Well, and, your Homor, I which with
respect to that one, he sent over bwo instructions, and it was
my understanding last night you were going to butt them on one
page because otherwise the killing is justified does not make
senge.

TEE COURT: 1 thought we were going Lo put them con
the same page.

MR. LALLI: My impression wag actually just the
opposite, your Honpor,

THE CQOURT: OQh, maybe --

MR. LALLI: This was the -- the separate portion, and
just to recall the court, we were locking at the court's

version of Runion of that case, and the court had actually

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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written in his -- in his -- in his book and had them all as
separate instructions and -- and I commented that yeah, that's

how they ought to be given. So they were supposed to be

10

15

17

22

separate.
I indicated that I would put that instruction into my
format so that it matched the other instructions.

M5. PALM: And that's pot my memory at all, your

THE COURT: I'm BorYy?

It was

MS. PALM: That's not the way I rememberad.

goling to be one instruction.

THE COORT: Ckay. But the actual language, you --

neither party has any objection; is that corcect?

MS. BAIM: N,

It's taken

MR, LALLI: We d¢ not., your Heonor.
directly from Runion.

THE COURT: Actually, I think second thought it does
read better if it's in cone imstruction. 8o we'll just do that.
5o de you have any objectign to the giving of that instruction.

Me. Falm?

MS., BALM: No, your Honor,

THE COURT: And there's another inetrucktion,
statements by the deferndant made to homicide detective.
MS. PALM: And I will point out to the court that my

alternative instruction's on Page 25 of my proposed

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT
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instructions. I object to State's instruction. It does not
include the language about voluntarineas reguires a act be a
product of ratiocnal intellect and free will. That's been the
cage law for 2z long time in Wevada., That's under Fassima
{phonetic], and it's -- I believe that's zlso cited in the

Rosky case, which I have on my instruction.

In additicn, they don't mention intoxicatbion at all.
And there's plenty of case law on intoxication effecting
somebody's ability to give a voluntary statement. And the
second paragraph of my propeosed ipstruction balks about that a
defendant's intoxication will make a stat=ment inadmissible
only 1f the accused is intoxicated to the extent of being
incapable of understanding of the meaning of his comments.
That is the case law in Nevada.

Their instruction doesn't mention intoxicaticon and
for that reason, I don't believe it's a proper instruction.

THE COURT: All right.

MR, LALLI: Well, I -- flirat --

THE CCURT: Hang -- actually, can you hang on one
gecond, Mr., Lalli.

{(Pause in the procesdings }.

THE COURT: Go ahead, Mr. Lalli, I'm sorry.

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, Ms. Palm cited two cases as
Bupport for this instruction. And I can tell the court I've

never gsen anything like thiszs kbefore. And when we were

BOULGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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discussing these last night, I indicated that I wanted te read
the cases. And these cases say nothing whatsoever of voluntary
intoxication, nothing. They're not veluntary intoxication
Cases .,

But they do talk abeut voluntariness. 2And the
instruction that we proposed ino lieu of the original
voluntariness instruction that we proposed is raken verbatim
from the case that she cites to, which is the Rosky case,
R-0-8-k-y versus State. It's cited at 121 Mevada 184, a 2005
Cagsa.,

And I'll just read werbatim Erom that csse. The
prosecution has the burden of proving by preponderance of the
evidence that the stabement was voluntary., A confessicn is
involuntary if iv wa# coerced by physical incimidation oz
peychological pressure., Several factors are relevant in
declding whether a suspect statement -- statements ars
voluntary. The youth of the accused, his lack of education or
hie low intelligence, his lack of any advice of constitutional
rights, the length of detention, the repgated and prolonged
nature of guestioning, and the use of psychological -- I'm
gsorry, the use of physical punishment, such as the deprivation
of food or sleep. A suspect's pricr experiance with law
enforcement is also relevant -- is aleo a relevant
consideration.

Eo that is verbatim the instruction that we're

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT
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offering. What the @efendant's instruction does is it blows
voluntary intoxication or intoxicatison way out of proporticn to
anything else. And so I suppose if the court wanted to add in
thieg laundry list of things that -- that can be considered
intoxication or voluntary intoxication or -- or -- or howewver,
certainly that would be fine,

But we're entitled to instruct the jury that they can
congider things like whether he was advised of his
constitutional rights, his age, whether there was physical
force here, whether he has any experience in the criminal
justice system, which Rosky specifically says is relevant.

None of those factors that are listed in Rosky are
centained within the instruction that is purported to be
supported by Rosky. These two really don't mirror each other
at all, Nor do they mirror Laursen, L-a-u-r-5-8-n versug
State, 97 Nevada 568, a 1981 case, which are listed as support
for the instruction.

8¢ certainly the defendant is enticled to have the
issue of voluntariness considered by the jury. The guestion is
how do we instruct on it? And I don't think you can go wromg
clting language that is specifically been approved or -- or the
-- & holding of the Mevada Supreme Court. Not some bastardized
version that overly emphasizes aspects of this case.

THE COURT: Anything further, Ms. Palm?

MsS. PALM: I wouldn't object to adding in the lack of

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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advice of constitutional rights and prior experience with law
enforcement.. In my instruction it does say experience with the
criminal justice syetem. But I did take that language being
incapable af understanding the meaning of his comments directly
from a cage. I believed it wag Rosky or Laursen, I'm trying to
get on Lexus right now to find -- verify that or not.

MR, LALLI: Here.

MS. PALM: No, I'm going to do a search for thar
language. I'm having a little trouble hooking up with Lexus.
That is from a cage in Nevada. I just can't get onto Lexus
right now.

THE COURT: Mell, I -- I've pulled the cases, and the
cageg don't provide .- about the dafandant's intoxication as
you've set forth. That's not identified in Rosky, Ms. Falm.
{Indiecernible) paragraph two where the instruction lista
various factors for the jury to look at, if we added in there
intoxication.

MS. PALM: HWell, I think the jury still needs to be
giving the test of how -- how to consider intoxication., And
I'm sorry, if I could get on Lexus, I'd do a search for just
that language from that teat, but I cannot. I megan, I -- I
have no objection bto addiog intoxicaticn in there, Bur I alsc
want product of raticnal intellect and free will.

THE COURT: Say it again which words are you

requesting. The product of --

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT




1 MS. PALM: Voluntariness under the law requires that

the act be a product of ratiomal intellect and free will.

I'm -~ I'm not sure that -- fras will

MR. LALLI:

certainly is an issues related to voluntariness. Rational

intellect, I think is more an isszue of whether there was a

valid waiver, which is a different issue. So I would certainly

lLike to see a cage that stands for that propositicn. And if --

if Counsel needs some time to find one --

MS. PALM: Well, I --

ME. LALLI: -- I -=-

It's Papgima. I bpelisve it's cited in

ME. PALM:

12 | just about every case. T will find it right now.

But -- but I have some obvious concerns

MR. LALLI:

with the cne that is proffered.

THE COURT: Tell us when you find it, Ms. Palm.

16 MS. FALM: All right. Well, it is -- it is eited in

just about every caee. But I will give you Chambers versus

State cites to Passima. Passima is a 103 Nevads 212 at 213,

214.

20 THE COURT: MNow, if you had a -- let Mr. —- do you

mind if Mr. Lalli loocks on your scresn sc he can see the

gpecific language f£rom the case?

MZ, PBALM: Sure. It's a litrle bit slow. A

confegzion is inadmissible unless freely and voluntary given.

In order bta be voluntary confession must hre the product of

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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raticnal and intellect and of free will.

2 ME. LATLLI: That language is there, your Honor. I --

I den't oppose adding it to my proffered instruction and adding

in intoxication as something that a jury can consider.

5 TEE COURT: S Ms. Palm, beyond just intoxication,

what are you regquesting?

7 MS. PALM: Well, I'm -- I wanted the teat incapable

That might have -- okay, well, it is from

o¢f undersranding.

Bosky, all right.

10 THE COURT: Which page? I have the case in front of

M5. PALM: Juat a minute,

THE COURT: Or which head note?

14 ME. PALM: I'm btrying to forward to the -- T have to

wait until the little tag comes up. Ckay. It is footnote 29

and FPage 6397 of the Pacific Reporter.

THE COURT: Do vou have thac, Mr. Lalli? I de have

the cas= here.

MH. LALLI: T do.

20 THE COURT: It cites to Kirskesy.

21 THE MARSHAL: (Indlscermible).

22 THE COQURT: Okay. Mr. Lalli, your position.

23 ME. LALLY: Well, in my review of the case, your

Honor, I did not -- I did not see this foortnobte reference to

Kirskey. The court's legal discussiotn ended in the previous
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paragraph. So the -- in Ms. Palm's inscruction, starting at
line 12, where it says a defendant's intoxication would make a
statement inadmissible gnly if the accused is intexicated to
the extent of being incapable of understanding the meaning of
his comments.

I think under the -- under the Kirskey, ¥-i-r-g-k-e-y
case, 1 think she is entitled ko that. However, the last
sentence is merely a restatement of the first sentence, which
overly emphasizes the -- the need of the -- of the jury to
consider this. So I don't oppose adding intoxication as one of
the things that the jury can consider, as well as free will
lanquage and this first sentenge,

8o if -- if «- I know we‘re probably going to receive
some testimeny. IE the court wants me to work on that while
wa're -- york on further modifications, I can do that.

THE COURT: Yeah, that's what I'm going to do, Ms.
Falm, because I -- I think the other language is mot -- is not
really esppropriate. The language from Kirskey and also where
it saye a product of rational intellect and free will ie going
L2 be included. Can we do that into one instructicon, Ms,. Palm?
The cne that's already proposed?

M5. PALM; You're going to add in both ratienal
intellect and free will?

THE COURT: Yes.

M. PALM: and -- and that language?
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THE COORT: Yes.

MS. PAIM: I mean, that does make the instruction
better. I guess, you know, it says before the jury may take
such statements inte congideration, s I guess that fixes it.

THE COURT: BSee, it's on line 7 of the jury's -- of
the State, several fackors and thessa two items will be listred
as -- as fagtors.

MS, PATM: Well, I -- I don't want it as a fackor. I
want it as it must be --

MR. LALLI: Right.

MS. PALM: -- the way I have it, wvoluntariness
requires. I want that sentzncs in there.

TEE CQURT: Can we just add those as paragraphs three
and four, Mr. Lalli?

ME. LALLI: Well, what I -- what I -- what I would --
what I would suggest is starting on line 5 of my propased
instruction, where it gaye a statement is involuntary if it was
coerced by physical intimidation or psychelegical pressure.
Voluntarineas under the law reguires that the act be the
product of rational intellect and free will added in chat
paragraph. Several factors are relevant in deciding whether a
suspect's statements are involuntary, the youth of the accused,
I would afdd whether the accuses was intoxicated and then --

THE COURT: To the extent of being incapable of

understanding, et cetera.
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M5. PALM: W=ll --

MR. LALLI: Well, then I would at -- at -- at the end
of it, the defendant:s intoxication will make a etatement
inadmissible only if the aocused iz intoxicated to the extent
of being incapsble understanding the meaning the -- the meaning
of hie comments. So I'd put that whole sentence that ghe
proffers in her instruction into this instruction.

THE COURT: And is it paragraph three?

MR, LALLI: Tt'g -~- yvesg.

THE COURT: All right, Ma. Palm, what I'm going to do
iz T think -- I think it fite. Sa that firet part where you
have voluntariness under the law requires --

ME. PAIM: Yes,

THE COURT: -~ okay, that will he inserted at line &
of the State's proposed instruction. And the sentence starting
at line 12 and ending line 14 will be paragraph three of that
instruction.

MR. LALLI: Would the court like me --

MS. PALM: Yes.

MR. LALLI: -- to put that together?

THE COURT: Yeah, if you could 4o that.

ME. LALLT: Yas.

THE COURT: All right. I think you have your
wicnesses here, 80 let's call them in. Where's Cliff?

{Fause in the proceedings) .
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{In the presence of the jury).

THE MARSHAL: Officers and members of the court,

Department 17 jurors. You may be seated, ladiee and gentlemen.

Let's make gure gur cell phones are turned off, please,
THE COURT: The next witness iz Chelsea Collins.

Ms. BALM: Yes, your Honor,

THE MARSHAL: Chelsea. Stap up here to the witness

stand, raise your right hand, remain standing and face the
clerk,

CHELSEA COLLINS, DEFENDANT'S WITNESS, SWORN

THE CLERK: Fleazs be seated. State and spell your

name for the record.
THE WITNESS: Chelsea Collins, C-h-e-l-g-e-a,
C-o-1l-1-1-n-8.
THE COURT: &0 ahead, Ms. Palm.
MS. FALM: Thank you.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY M5. PALM:
(o] Good morning, Ms, Collins.
A Good morping.
¥ Can you please tell the jury how you'rTe employsd?
A I'ma crime scéne analyst two with the Las Vegae
Metropclitan Police Department,
Q and how long have you had that position?

A Four and a half years.
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1 Q Were you working in that capacity in the early

2 | morning hours of November 6th, 20087

E| a I wasg.

4 Q Did you respond to 5001 E1 Pargue?

L A ¥Yes.

g L, hnd were you working with another crime scene analyst

7| at that location?

A A Yes.

g Q Who was that?

10 P Jocelyn Maldonado.

11 o] Can you explain your respective roles that morming.
12 A I was responsible for doing the photography of the
13 | scene, and ehe was responsible for the collection of the

14 | evidence and doing a diagram,

15 ] Okay. And how does it work when you're doing the

16 | photography? D[o you walk with her or separately or --

17 A Ko, not necessarily together. Initially the

18 { photographer goes in and takes pictures of the entire scens the
19 | way it's found. And then generally later we'll work together
20 | when she's ready to collect the svidence and it will be

21 | photographed before she picke it up.

22 Q Okay. And do the detectives direct you at all in

23 | what they want photographed?

24 A They will gometimes have things that they want

2% | photographed. We work together with them.
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g Okay. Did they direct you to a vehicle at that
locakticn?
A Yes, they did.
M5, PALM: May I approach the witness?
THE COURT: Yesg,
MS. PALM: Have you seen this already?
MR. LALLI: I think so. {Indiscernible}.
BY MS5. PAIM:
Q I'm showing you Defendant's Proposed Exhibit
quadruple X, gquadruple ¥, gquadruple Z and Five As. I -- I'm
not sure how you say that. Sin co As. Do you recognize what

thoee are?

A Yeg, I do.
5] Ie that the car that you photographed --
A Yes, it is.
o -- that morning?
A Yes,
ME. PRLM; Y¥Your Honoxr, I would move to admit those
exhibits.

MR. LALLI: No cbjection.
THE COURT: They'll be admitted.
(Exhibics XXXX, ¥YY¥Y, ZZZZ, ARARAR admitted} .
BY M3. PAIM:
] Okay. Showing you BARAA. Can you tell the jury what

that depicts?
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A

the vehicle.

Q

tzke the photographe of the car?

3

Q

renter congole, cencexr area?

A

Q

glageseg?

A

Q

checked the photographe?

F.
Q
A
Q

A

through the claosed windows.

Q

~— interior of the wvehicle?

A

31

That's a view of the front aseat, the front area of
Okay. And wag that seat reclined when you went to

Yas, it was.

Okay. Does that appear to be some glasses in the

Yes,

Did you check inside to see what was in those

I did not open the vehicle.

Okay. Bo you didn't move anything around when you

That's correct.

Did you check them from outside the vehicle.
Yan.

You didn't have to cpen the door?

Ho, the windows were closed and they were taken
Ckay. And guadruple Z, is that apnother view the in

Yes, it is.
Okay. And quadriple Y, what is that photograph?
The exterior of the vehicle.

Okay. And I believe I had cne more.
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BPRALM:

MS. PALM: Court's indulgence.

THE COURT: All right.

(FPause in the progeedings) .

M5. PALM: T don't think I had her identify this. It

Do you recogoize this?

Yes, I do,

Is that a photograph ¢f -- of the car -- the same var

Yes.

MS. PAIM: 1 would move to admit thia document,

ME. LALLT: I cthink it's five e's or --

M5. PALM: Five Es,

THE COURT: All right.

MR. LALLI: Mo objection.

It will be admitted.

THE COURT:

(Exhibit EEEEE admitted) .

that's the rear of the car?

And

Yee.

Okay. Can you tell what's in that back window of the
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Q

arrived at

A AL 1Z:34 a.m,

e

the car and do anything, you would have donme what?

A

likely, And then afrer that you mean?

o Yeos .
A The -- the --
MR. LALLI: I'm going to object. This calls for
Epeculaticn.

BY MS. PALM:

Q

inaide the interior of the vehicle, were you?

A

Q

Questions.

you excuse

33

Ckay. And -- and do you remember what time you

the scene?
Okay. And if detectives had wanted you to open up

Well, we would have waited for a search warrant most

THE COIRT: Sustained.

Well, no -- no -- 50 you weren't ever directed to go

That's correct, I was not.

Okay.

M5. FALM: Thank you. No further gquestions,

THE COURT: Cross-examination?

ME. LALLT: ¥No, your Honor.

THE COURT: Any guestions from any of the jurors? No
Thank you, you are -- thank you for your testimony,

d.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: MNext witness for the defense.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

nn2540




14

15

MS. PALM: That would be Bob Paigano.

{Pauge in the proceedings).
THE MARSHAL: Step up here to the witness stand,
remain standing, raise your right hand and face the clerk.

ROBERT FRANCIS PATSAND, DEFENDANT'S WITNESS, SWORN

THE CLERK: Please be seated. State and gpell your

name for the record.

THE WITNESS: FHRebert Francis Paisano, P-a-i-s-a-n-o.

PALM:

M5,

May I proceed, your Honor?

THE COURT: Yes,

DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY M5. PALM:
Good morning, Mr. Paisanc.

Good morning.

Cant you please tell the jury how you're employed?

A = - I =

I'm in private practice as a chewical dependency

therapist.

18

i1

24

25

Q Ckay. B2And does part of your practice involve

glcoholism creatmenkt?

A

Yes,

Q Okay. And in your work capacity did you have the

gocecagsion to meet Brian Q'Eeefa?

A I did.

Yes,

Q Is he in the courtroom today?

A ¥Yes, he is.
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8] Could you please point to where he's seated and
describe something he's wearing,
A He's wearing a dark blazer with a blue tie, white
shirt, and he's sitting at the table to my left.
Q Thank you.
MS. PALM: Will the court reflect -- will the -- may
the record reflect identificatien?
THE COURT: Yeg, it will.
M5. PALM: Thank you.
HY M5, PALM:
Q How did Brian end up coming to you?
A He was referred te me by his union, or actually, he
-- he was a gelf-referral from hisg union.
o What doee that mean self-refearral?
A That mean he -- he talked to somebody at the union

about an issue that he was having, and they referred him toc me.

Q Okay., And did you give him an assessment --

A Yem, I did --

Q ~- at that time?

A Yez, I did.

u} What were the results of that?

A I gave him a diagnosis of alcohol dependency. The

devel would be severe, and that he wars in need of dstox at bhat

time.

Q Qkay, &And dié you send him to detox?
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g
A Yes, I did.
Q Ckay. And where did he go?
A Went to the Las Vegas Reg¢overy Center.,
9] Okay. wWhat happens after detox then?
A Afrer detox he returng back to me, and then we go in

an outpatient basis,

Q Okay. &2&nd how does the gutpatient basgis work?

A What we looked at was he had no prior treatment, so
what we put him inte was an intensive outpatient Etreatment
provess, and that was three days a week at three hours pexr
session. And then I saw him at least once a week during at
that period of time of six weeks.

[} Ckay. And -- and he's actually living out on his own
at that time?

F. Yeag,

e} All right. And tell -- can you tell the jury what
kind of background you need to be able to do the therapy that
you do?

A Well, you have to have extensive training and then
you have to have a graduate degree to be licensed.

Q And de you have those things?

Yes,
And you'xe licensed?

Yas, I am.

o v Qo @

Ckay. How, when Brian was coming to you for the
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aftercare, did you encourage him to involve support members of
his family or friends or how does that work?

h Anybody who we can utilize as a -- ag a support
network, we encourage the patient to have them involved.

Q Ckay, and did Brian have scmebody that he brought

with him?

A ¥Yes, he did.

Q Who was that?

A I'm not sure the person's name, but it was a young
lady .

o Would it be Victoria Whitmarsh?

y- Yes.

o Okay. And did you have a chance to meet with her?

A Briefly.

Okay. Did she attend with Brian?

£

¥ She attended the -- the IOP process and that was a
group gducation. She accompanied him at the individual therapy
sessions that we conducted, but she pever participated in the
therapy session.

] Okay. And did Brian attend his aftercare as he was
suppcsed to?

A Tes.

2 Now, did you have any information as to Victoria's
drinking pattern at that time?

B No, I did not.
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Q

drug abuse might interact wich aloohol?

A

0

BY HMS.

qQ
alcchol?
A
0]
source of
A

o

A

G

treatment

A

BALM -

Okay.

Yes.

Yea.
Okay .
ME. GRAHAM:
THE COUORT:
MS. PALM:

THE COURT:

If a person's taking drugs, should they mix them with

Ho,

Ckay.

problems for an individual in their regular life?

It generally interferes with the major areas of life.

All right,

it'e not recommended.

So you only knew her as a support person?

If -- do you have some experience in -- in how -- how

Objection. Relevance.

Overruled --

I'1il -- 111 move --

-- at this point.

Does being an alcoholic tend ta gause gther

Can you name those?

Employment,

Ckay.

sessions, d¢id they appear to be a couple?

Yes.

Ng.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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futuze?
ME. GRAHAM: Objection. Speculation,
THE COURT: Suftained.
BY ME. PALM:
Q Wers they affectionate with sach other?
¥ Yes.
o Did Brian give you a history of when his problem with

alecohel first started?

. He did, but I don't have any documentation im front
of me to -- to ¢ite any dates.

(o] Okay. Did you know any events in his life that it
related co?

A There wag some issues that came up during his
military service, and fellowing that the -- the increase Gf --
of alechel did start to take place.

Q Do you know whether he suffered from blackouts?

A I belisve --

ME. LALLI: I'm going to aobject, your Honor. Thie is
hearsay.
THE COURT: Sustained. Unless this witness
personally observed the blackout.
MS. FALM: Court's indulgence.
BY M5. PALM:
(9] Do you find that alecocholics often have relapse

igzuea?
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A Tes.
Q Do thay often minimize their ugse of alcohol?
A Yeag.

Q And why would people minimize their use of alcohol if
they're coming for help?
A A lot of times it's -- it's to decrease the severity

of the problem. It's part of the denial system.

Q Is denial part of being an alecholic?
A Yes.

Q And i alccholism a ¢hronic disease?
A Yes, it is.

ME. PALM: No further gquestions. Thank you.
THE WITHESS: Thank you.
THE COURT: (roes-sxamination.
MS. GRAHAM: Thank you, Judge.
CROSS -EXAMINATION
BY MS. GRAHAM:
Mr. Paisang, is -- lg Brilan Q'Keefe an alcocholic?
A Yes, he is.
[0 Okay. And you indicated that you had not read your

notes before coming here; 18 that correck?

A Yes.

Q2 S50 you don't -- do you recall when you treated Brian?
. I have no recollecticn of the date.

Q Okay. You indicated that he came to you as a
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A

gself-referral; isn't that right?

Tas.

Q But the truth is, sir, he was actually, he had to

apprentice
A

Q

proceeding
A

Q

working?

Q

A

Q

A
assessment

o]

Okay .

BY ME. GRAHAM:

I

?

Yes,

M5. PALM;

Ckay .

No,

Okay,

whether e was 2 self-referral?

I can because that's how it was on hig -- on him

form.

Okay.

~=- how does that work?

25

A

It's done in btwo parts.

izn't that correcc?
I'm not aware of that.

Do you recall testifying io a prior

THE WITNESS;

S50 you don't have yvour notes, sir?

I do nat.,

come for treatment or else he would have loat his job as an

Do you recall when agked whether or nokt Brian had
indicated that he had missed three days of work out of five,

and he had to seek alcohol treatment or he could not continue

Page number?

I'm -~ I'm not ¢clear on that,

B0 you don't -- you can't the say for sure

#nd tell me about that assessment form.

First we have initial
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agsgessment to identify problems and then we go into a more

extensive psychosocial process.

O'Keefe when he came to gsee you?

directly from Brian 0'Keefe; is that correct?

your assessment is basically self-reported; is that correct?

him would be anything that he decides to tell vou during that

asgsessment

problem, true?

diagnosis of him baged on your experience of, I believe, it was

And do you perform that assessment on -- on Brian

Yes.

And I ageume you ask a series of questions, true?

Yas.

And the answerg that are given to your guestions come

Yes,

Sc everything that Brian O'Keefe tells you during

Yes.

So essentially, what you're relying onto treat

Ckay.

ig that correct?

Yes,

And you indicated that he had a severe alcohol

Um-h'm,

Ckay, isn't it fact -- true, sir, that you did make a

Um-h'm.

THE COURT: Is chat a yes?
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MS. PALM: HNo objection.
THE COURT: It wiil be admitted.
{Exhibit 133 admitted)
BY MR. LALLI:
Q Who iz the parson who is the subliect of that

conviction?

Brian Kerry O'Keefe,

And what 12 the conviction for?

Battery, (indiscernible) or --

Consticuting?

Censtituting, sorry, domestic viclence, & category €

What was the date that the document was filed?
March 9th, 200s.
And was that cenviction pursuant to a jury trial?
Tes.,
And did you learn who the victim in that case was?
Yeg, I did.
Who wag that®

A Victoria Whitmarsh.

g Was that the same parson you investigated as a victim

a8 least in the homicide that you're here to testify about?
A Yes, sir.
C When you investigate a homicide came, do you do that

alane, or do you have a partner?
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Q

1

I have a partner assigned with me.
Who was your partner on this day?
On thia day is was Detective Christopher Bunn.

And is it uncommon for datectiwves to divige

reaponsibilities with respect to an investigation?

R

a

h

Hot at all.
How were responsibilities divided in this casa?

Detective Bunn worked the actual scene itgelf with

crime scene analysts, and I was assigned to interview Mr.

J'Keafe.

Q

What would cthe responsibllities be associated with

investigating a scene?

A

aceng.

He would go through, they would investigate the

They would make sure that the proper evidence was

collected, photographed, preserved, and work hand in hand with

the crime scene analyst.

Q

In this particular caee, that was not your primary

responsibiliity, crue?

A

Q
sguspecL?

A

Q
A
Q

Na, Bir.

¥ou indicated that your's was to interview the

Yes.
Okay. Did you in fact interview him?
Yes, I did.

Where did that interview ccceur’?
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171

A It tock place a2t the homicide offices lacated at
ODakey (phonetic] and Decatur.
Q S0 at some point cbviously, you left the crime sScene

and traveled to the homicide ocffice?

A Yes.

| How was the defendant brought to the homicide office?

A Ha was Lransported by & patrolman in a black and
white patrnl vehicle,

Q Okay. ¥While you were at the scene and perhaps again
at the homicide office, did you notice any cut marks on the
defendant's hand?

A Yes, T did.

4 I'm going to show you what we've marked and admitibed
asg State's Exhibir 62. Does that appear to you to be the

defendantts -- believe it's his righe hand?

A Yes.
Q What are we seeing there?
F. You're seeing a cut on the meaty part of the right

index finger.
Q You mentioned that about 25 percent of the 200 or so

cages you've investigated were stabbing cases?

¥ Yes, sir.
g Is it uncommon for people to get cut while stabbing
othara?
A No, it's net uncommen.
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3] How does that happen?

A it occurs when -- depending on their grip of the
knife and how they'ra gripping it. But usually they encounter
some gort of resistance when the knife hits the body, and their
fingers will slide up the handle angd hit the blade.

L] Okay. Now I want to btalk to you a little more about
your interview of the defendant, Specifically where in the
homicide office was the ilnterview canducted?

A We have interview rooms that are equipped for deing
such interviews as we did,

Q And you said that they're equipped?

A Yeg

Q How are they eguipped?

A They're equipped with audic and video equipment for

taping, and for restraints if necessary.

Q Was Mr, O'Keefe in regtraines?

A Yag.

Q Why?

A He was combative at rhe scene, is what I was told

before I arrived, and then at my briefing. And he was placed
in restraints, it was (sic} in restraints the whole time, and

left in restraints when we got toc the homicide office.

Q And was this interview videntaped?
A Yes.
o And doeg the video also contaln audio?
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A Yas.

o In addition to the video and the auvdio, do you also
have a separate recorder?

F: I do, yas.

Q And why the redundency?

- Juat as a back up, just in case we have some sort af
an electronic failure,

Q Okay. And in the vildeotape, are you able to see the
defendant restrained?

A Yas.

O Ckay, what does that lock like?

A He'e seated at a table. Along the wall iz a bar, in
which his right hand is handcuffed to that har.

aQ Ckay. Is that uncommeon?

A N

(8] A1l]1 right. Now at some point, you begin your
recording of your statement with the defendant; is that true?

A Yee.

Q But obviously you had been in the room with him &
time before that your recorder actually clicked on?

A ¥es.,

o Can you please describe for ua his demeanor before
your recorder clicked on?

A He was extremely argumentative, sarcastic,

uncancerned.
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Q Okay. Were you assisting him in some regard? Or
were you Offering items that would assist in -- specifically
with regard to his hand?
A I provided him wich some medical wipes for his hand
ke stop the bliood.
Q Okay. Prior to che tape coming on, did you ever make

any threakts to him?

F 1 Ha,

Q Any physical or verbal threats or gestures in any
way?

A HNotie.

a pid you ever pull your gun on the defendant to force
him to speak to you?

A Na.

4] Did you advise him of his rights pursuant te Miranda
¥8. Arizona (phonetic)?

A Yes, I did.

a And was that done on recording?
A Yes.
a Did the defendant eventually acknowledge that he

understood those righta?

A BEventually, yea.

2 Okay. HNow during the course of your interview with
the defendant, did it ever appear to you that he had consumed

alechol at some point earlier in the evening?
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A Yes.

Q Can you describe what you saw for usg?

A He smellad of aleshol. He -- his eyes were
bloddshot. He was comprehending what I was saying, but I could
pmell an overall cder of alcochol about his peraon.

4! Was the alcohol that you smelled, based upon your own
cbservationa, something that prevented him from underatanding
his Miranda warnings?

A Ko.

4 Let me ask you this. Did you aver collect a sample
of his blood?

A No.

Q Why neoc?

A During the course of the interview, it becama
apparent that he waz in full comprehensicon of what I was asking
and talking about. He was able to answer questions about prior
events to the event in decail. He was able to recall games of
people who called him and he called during that day, phoae
numbers. He was able to also limit his answers at times that
he needed Lo.

o) Ckay. And what do you mean, st times that he nesded
ta?

a when it was during recollection of like I said,
events prior to the day, bhe was very detailed. But when it

came btime to --
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MS. PALM: BAnd Your Honor, I'm going to abject to the
detective's opinion on what the meaning of his statements was.
I think the jury can watch the video and determine for

themael ves,

:

MR . Well he was there, Your Honor. I think
he can --
MS. PALM: That's opinion testimony.
ME. LALLI: It's conscipusness of guilk.
THE COURT: I'm going to ovarrule the objection.
MR. LALLI: Okay.
BY MR. LALLY:

Q Continue with your answer, please.

A When we spoke specifically abgut the murder, the
defandant would not speak and anewer questicns. Hs would go
off cn tangents not related, or step back to events that were
prior in the day.

Q Okay. You mentioned that you have a partnoer,

Detective Bunn, who was responsible for the scene.

A Yes, sir.

Q Rid someone elsa assist you with the interview of the
defendant?

A Yes.

Q Who was that?

A Detective Eyger is another detective who is on my
squad who -- we have two detectives present tn suspect
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interviews, and who agsisted me.
Q Is Detective Kyger depicted in the video?
A Yea, she ia. It's the cther female in the room.
Qo Okay. And you just anticipabted my next gquestion.
Zhe is a female detectlve?
A Yes, sir.
o Can you describe if you would the treactment that she
received by the defendant during the course of che interview?
ME. PALM: I'm going to object again, ¥Your Honor, to
cpinion testimony. The jury can watch the videc and determine
themselves how he's treating her.
BY MR. LALLI:
Q Well I'm not asking for your opinion. I'm asking
gpecifically, how did he address her?
THE COURT: HWell that's a different gquestion. So --
MRE. LALLI: Y¥eah. 50 I'll withdraw that question.
THE COURT: Okay.
BY MR. LALLI:

Q I‘'1l ask, how did he address her?

A A5, young lady.

0 Would he direct her to do things?

A Yeg, fregquently.

Q Can you give us an example?

A Ask for coffee, ask her to write things down a8 he

wag talking.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

002458




10

1l

12

13

14

15

16

17

i85

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

Q

with him you spoke about Victoria Whitmarsh?

-3

Q

caertain name?

A Yes, he would call her ¥V az a ghort name for her.

Q And did you at one point during the course of your
interview attempt to refer to her as, V?

A Yes,

Q And waa that acgeptable to him?

A No.

o What happened?

A He stated that he was the only one that was able to
call her V.

Q During the course of the interview, does the

diecuesion of the defsndant having placed a phone call to 9-11

arise?

¥

¥ o0 ¥ Q0

o op O

178

Ckay. I take it during the course of your interview

Yes,

Did he, meaning the defendant, refer te her by a

Yes.

You discussad that with him?

Yes.

And whatb did he tell you?

Eventually he says that he did call 2-1i.
He did call 5-117

That's what he says.

During the course of your interview?
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A Yes.

Q At gome point during the c¢ourse of the interview, did
the defendant say something te the effect of, I've given you
snough information?

F-3 Yasz,

¥ Is that common?

R Mot very, no.

o Dkay,

.1 Depends on the ciroumstances of the interview,

Q Okay. Is it uncommon for defendancs to try to
contrel interviews?

A No, that 13 not uncommon.

Q Ckay., DBid you experience that during the course of
this interview.

A Several times. He would try to gver-speak we, or use
his wolume over mine, kind of a bully tactiec.

2 Ckay. During the course of your interview with him,
did the notion or the subject of Victoria Whitmarsh being
deceaned come up?

F. ¥Yesg.

o Can you tell us ahout that?

A He asked me I helimve three times during the course
of the interview the status of Ms. Whitmarsh.

Q And what happened?

A The first two times, I told him that we were -- that
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1 ghe was being worked on. And I believe the second time I said
2 she was in extremely bad shape. 2And then I teld him that she
! was deceased.

4 o And what was his respanse to being informed that she
5 was deceaged?

[ ¥4 A ghort pause, and then he asked for a gup of coffee.
¥ And then he went about some rantings.

g 0 Okay.

9 MR. LALLI: Your Honor, I've marked a copy of the
1t | wideotagps as State's proposed 134 for identificacicon purposes.
11 I'd move for it's admission.

12 MS. PALM: HNo cbjectiomn.

13 THE COURT: All right. 134 will be admitted, and you

14 can play it.

15 (Exhibit 134 admitbted)

16 MR, LALLI: Okay.

17 (Vides of defendant's statement played for jury, not
1a tranecribed]

15| BY MR. LALLI:

20 Q How Detective Wildemann, at sowe point during the

21 vides that we just saw, kind of a black screen comes up almost
22| in the middle of what we saw?

23 A Yes,

24 Q Do you have any idsa what that 18?7 MNot the black

25 screen, but what occurs during that pericd of time?
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A We took a break. I think we were out of the room for
approximately an hcur.

Q Okay. During the course -- particularly in the
gacond half of cthe video, the defendant iz making noises asg
though be'a crying. Can you tell us what you saw?

A I saw him doing exactly that, making noises Iike he
wag crying. To me it didn't look sincere, there was no tears,
there was no runny noge. Kind of came on and off with -- whan
he wanted it ta,

o Earlier in the incerview, we talked about how he had
indicated that he had called 9-11. &And at the end of the
interview, he is informed by Detective Kyger that you had
checked, thea twa of -- either she or you, or you collectively
had checked, and thsre was no 9-11 call made by him?

. That's correct.

e, What did you do to asgertain whether he had ever
called %-117

A Detective Bunn at the scene locked at his phone at
the cutgoling, incoming calls. There was no calls to 5-11.

Q His phone, meaning who's his?

-4 I'm sorry. Brilan Q'Keefe's phone.

Q Ckay. We checked the Cad (phonetic} system, which iz
a4 computer assisted dispatch which logs all the calls coming in
frem your persons reporting of crimes. 2And there was no phone

number or name of Brian O'Keefe there.
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defendant had kold them to call 9-117
A Mo, I was not aware,
MR. LALLI: Your Honor, that concludes direct
examination.
THE COURT: All right. Mo, Falim?
MS. PALM: Thank you.
CROSS -EXAMTIMATION
BY MS. PALM:
a Good afternoon, Dekective.
A Good afternoon.
o Youy Mirandized (phonetic) interview starts about
1:45 in the morning? Do you agree with thac?

A Approximately?

4] Ckay. It's about two hours, 45 minubtes or so after

the inecident's reported, --

A Yag.
Q -~ does that sgound about right?
A Yes,

8] Okay. And then it continues until approximately 2:03

a.m., which would be the first break?
Yes.
r the break?

Yes.

Qo o P
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A Correct.
Q Then you take ap heur-long break?
A Correct.

0 And then it goes from 3:06 to 2:28 a.m., adout you
know, roughly 20 minutes?

1 Correct,

Q Okay. And when you come back in later om, do vou
come back in with CSA Dan Ford?

A After the interviews, I do come back in with Dan
Ford, vesz.

& Okay. Do you know how much later that was?

A I don't know off-hand.

o] ODkay. TIf I told you it was about 2:55, would that
scund akout right Lo youv

& Yes.

Q Qkay. If I understood your featimony, you were
saYing before the video that Brian ¢'Feefe was kind of bossing
Detective Kyger around?

A h4-1-

2] Okay. Detective Kyger is a pretty experienced
detective, isn't gha?

A Yeas.

Q Can ahe handle har own?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. And when you say he's bossing her arcund, he's

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT
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reazlly sayilng, please, please write this down?

A He's making commands that she write things down, yes.

Q Ckay. But she's the one sitting there with a
notepad?

A Yas.

g Dkay. She ia the one writing things déwm?

F: I had a notepad in front of me, but he keeps
referring teo her, ves.

Q Dkay. But at one point, he says, you wouldn't
understand, she does; i thac torrect?

¥ ¥es,

Q Okay. &nd do you ever find that it's not uncommon
with a male interviewee that he might not want to cry in frent
of a female detective?

¥ I don't know that I could anawer that. I den't find
that uncommon.

Q Okay. Well it seemed like you were implying
scmeching by the fact that Mr. O'Keefe agked for a coffee,
gending Detective Kyger out of the room before he braoke down
crying when you told him Mz. Whitmarsh was dead.

A Yes.

Q Ckay, Can you understand a situation where a male; &
middle-aged tmale might not be comfortable crying in fromt of a
female?

F-Y He cried saveral times Iin fromt of her,
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Q Okay. 5o you don't understand that aituaticon ever?

A I'm not understanding it in this situaticn, because
he did cry in front of her before, he whimpered before. And at
that time, he wanted a cup of coffee.

Q Okay. And that wouid be your interpretation of it?

A Yes.

< Wow 1if I understand your testimony on fthe, it's no
uncommon to have wounds on a hand because a hand slides on a
blade when it'a wet?

. Could be when it's wet., It could be --

o Qr =--

A -- bercause you encounter resistance. There's several
reasocns why that could happen.

L In this cage, ara you aware that the kanife did not
hit any bones?

¥ 4 I am aware of that, ves.

Q Okay. And i1s there any evidence that it would have
beenn wet before Ms. Whitmarsh was cut?

A I have no idea of the status of the knife, or the
status of his hands as sweating. I have no idea.

G Do you have nay forensiec training? Are vou trained
in forensic solences?

F: I'vae attended classes.

Q Ckay, how many?

A I den't know. It's been a long career, several.
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Q Okay. Well can you identify any forensic classas

vou've attended?

A Crime scene presarvation. I'd have to pull up my
reEsume.

g But right now you gan't recall any specific clasg?

A Crime scene presservation.

Q When was that class?

A Ch, ymars aga., I don't know.

Q Okay. And you're not a medical doctor?

A Na.

Q2 When you were in the room directing Mr. Ford to
document my c¢lienc's hand injury?

A Yea.

Q Ckay. And you only pointed out te him a injury to
the finger at the time; is that correct?

A Correct.

g Okay. Then how is it that you are able to look at
the injuries and determine what they mean if you didn't even

gee the thumb injury at the timey

A I saw the [inger injury, and that's the injury that I

was interprecing.

Q Okay. 8o you didn't personally examine the thumb
lnjury?

A I didn't.

Q Okay. And Mr. O'Keefe told you he's right-handed?
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A I don't racall.

o And at the time of the interview, you were a homicide
detective for about sasven ysara?

F.3 Yes,

4] Okay. And when you got Mr. O'Keefe's telephone
records, did they show that he had made roughly 30 calls the
day before the incident?

¥ I didn't look at his telaphone records.

Q Okay. You didn't subpoena them?

Ho.

9] Was that Detactive Bunn?
A

Detective Bunn lacked at his phome. And I don't know
{f he -- I don't' believe that he subpoenaed the records.
o Ckay., If I show you scme phone recorda, would you
recognize whether they came from your detective's [ile?
A Yes. I -- well, I don't know. If they're marked.
M3, FAIM: May I approach the witneas?
THE CQURT: Yes.
MS., PALM: 1I'm sorry (indiscernible).
BY M35. PALM;:
Q Does that look famlliar to you?
B It doean't look familiar to me, ne, But I do
recognize it as a call detail record.
Qo Okay.

A If that's what you're asking.
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L] And doeg it look like calls dialed ocut from a certzin
mumber, and in?
A Yeaa.

Ckay, and what is the number that's in common?

g
A J02-6958,
Q

Okay. And --

A I'm not sure how to interpret these records here
though, but -- because {indiscermnible) seem to have a gtandard
numbey, destination number, number dialed. So I'm not sure how
ko intarpret that.

Q Okay. Can you tell the date pof the phone calls?

A 1i-5 through 11-5.

Q Okay. And can you tell about how many calls there
are there?

A There's zeveral, There's a page-full.

(2] {Okay, thank you. Did you happen to follow up on the
information about the Paris Hotel?

& Ho.

(8] Ckay. S0 you never attampted Lo ¢ktain a video from
Paris {phonetig)?

A Ne.

Q Now do you recall testifying previously in this casge
that you had never heard of a homicide investigation where
klood or breath alecchol tests were taken from a suspect?

B ¥Yag, I do reacall that.
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Q Okay. BAnd are you aware of any cases at this time?
A There iz a single case that I'm aware of, yes.
Q Ckay. And it was cne that occurred before Mr.

O'¥eefe'y cage?

MR, LALLI: I'm going to obiect, Your Honor, as to
relevance,

THE CTOURT: Counsel appro=ch, please.

{Off-record bench conference)

THE COURT: I'm going to sustain the objsction by the

Stace.
{Pause in proceedings)

BY MS. PALM:

Q And Detective, you a2lso testified previously in this
case that there's no protocol with the Metropolitan Folice
Department for taking blood or breath tests from a suspect?

A Prococal ia different than policy. 50 I don't know
what you're asking.

Q Well I'm asking if you tesgtified that there was no

protacel .,
A I pelieve ] testifiled there was no proteceol.
Q Okay. Sec are you familiar with Metro -- that Las

Vegag Metrepolitan Department manual, section 522217
A Yem, I am.
Q Okay. And are familiay with the document to the

extent that it allows non-consansual searches in a felany case
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that i3 being investigated where there is probable cause to
believe that a felony has been commitbed?

A I'm familiar that that's a part of it, yea.

Q Gkay, &nd are you familiar that it gives example
where a homicide suspect l1s arvested on probable cause
immadiately after their crime, appears slightly intoxicated; a
blood sample can e taken to show the degres of intoxicatiom,
which may become an important issue for cthe State or che
defense?

MR. LALLI; 1Ie this a cuestion? I object to the form
of the guestion, Your Honor.

THE COURT: I there?

ME. BALM: Well Your Honeor --

THE COURT: What's the guesCion?

M=. PALM: -~ I've marked thiz 13 defendant's
propoged Exhibit L, and T would move to admit it. Do you want
to sea it?

MR, LALLI: I've sean it.

MS. PALM: It'e a certified record from the Las Vegas
Metropolican Police Department.

MRE. LALLTI: Mo cbiection.

THE COURT: All right. Ik will be admitted.

(Exhibit L admitted)

MS. PALM: Okay.

THE COURT: I'm 8orry, was that L7

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPFT




19

11

i2

13

14

15

16

1?

15

13

20

21

22

23

24

25

191

M5, PALM: L.
THE COURT: Okay.
M5, PALM: Yes,.
BY MS. PALM:
Qo Are you familier with that policy?
A I'm familiar -- you've lefr cut some words, but I am

familizr with it.
Q Dkay. What have I leftc outc?
A ¥You lefr out I believe a "can," you've left out an
vif. " and a couple other words that I can't recall.
Q Okay. Would you like to show me where I Iefr it out?
B Sure.

MS. PALM: May I approach?

THE COURT: Yeas,

THE WITNESS: "({an," right there. “Can." &And I
thought chere was an "if.® I don't Bee an "“if,* but two
"ran's."

BY M5, PAIM:
Q Ckay. 350 this section actually tells you that when
you're doing an investigation; you can cellect a blood sample,

and that it may be an important issue for the State or the

defense?
A ¥Yes. It says, "I can." Yes.
a Okay. &nd that policy was in existence at the time

of my clients interview with you?
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Q

today, you're saying that you testified there was no pratocol

I believe so.

And so when I -- if I'm understanding you right

earlier because you considered that a policy?

-
Q
A

Q

Correct.
Okay. So that's not a protocal, it's a policy?
Correct.

And did the district attorney fell you I had

subpoenaed that document?

A

Q

I believe Bo, yem.

There's a nurse maintained at the jall 24 hours a day

to collect bBlood?

&

oD o 0O » O P

oo

Q

Yesq.
So you could have done it in Mr. O'Keefe's case?

I cculd have, yes.

Ukay. And you never offered Mr. O'Keafe the choice?

Ho.

And Mr., O'Eeefe gmelled heavily of aleghol?
Yes.

He was slurring bis speech?

Slightly.

It was pretty cbvicus he had been drinking?
I could tell that he had been drinking.

You testified before it was obvious, would you

digpute that now?
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A No.

Q Ckay. 2And you're aware during your investigation
there was a poasibilicy that an erresting officer stepped on
the bed at the scene?

A I wag aware that -- in our initial briefing, that a
struggle had occurred in that room. I thought that that could
have been a poasibility, but T learned throughout the
investigation that that hadn't happened.

Q Okay. But early on you were aware 1t was &
poesibility?

A At the initial briefing, at the gcene shortly after
the crime.

%} Dkay.

ME. PALM: Court's indulgence.
BEY MZ. PALM:

Q Do your recall that early on in thig casa, I had
agked for the use of force report prepared by Qfficer Balleions?

A Tes.

Q Okay. Do you rtecall the existence of the document
being denied?

A I recall Detective Bunn had tesatified regarding thar,

Okay. And said basically there ia no such document?
At the time, we didn't knoow about any such document.

Okay. But it was -- it's existence was denied at one
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A Yes.

Q Okay. &And thep ultimately, it was turned over?

p-3 Mot by ourselves, we'te allowed no access to those
documents.

Q Ckay.

50 it was turned over, nct by us.

F S
al Ckay. Do you know that was purguant ko court order?
A

I believe it was, but I'm not sure on that.

Q Ckay. Would you agree that it's the cmly written
docymentation in this entire case that shows Mr, {'Easfe was
extremsly intoxlcated?

MR. LALLI: Objection, azasumes facts not in evidence,
and it misstates the testimony. This detective has already
testified numercus times that he knew he was intoxicated, and
he preserved it on the video.

MS., BALM: And Your Honor, my gquestion was extremely
intoxicatsd. &aAnd this detective is familiar with rhe usze of
force report; because he's teatified about it before.

THE COURT: Well iz your guestion is if the word
hextremely* is in the report¥ Or if this officer has prepared
a report with the word "extremely" in ib?

MZ. BAIM: My cuestion was, is he aware that that's
the onoly document in the entire cease that shows that Mr.

C'Kmefe waz extremely intoxicated.
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MR. TALLI: I object, that misstates the evidence.
THE COURT: Counsel approach, please.

(Off -record bench conference)
THE COURT: I'm going to overrile the gbijection.

MS. PALM: Thank you.

BY MS. PALM:

Q

Detective, are you aware that the report, the use of

force report is the only document that states that Mr. O'Keefe

ig extremely intoxicated?

A I've never seen that deocument.

o ¥You haven't geen it yourpelf?

A Ho.

) All right. 18 there another document that states
that Mr. O'Keefe is extremely intoxicated?

A I don't know of one.

Q So none of the police reports state that issue?

A No.

Q State that he's extremely intoxicated?

A Hok cne that I've seen.

Q Ckay. In fact, do any of them even say he's
intoxicated?

A There's peveral reports. I'm not sure on that.

4] You're not aware of one that does though, are you?

A Ho.

Q And it's not mentioned in your officer's report or
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arrest report, is it?
A I don't halieve s0, no,
0] Are you familiar with coroner investigator Staling's

(phonetic) report?
A I have not locked at that in years.

Q Okay. Ia it parr of your case file in the homicide

A I believe 5o, yas.
Q Okay. Did you -- do you recall his nocation that Ma,

Whitmarsh

1
I

ME. LALLI: I'm going to object as to hearsay.

MS. PAIM: Well --

THE COURT: Sustained.

MS. PALM: It's not offered for the truth of the
matter. It's offered for the thoroughness of the
investigation, Your Honor.

MR. LALLI: It's hearsay.

THE CQURT: Counssl, approach again.

(Gff-record bench conference)

THE COURT: I'th going té sustain the objection.
BY MS. PALM:

Q LDid you personally leck into whether Ms. Whitmarsh
was taking her meds or not?
A I didn't personally lock into that, no.

Q Okzy. Did you recall any information that made that
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relevant toc you?

A I don't know of any information at this point that
made that relevan:i at the time.

Q Ckay. Would you consider that a relevant issue in a

homicide investigation?

A 1f ghe was taking her meds?

(] Tes.

A It could be.

Q2 Ckay. Did you lock into Ms. Whitmarsh's mental
health history?

A I did not pergonally, no.

Q Okay. Mr. D'kKeefe pointed you towards Monte Vista

{phonetic) though, did he not?

A Yas.

o] Ckay. Did you just nct consider that relevant
information?

b3 I believe that detective Bunn documenced all the

meds, &nd everything that went on wich that, 2nd I'm not sure
if he pulled up information regarding Monte Viesca.

Q Dkay. In determining whether to proceed with the
charges or not, then you did not know Ms. Whitmarsh's
paychiatric history?

A Na.

Q Okay. When you're dodng the video of the interview,

there's a camera in the room?
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Yes.

I it an obvicus camera?

oo W

M.

Q All right. So going back to the -- whare you say my
client was cordering Detective Kyger around, and I gquess you
didat*t like ic that He waas calling her young lady elther?

A That‘s how he addressed her.

o Ckay. He @lsc addressed her as ma'am at one point;
is that correct?

F 3 I kelieve =0.

Q Okay. And he also apologized and said, I'm sorry.
Pertective, when he said young ledy cne rime; lg that correct?

A Yes,

Q Ckay. And so the ordering hey around was sfaying;
pleage, please, write this down, write this down, please write
this down?

A Pretty gure there wasn't a "please! avery time.

Q Ckay. Would you dispute if thers's only otie time he
didn't say, "pleagai"

A I have no idea, we would have to go through the thing
again. I'd gladly count them with you.

g Would you like to?

A We could.

ME. PALM: May I approach the witness?

THE COURT: Yes.
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BY MS. PALM:

Do you remember where they ware?

Where every one is that he asked to --

Where he was asking to do sowmething?

Ch, o I dan't.

It's relatively short.

ME. LALLI: I'm sorry. I can't hear the question,
¥Your Honor.

ME. PALM: I asked him if he recalled which pages b=
asked her to do something (indiscermible}.

THE WITNESS: Please can I start over?

MS. PALM: Sure. (Indiscernible}.

THE COURT: Ms. Yalm, is there a gquestion? Because
it's not being picked up by the microphone.

ME. PALM: No, it was just --

MR, LATLI: Your Honor, I'm not sure what we're doing
here. But unlezs there's an --

MS2. BAIM: Dg you want to come and join us? I'm just
asking him to look at --

MR. L[ALLI: Ho.

THE COURT: HNo, I wean what --

ME. LALLT: I just would respectfully ask that
counsel be directed to ask a question.

M5, PAIM: Well, he's loocking chrough the statement

at this point.
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THE COURT: OQkay. S0 you've apked the -- asked
Detective Wildemann ta lock for what specifically?

M5, PAIM: Placesg where Mr., O'Keefe orders Detective
Kyger around without saying please.

THE COURT: Okay. 2All righr.

THE WITHESS: If I miss one, can you let me know?

MS5. PALM: I will.

MR. LALLI: Your Hongr, again, I'm going to interpose
an objection. I think this is a wagte of the Court's time.
The video im in evidence. The jury can clearly see if he zays
please or not. <LCounsel certainly has the right to argue this
in gpummation. I'm just not sure this 1s the best use of our
time; =m0 1 would cohject.

M5. PALM: #Wall -—-

THE COURT: Ms, Palm?

MS. PALM: -- I'm Borry to take up the Court's fime.
But this is Mr. O'Keefe's trial; and it's very important chey
characterized him as ordering somebody around. And I have
every right to say, where did he crder her around, can you show
me where he ordered her around.

THE COURT: Okay. Why don't we take a -- just a
guick break for the officer to review the report.

Ladies and gentlemen, during this recess, It is your
duty naot to converse among yourselves, or with anyone elseg on

any subject comnected with the trial. Or to read, watch or
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listen to any report of or commentary on the ¢ase by any person
connected with the trial, or by any medium of information,
including without limitatiem, newspaper, television, radlo, or
the intarnec. You are not to form or express an opinion en any
subiect connected with this ¢ase until this matter is submitted
to you.
We'll sea you in approximately five or ten minutes.
The marshal will escort you out,
{Cutside the presence of the jury)
THE COURT: All right, we're cutslde the presence of
the dury panel. Detective, here's some post-it's if you --
THE WITNESS5: Thank you.
THE COURT: -- (indiacernihkle).
{Pause in proceedings)
{Court recessed at 4:45 p.m. until 4:58 p.m.)
{In the presence of the jury!
THE MARSHAL: Pleass be seated.
THE COURT: Detective Wildemann, do you understand
you're still under cath?
THE WITNESS: Yes, sir.
THE COURT: All right. Go ahead, Ms. Falm.
MS. PALM: Thank you.
BY M3S. PALM:
L8] Cetective Wildemsrm, did you have a chance to lock

through the transcript of Mr. G'Keefe's statement?
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A Yes, T dig.

9] Okay. And you flagged four arsas thar you thought
ware statements of Mr. O'Esefe directed to Detective Ryger that
weEre commands?

A Yes.

a And the first one, would you agree waz, "Why didn't
vou call 9-31i7°" And he regponse {sic), "Check the phene.?

A Yes.

Q Ckay. &nd the sscond one is when you say, "Where
were the stab wounds? WNo, logk at me.* And he paya, "Mante

Vista. Wrice this down, Monte Vista."™ And you say, "Ho, she's

not writing it down." That's the second one?
A Yes.
Q Okay .

THE COURT: Which page i1a that sc the State can
follow along?
MS. FALM: I'm sorry, Scate. TIf is --
MR. LALLI: I've got 1t, Your Honor. Thank you.
THE CDURT: Okay.
M2, BAIM: Page 2{.
EY M5. PAIM:
0 The thilrd ons is when you tell him that she's passed
away, and he says, "Could I have some coffee?”
A Yeg,

Q &nd then the final one is, you say, "And you saild,
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yes, you didn't." And he says, "Listen to me?* Do you recall
flagging that? I think that'a --
A I den't know. I don'‘t know if that's --
M3, PALM: May I approach?
THE WITWESS: ~-- my flag or your flag.
MS. PALM: May I approach?
THE COURT: Yes,
M5. PALM: Thank you.

BY MS5. PALM:

2 I thought that you had put this here {indiscernible).

Thisz iz not you?

A Mo, that's not me, I didn't {indiscermible} --

Q Ch, ockay.

A -~ Lthat coler.

Q Ckay. ©So there's basically three of them, and those
are the thrae?

A I thaught there were four yellow cnes on there.

Q2 Did I miss zsomething? Oh, you know what? Well,
you're correct. You did bhave two yellows ones on the sama
page, s¢ -- on the page {indiscernible} the Monte Vista. You
said, "You were with her, where were the stab wounds?" And he
sald, "Do me a favor." That was one?

A Ckay. Yes.

Q Do you recall thar?

Yes.
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] Okay. 8o those are the four commarnds. And was Mr.
O'Keefe talkipng to both of you, or just Kyger during those?

A I believe he's directed at Hyger.

Q Okay. Did you have it in your mind when you maid,
"Don't order her arpund, " that you were trying to document
somshow that my client was being domineering?

A Mot at all. I was trying to control the interview.

2 Okay. But he was saying the same things to you, and
you didn't tell him, don't order me around.

A He didn't say it s0 much to me. Everything that he
wanted writbten, or requested to drink or whatever was directed
at Detective Kyger.

Q Okay. i

A I was the one asking the guesticns at the time, and
that was him deflecting to her. BAnd that's why I said, don't
ocrder her arcund. I was trying to control the interview, and
get him to answer my questions.

Q Ckay. But he had told you, you don't understand
also, right?

A Way back, yes.

g Okay, Have you had any classes on how alcohol --
excuse me, affects a person's emotions?

A I haven't had a fomal class, no.

Q Okay. So you don't know whether it affects a

person's ability to tear up?
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A No, I never heard that.

Q Are you familiar with the documents that were
gbtained during the search warrant by doctor -- or by Dffiecer
Shoemaker?

A I'm not familiar with all the papers that weare
recovarsd, no.

Q Okay. Well --

. I wasn't there for that,

Q Are all those -- are all the -- 18 the paperwork ino
your detective's file?

I would -- yes, I would believe go.

A
6] Are youi familiar with your detective's file?
A

Tes.
Q Ckay. I'm going toc show you what's besn marked as
defendant's zz,
MS. FALM: May I approach?
THE COURT: Yesq.
BY MS. PALM:
Qo Do you recognize what these iteme are?
ry I'm Aaorry. This 15 a eomtact information thing for
incase of emergency. And this looks like a sales receipt from
AL Vacuum and Sewilng.
Q Okay. And those -- do you recocgnize those from your
detective's file? '

A Yer.
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Q Ckay. And does the wacuum receipt indicate a time on
it of a sale?

A 5:46 p.m.

o] Thank you,

MS. PALM: Your Henoor, I'm going to move to admit
defensa Exhibit 2Z.

MR. LALLI: Can I just see if one more cime, pleaga?
BY M5. PALM:

9] And Cetective --

THE COURT: Hang on. Any objection by the Scate?

MR. LALLI: ©Na.

THE COURT: All right. IE will be admitted.

{Exhibit ZZ admitted)

MR. LALLIT: Thera's been -- Your Honor, I would just
note there's been now no foundation for it, and it's hearsay.
But I don'kt oppose it being admirted.

THE COURT: All right.

BY MS. PARLM:

Q Detective, is it your understanding that those
documents came from the gearch of my client's apartment?

A I gan't ke positive on that. I haven't locked at
that section of the fille in quite some time. But that's -- I
believa it to be, yes.

o Dkay. Thank you. And did you check the DMV

registration on the Hyundai that was allegedly driven by Ms,
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Q
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A
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in there?

A

to him?

BY M5.
Q
h

G

A

(indiscernible). OCne second. That's when it was ran. HNo., Is

that it

Flates
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I believe that T did.

Ckay. I8 a registration part of your detective's
this case?

I'm not sura. T'd have te logk through. I don't
geeing it in guite some time.

Do you have it with you?

I have it right here.

If I show you the document, could you check if it's

Sure.

MS. BALM: Do you want to look ac it before I show it

MR, LALLI: No, I'wve gesn ir.
MsS. PAIM: May I approach?
THE CCURT: Yes.
THE WITHESS: Okay.
FALM:
Do you recognize that?
Yag.
Does it indicate when the car was registered?

Ch, this is different type of registration from

? OXay. It has an effective date of the plates, and

ligrad. And it shows an effertive date of 3-8-2008.
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Q Okay. And who was it registered ta?

. Cheryl Morris and Brian O '¥euefe.

[ Thank you. Detective, do you know how the pelice
responding to the scene learned of Ma. Whitmarsh's hepatitis C7?

A fio, I don'k.

Q Were you aware that they had learned of it?

B, ? believe it came out at our briefing, so I would
think that they knew about ik. But I'ﬁ not sure how.

Q Okay. Did you write the offirer's report in this

Ho .

Do you contribute to it?

Yes.

Do you revisew it?

¥:) Yag,
3] Okay. Do you recall that it was documented in the
TEport that --

MR. LATLT; Your Honor, I'm sorry. I chieck to --
wa're reading reports. I mean, we've got information coming
off of a DMV racord. I would object to all of thia hearsay
without any foundation coming in. I think that the -
eespectfully, counsel can just ask the gueation, did you learn
this, did you learn that, without eliciting the hearsay. It's
nok -- we're not making a clean recerd.

THE COURT: Becausgs if he didn't -- I mean, well the
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it. And it's hig and Bunn's collaborative effort as far as my

understanding.

something, they put it in the repeort, it'a still heatrsay. 3o
I'm geing to sustain the objection. You can ask some

specifics, bur.

BY MS. PALM:

Q

O'Keefe, when officers responding, demanded that officera enter

to help her?

A
Q
&

Q

with officers after the szecchd tase?

B

e

begin uneil 1o6:00 --

A

Q

And did you have information that the noises didn't

209

M5, PATM: Well he contributes to it, and be reviews

THE COURT: Well if somecne rtells ponecne else

MS. FAILM: Qkay.

Detective, 4did you have information that Mr.

bid I have information about that?
Yes.

I believe s0.

Okay. And did you have information that he complied

Yes,

I believe so.
~= @t the apartment?
Yes,

And did you have informastion at some point thab Mr.
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O'Keefe wae atbtempbing to 1i1ft Ms, Whitmarsh around thHe waisc?
A I'm sarry, I missed part of that. That he was

attempting to 1ift her?

Q From Lhe waist,
. From the walgst, I believe sp, yes.
ME. LALLI: Your Henor, again, this is all -- this is

all hearsay. I wouold chiject. We'wve had testimony about all of
this.

THE COURT: I'm waiting for the objecstion. I'm going
to sustain the cbjection.

MS. PALM: T'm just about done. Court's indulgence.
Okay. HNo more guestions., Thank you, Detective.

THE WITNESS: You're welcome.

THE COURT: Any redirect?

ME. LALLI: Yes.

REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. LALLI:
o] Datective, Ms. Palm asked you whether you obtained

video from the Paris?

& Tes.

Q And you indicated that you didn'c?
A Ho.

Q Why not?

A

I didn't think it was relevant or important to obtain

video footage of them walking through the Paris.
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1 4] Why?
2 A It wasn't really part of the crime that I was
3 investigakting, and I believed what he said.
4 Q Okay. Would the fact that the dafendant went Lo the
5 Paris make it any less or more likely that bhe murdered Victoria
6| Whitmarsh?
7 A No.
g o During the interview, at about the time you're
9| adwvising the defendant of his Miranda rights, deo you maka a
1t | comment about his intoxicaticn?
11 ¥ I believe I asked him, have you been drinking.
12 Q Did you give him the opportunity -- did you give him
13 the cpportunity to say somerthing about chat while go the
14 recording?
15 A Yes.
16 Q Were vou trying to hide the fact that he had been
17 drinking that day?
18 9 Na.
1% v Were you txrying to suppress the fact that you
20 balieved he had heen drinking that day?
21 A Ho,
22 Q d you try to make it so that defense counsel could
23 not learn that in any way?
24 A No.
25 Q Mz. Palm askad you whether you checked into
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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¥ictoria's Medical history before you decided to proceed with
charges. Do you remember that gquestion?

A Yes.

Q Tell us why you declded to procesd with charges
against Mz, O'Keefes,

A I believed that there was probable cause to arrest
him for the murder of Victoria Whitmarsh at the end of the --
conclusion of cthe incerview,

a Okay.

MR, LALLI: Ycur Honeor, that concludes redirect.

TEE COURT: All right, Asny recross?

M3. PALM: Ho more questicns. Thank you.

THE COURT: All right. Any questions from any of the
jurera? HWo guestlens. Thank you, Detective. You are excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: MNext witnesg for the State?

MR. LALLI: Your Honor; at this peint the Stace and
the defense have entered into a stipulation with respect to
certain records with respect to Ms. Whitmarsh. &and I'd ask
chat thar stipularion be placed on the recerd.

THE COURT: ¥ou are stipulating, Ma. Palm?

MS., FALM: We are, Your Honor.

THE COURT: All right.

M=, PALM: Thank you.

THE CQURT: Ladies and gentlemen, the parties have
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1| prepared a stipulation. I'm going to read this ioto the
2| record. An ingtruction will cell you that 1f the parties
3 atlpulate to a particular fact, you are to accept that fact as
4 true.
5 "Records from Cctober 2001, admission to Monte Visca
6 | Hospital ehow that Victoria whitmarsh was admitted,® in quotes,
7 *because ghe had tried to cut her wrist in an attempt to hurt
| hergelf," close gquote. "Whan Victoria Whitmarsh was brought to
9 Sunrise Hospital prior to transfer to Monte Vista, documents
10 indigate, " in quotes, "patient comes in by EMS with bilateral
11 wrist cuta.
1z "Patient states, had fight with husband, got
13 | depressed, and triled to cut wrist with a knife. Fatieng
14 stated, was brying to kill myself,* close quote. It'a from the
15 | triage nursing asseasment sheet. "She was diagnosed with
16 | laceration on both wrisks. Psychiatric evaluation by Dr.
i7 Dakay, * D-A-K-A-¥Y, "shows, the patient was brought in after she
18 tried to cut her wrist in an attempted suicide. This has besn
12 her fourth suicide attempb, and I was just racently mads aware
20| of this."
21 "Records from September 2006, admisgion to Monta
22 | Vista Hospltal show that Victoria Whitmarsh has self-inflicted
23 wrist laceration. Admigsion certification by Dr. Slagel
24 (phonetic) reports, Ms, Whitwarsh had made at least three

25 suicide attempts. Recent attempt could have been lethal.®
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Thig is the smergency admizssion Form.

"Discharge summary by Br." -- I'll epell this, A-D-
E-K-U-B-I, lindiscernible), A-J-A-Y-A, MD, states, "5S5he had co
ba incubated aftey she overdeosed with morphine after an
argument with her estranged husband. She haz been gelf-
mutilating for the past 15 yeare, and stated that she cuts
herself when she is angry. And the last time she cut her left
wrist was with a pair of Ecissors on September 22nd, 2008. She
complaiped" --

MS. PALM: Your Honor, I'm morry. It wap 2006,

THE COURT: 200&. That's corract, Me. Falm. Thank
you. "She complained of irritability, mood swings, difficultly
sleeping at night because of racing thoughtz, pocr appetite,
anxiety, low energy, and difficulty sleeping, end difficulty
concentrating. She also reports eplsodic euphoria, angex
cuthbursts, and decreased need for sleep.®

Discharge summary. "Victoria Whitmarsh reportad that
in Octoher 2001, admission to Monte Vista Hospital cocurred
becauge ghe was angry, screaming, and she went berserk after an
arqument with her husband, and gverdnsed on pills and cut her
wrigtb.*® ‘Doctor" --- do you know how to pronounces that, Ma.

Palm? Or anyone khow how Lo proncunce that? It's the same Dr.

MS. PALM: I do not, Your Honor.

THE COURT: =-- (indiscernible}, MD, “evaluated
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Whirtmarsh, and noted that she has a long history of poor anger
management, and wvery impulsive behavior. That's from a
discharge summary.

“Monte Vista Hodgpital assessment and referral
screening, dated Octcber 29, 2006, indicates, chief complaint
in patients own words, why are you here today? Answer, I've
been depressed. I cut myself when I am depressed. I alsc got
angry with my husband. That is why I tock the pillls. Under
heading of precipitating events which cccurred in previcus 2
hours which prompted assessmenc.”

This is in gquotes, "Patient also admits to a history
of self-mutilaticon. Mast recently, =he stabbed herself on her
hands, October 22nd, 2006, because I am not happy with myself.
Fatient admits poor lmpulse contrcl as evidenced by, cuts self
when angry." And that's the extent of the stipulatiaon.

MS. PALM: Thank you.

THE COURT: &And the State has rested, correct?

MR. LALLI: Your Honor, we now rest.

THE COURT: Okay, Amnd Ma. Falm, I believe you have a
witness this afcernocon?

MS. PALM: I do have one witness.

THE OOURT: &All right.

MS., PAIM: T will make sure she's out there, Your
Honor.

THE COURT: Okay.
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M3. FALM: Your Honor, the defense calls Dorothy
Robe .

THE COURT: BRobe? All right.

THE MARSHAL: Step up here to the witness stand.
Remain standing, raise your right hand, and face the clerk.

THE WITNESS: 0Okay. Who's the clerk?

THE MARSHAL: Right there.

THE WITNESS: Oh, okay.

DOROTHY RCBE, DEFENGE'S WITHESS, SWORN
THE CLERK: 0Okay, pleassa sit down.

THE WITHESS: Okay.

THE CLERK: And pull ocur chair up to the microphone.

And state and spell your name for the record.

THE WITNESS: Thi=s is a microphone?

THE COURT: Yes.

THE CLERK: Yes, ma'am.

THE WITNESS: My name is Dorothy Robe. And it's
gpelled -- excuse me., D-0O-R-0-T-E-Y. And the last name is
Robe, R-0-B-E.

THE QOURT: Go ahead, counsel.

MS. PALM: Thank you.

DIRECT EXAMINATION
BEY MS. PAIM:
0 Good afternoon, Ms. Robe. Are you a little bit

narvousy

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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Oh, I feel like I'm having a tatal attack.

Do o you have a stress problem with testifying?

I do, but I'll try to get through it. OCkay?

Okay. What's your age?

0.
And where do you live?

424 (indigcernible) Lane.

Iz that in Clark County, Hevada?

¥Yes, it's in Las Vegas,

How long have you lived there?
Hine years.
How long have you lived in Clark County?

42 years.

Okay. And what do you do for & living, if anything?

I'm a retired school teacher,

Qkay. Was -- how long were you & school teacher?
30 years,
Is that here in Clark County also?

25 years in Clark County, and five in Montana.

Okay. And do you know Brian O'Keefe?

Yes, I do.

Ia he the gentleman sitting at the table to my right?

I can't see him very well.

Brian?

MS. BaLM: Can you stand up,

THE WITNESS: Is that Brian?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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EY MS. PALM:
fan you ses him okay from there?
Yeah, he loocke a little different.

Okay. That is Brian.

L = A -

Ckay.
M3. PALM: Would the Court reflsct the
ldentification, Your Honor?
THE CCURT: Yes, it will.
M3. FALM: For the record.
BY MS. PALM;
Q And do you alse know a woman named Cheryl Morris?
A Yes, I do,
4] Ckay. Was Cheryl Morrie living with you at soms
point?
A Yes. She lived with me -- T don't know, it seemsd
like years. But maybe it was about a year, I don't know.
Q Ckay, was that in 200872
A I think so.
o] Okay. Was there a time that she lived with you with

Brian O'Keefa?

A Yes, for about three months.

Q Okay. And how often did you see them?
A Every day.

Q Okay .

ME. LALLI: Can we approach, Your Honor?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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O'Keefe, Brian
Document | Page No,
{Ex Parte) Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on 12/06/13 4698-4700
“Amended” Exhibits to “Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus by
a True Pretrial Detainee filed on 10/03/14 5008-5036
“Evidentiary Hearing Request” { Amended Petition for Writ of Habeas
Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive | Based on Subject-Matter of
Amended Information Vested in Ninth Circuit by Notice of Appeal then
“COA” Granted on a Double Jeopardy Violation with No Remand Issued
Since) filed on 10/03/14 4995-5007
“Reply™ to State’s Response and Motion 1o Dismiss to Defendant’s Pro
Per Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Prsuant to NRS 34.360 filed on
10/27/14 5052-5061
“True Pretrial Detainee’s” Reply to State’s Opposition(s) Admitting the
State has a Jurisdictional Defect by the Aung of a Notice of Appeal
Which Diveste Jurisdiction of the Martter Appealed; i.e., O'Keefe's
Pretrial Habeas Matter Appealed to the 9" Circuit on the Subject Matter
of the Amended Information Already Named a Doubie Jeopardy
Violarion filed on 10/01/14 4989-4994
Affidavit of Matthew D. Carling, Esq. filed on 06/29/15 5447-5453
Affidavit of the Honorable Michael P. Villani filed on 09/24/14 4081-4983
Amended Information filed on 02/10/09 01750177
Amended Notige of Appeal filed on 10/29/15 5565-5568
Appendix of Exhibits for: Motion to Dismiss based Upon Violation(s) of
the Fifth Amendment Component of the Double Jeopardy Clause.
Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res
Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States
Precluding State’s Theory of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentional
Stabbing with Knife. the Alleged Battery Act Described in the Amended
Information filed on 03/16/12 3225-3406
Case Appeal Statement filed on 03/14/14 4850-4851
Case Appeal Statement filed on 04/11/14 4862-4863
Case Appeal Statement filed on 05/21/09 0334-0336
Casg Appeal Statement filed on 08/04/15 5476-5477
Case Appeal Statement filed on 08/12/15 5484-5485
Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/02/14 4925-4926
Case Appeal Staternent filed on 09/G4/12 3536-3537
Case Appeal Statement filed on 09/24/12 4625-4628
Case Appeal Statement filed on 10/20/15 5547-5548
Case Appeal Statement filed on 10/21/15 5554-5556
Case Appeal Statement filed on 11/04/15 5572-5573
Case Appeal Statement filed on 11/24/14 5070-5071

Certificate of Mailing filed on 05/03/11
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Certificate of Service filed on 06/29/15 5434
Clerks Certificate Judgment Reversed and Remanded filed on 05/06/10 1623-1027
Criminal Bindover filed on 12/26/08 0004-0020
Criminal Order to Statistically Close Case filed on 07/31/13 4662
Defendant {)*Keefe's Opposition to Motion in Limine to Admit Evidence

of Other Bad Acts Pursuant to NRS 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic

Viclence Pursuant to 48.061 filed on 01/18/11 2877-2607
Defendant’s Brief on Admissibility of Evidence of Alleged Victim’s

History of Suicide Aternpts, Anger Qutbursts, Anger Management

Therapy, Self-Mutilation (With Knives andn Scissors), and Erratic

Behavior filed on 03/20/09 293-0301
Defendant’s Motion to Reguire Court to Advise the Prosepective Jurors as

to the Mandatory Sentences Required if the Defendant is Convicted of

Second Depree Murder filed on 03/04/09 (196-0218
Defendant’s Motion to Settle Record filed on 03/24/09 (317-0322
Defendant’s Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 03/20/09 0302-0316
Defendant’s Proposed Jury [nstructions filed on G8/23/10 1335-1393
Defendant’s Submission 10 Clark County District Attormey’s Death

Review Cormnmittee filed on 12/31/08 0021-0027
Defendant’s SBupplemental Proposed Jury Instructions filed on 03/20/09 | 0280-0292
Defendant’s Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 08/15/10 1294-1296
District Court Amended Jury List filed on 03/19/09 0245
District Court Jury List filed on 03/16/69 0239

Ex Parte and/or Notice of Motion and Motion to Chief Judge to Reassign

Case to Jurist of Reason Based on Pending Suit 3;14-CV-00385-RCJ-

WGC Against Judge Michael Villani for proceeding in Clear “Want of

Jurisdiction” Thereby Losing Immunity, Absolutely filed on 08/28/14 4903-4912
Ex Parte and/or Notice of Motion filed on 08/28/14 4913

Ex Parte Application for Order Requiring Material Witness to Post Bail

filed on 03/106/09 0232-623¢6
Ex Parte Motion for an Order Shortening Time filed on O8/16/10 1292-1293
Ex Parte Motion for Appointment of Counsel Pursuant to NRS 34.750

filed on 09/15/14 4950-4952
Ex Parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 06/30/10 1037-1043
Ex Parte Motion for Production of Documents {Specific) Papers,

Pleadings and Tangible Property of Defendant filed on 01/13/14 4714-4720
Ex Parte Metion for Reimbursement of Legal Cost of Faretta Canvassea

Defendant to Above Instant Case filed on 12/13/13 4701-4707
Ex Parte Motion for Release of Medical Records filed on 04/08/11 3041-3042
Ex Parte Motion te Extend Prison Copywork Limit filed on 06/24/15 5438-5441
Exhibits to Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus by a True Pretrial Derainee

filed on (9/15/14 4854-4980
Ex-Parte Motion for Reimbursement of Incidental Costs Subsequent the

Court Declaring Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Pauperis filed

on 01/21/14 47224747

A
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Ex-Parte Motion 1o Extend Prison Copywork Limit filed on 01/28/14 4764-4767
Filing in Support of Motion to Seal Records as Ordered by Judge filed on

G4/19/12 3438-3441
Findings of Fact, Conclusion of Law and Order filed on 10/02/15 5528-5536
Information filed on 12/19/08 (001-G003
Instructions to the Jury (Instruction Na. 1} filed on 09/02/10 1399-1426
Instructions to the Jury filed on 03/20/09 (246-0288
Judgment of Conviction (Jury Trial) filed on §9/05/12 4623-4624
Judgment of Conviction fled on 05/08/09 0327-0328
Judicial Notice Pursuant NRS 47.140(1)-NRS 47.150(2) Supporting Pro-

3¢ Petition Pursuant NRS 34.360 filed on 03/12/15 5082-5088
Jury List filed on 06/12/12 3456

Jury List filed on 08/25/10 1396
Letters in Aid of Sentencing filed on (5/04/09 0324-0326
Motion by Defendant (' Keefe filed on 08/19/10 1329-1334
Motion for Complete Rough Draft Transcript filed on 04/03/12 3430
Motion for Judicial Notice the State’s Failure to File and Serve Response

in Opposition filed on 02/24/14 4800-4809
Metion for Judicial Ruling filed or 05/24/10 1028-1G30
Motion for Leave to File Supplemental Petition Addressing All Claims in

the First Instance Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with

Affidavit filed on 06/15/15 5420-5422
Motion for Relief from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S.

Court of Appeals has not Issued any Remand, Mandate, or Remittinr

filed on 07/23/14 4871-4889
Motion to Continue Trial filed on 06/01/12 3450-3455
Motion to Dismiss Counsel filed on 10/03/11 3164-3168
Motion to Modify and/or Correct [llegal Sentence filed on 01/27/14 4749-4759
Motion to Place on Calendar filed on 10/26/11 3169-3182
Motion te Place on Calendar filed on 11/28/11 3184-3192
Motion to Withdraw as Counsel filed on 04/29/] | 3044-3047
Motion to Withdraw Counsel filed on 11/28/]1 1 3193-3198
Motion 1o Withdraw Counsel for Conflict and Failure to Present Claims

when LA.C. Claims Must be Raised Per Stamute in the First Petition

Pursuant Chapter 34 filed on 06/08/15 5148-5153
Motion to Withdraw filed on 09/14/10 1434-1437
Notice of Appeal filed on 03/13/14 48431-4849
Netice of Appeal filed on 04/11/14 4858-4861
Notice of Appeal filed on 05/21/09 0332-0335
Notige of Appeal filed on 07/31/15 5467-5472
Natice of Appeal filed on 08/11/15 5478-5483
Notice of Appeal filed on 08/29/14 4923-4924
Notice of Appeal filed on 10/21/15 5552-5553
Notice of Appeal filed on 11/403/15 5569-5571
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Notice of Appeal filed on 11/21/14

S067-506%

Noticg of Change of Address Rled on 06/06/14

4864-4865

Notice of Defendant’s Expert Witness filed on 02/20/09

(1180-0195

Notice of Defendant’s Wiinesses filed on 03/06/09

(224-0227

Notice of Entry of Findings of Fact, Conclusion of Law and Order filed
on 10/6/15

5537-5546

Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 03/05/09

0222-0223

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Kegfe for a Reasonable
Bail filed on 09/24/19

1441-1451

Notice of Motien and Motion by Defendant 0" Keefe for Discovery filed
on 08/G2/10

1211-121%

Notice of Motion and Mation by Defendant O'Keefe for Evidentiary
Hearing on Whether the State and CCDC have Complied with Their
Obligations with Respect to the Recording of a Jail Visit Between
(FKeefe and Stare Witness Cheryl Morris filed on 08/02/10

1220-1239

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Admit Evidence
Pertaining 10 the Alleged Victim's Mental Health Condition and History,
Including Prior Suicide Attempts, Anger Quibursis, Anger Management

Therapy, Seif-Mutilation and Errratic Behavior filed on 07/21/10

10&64-1081

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O Keefe to Admit Evidence

Pertaining to the Alleged Victim’s Memal Health Condition and History.
Including Prior Suicide Attempts, Anger Outbursts, Anger Management

Therapy, Self-Mutilation and Erratic Behavior filed on 07/21/10

1099-1116

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O’Keefe to Admit Evidence
Shewing LVMPD Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath
Alcohel Evidence in Another Recent Case filed on 08/02/10

1199-1210

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Dismiss on
Grounds of Double Jeopardy Bar and Speedy Trial Violation and,
Alternatively. to Preclude State’s New Expert Witness, Evidence and
Argument Relating to the Dynamics or Effects of Domestic Violence and
Abuse filed on 01/07/11

2785-2811

Notice of Motion and Mation by Defendant O’Keefe to Preclude Expen
Testimony filed on 08/16/10

1284-1291

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O"Keefe 1o Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trizl Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutional Rights filed on 07/21/10

1047-1063

Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe 1o Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Other Act or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his
Constitutional Rights filed on 07/21/10

1082-1098

Notice of Motion and Motion by defendant O'Keefe to Preclude the State
from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on
01/03/11

1682-2755

Notice of Motion and motion by Defendant O'Keefe to Suppress his
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Staternents to Police, or, Alternatively, to Preclude the State from

Introducing Portions of his Interrogation filed on 08/02/10 1152-1198
Notice of Motion and Motion for Leave of Court to File Motion for

Rehearing - Pursuant to EDCR, Rule 2.24 filed on 08/29/14 4914-4921
Natice of Motion and Motion in Limine to Admit Evidence of Other Bad

Acts Pursuant to NR.S 48.045 and Evidence of Domestic Violence

Pursuant 1o 48.06] filed on 01/06/11 2762-2784
Notice of Motion and Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Crimes filed on

(02/02/09 0130-0165
Notice of Motion and Motion to Admit Evidence of Polygraph

Examination Resulis fled on 03/29/12 3412-3415
Notice of Motion and Motion to Dismiss based Upon Violation{s) of the

Fifth Amendment Compenent of the Double Jeopardy Clause,

Constitutional Collateral Estoppel and, Alternatively, Claiming Res

Judicata, Enforceable by the Fourteenth Amendment Upon the States

Precluding State’s Theory of Prosecution by Unlawful Intentional

Stabbing with Knife, the Alleged Banery Ac¢t Described in the Amended

Information filed on 03/16/12 3201-3224
Notice of Motion and Motion to Seal Records filed on 03/22/12 3416-3429
Notice of Motion and Motion to Waive Filing Fees for Parition for Writ of

Mandamus filed on 12/06/13 4695-4697
Notice of Motion and Motion to Withdraw as Artorney of Record filed on

(9723115 5517-5519
Notice of Motion and Metion to Withdraw as Attorney of Record filed on

06/29/15 3525-5527
Notice of Motion filed on 01/13/14 4721
Notice of Motion filed on 01/21/14 4748
Notice of Motion filed on 01/27/14 4760
Naotice of Motion filed on 02/24/14 4810
Notice of Motion filed on 03/04/14 4833
Notice of Motion filed on 66/08/15 3154-5160
Notice of Motion filed on 07/23/14 4890
Notice of Motion filed on 08/29/14 4922
Notice of Motion filed on 09/15/14 4953
Notice of Witness and/or Expert Witnesses filed on D2/03/09 (166-0167
Notice of Witnesses and/or Expent Witnesses filed on 02/1 7/09 0178-0179
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/ Judpment Affimed filed on

02/06/15 3072-30R1
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Affirmed filed on

07/26/13 46534661
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

06/18/14 4866-4870
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

03/12/15 5089-5093

NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgment Dismissed filed on

B
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09/28/15 3520-5524
NV Supreme Court Clerks Certificate/Judgmen Dismissed filed on

10/29/14 5062-5066
O’Keefe's Reply to State’s Oppaosition 10 Motion to Admit Evidence

Showing LVMPD Homicide Detectives have Preserved Blood/Breath

Adcohol Evidence in Anocther Recent Case filed on 08/13/10 1256-1265
Opposition to State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Other Bad Acts filed

on (2/06/09 0169-0172
Order Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 03/04/09 02190220
Order Authorizing Contact Visit filed on 08/12/10 1253-1254
Order Denying Defendant’s Ex Parte Motion to Extend Prison Copywork

Limit filed on (08/13/15 5486-5488
Order Denying Defendant’s Ex-Parte Motion for Reimbursement of

Incidental Costs Declaring Defendant Ingigent and Granting Forma

pauperis filed on 03/11/14 4840-4842
Order Denyimg Defendant’s Motion for Relief From Judgment Based on

Lack of Jurisdiction for U.8. Court of Appeals had not Issues any

Remand, Mandare or Remittatture filed on 09/04/14 4927-4929
Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed on 04/11/12 3434-3435
Order Denying Defendant's Motion (o Seal Recoreds and Defendant’s

Motion io Admit Evidence of Plygraph Examination filed on 05/24/12 3448-3449
Order Denying Defendant’s Petition for Writ of Mandamus or in the

Alternative Writ of Coram Nobis; Order Denying Defendant’s Motion to

Waive Filing Fees for Petition for Wit of Mandamus; Order Denying

Defendant’s Motion to Appoint Counsel filed on 01/28/14 4761-4763
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Judifical Notice- The

State’s Failure to File and Serve Response in Opposition filed on 04/01/14 | 4855-4857
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Leave to File

Supplemental Petition Addressing ali Claims in the First Instance

Required by Statute for Judicial Economy with Affidavit filed on

07/15/15 5464-5466
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or Correct

Illegal Sentence filed on03/25/14 4852-4854
Order Denying Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Withdraw Counsel for

Conflict and Failure to Present Claims When [LA.C. Claims Must be

Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant to Chapter 34 filed on

07/15/15 5461-5463
Order Denying Matthew D. Carling’s Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of

Record for Defendant filed on | 1/19/15 5574-5575
Order Denying Motion to Disqualify filed on 10/06/14 3037-5040
Order filed on G1/30/09 0149
Order filed on 11/06/10 1462-1463
Order for Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 10/15/14 5051
Order for Production of Inmate Brian OFKeefe filed on 05/26/10 1032-1033
Order for Return of Fees filed on 11/10/11 3183
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Order for Transcripts filed on 04/30/12 o 3442
Order Granting and Denying in Part Defendant’s Ex-Parte Motion for

Production of Documents (Specific) Papers. Pleadings, and Tangible

Property of Defendant filed on 02/28/14 4818-4820
Order Granting Ex parte Motion for Defense Costs filed on 07/01/10 1044-1045
Order Granting Request for Transcripts filed on 01/20/1 2966-2967
Crrder Granting Reguest for Transcripts filed on 04/27/1 1 3043
Order Granting Reguest for Transcripts filed on 09/14/10 1430-1451
Urder Granting Request for Transcripts {iled on 09/16/10 1438-1439
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying, irs Part, Motion by Defendant

0O'Keefe for Discovery flled on 08/23/1D 1394-1395
Order Granting, in Part, and Denying, in Part, Motion by Defendant

O’Keefe to Preclude the State from Introducing at Trial Other Act or

Character Evidence and Other Evidence Which is Unfairly Prejudicial or

Would Viciate his Constitutional Righis filed on 09/09/10 1427-1429
Order Granting, in Part, the State’s Motion to Admit Evidence of Other 3199-3200
Bad Acts filed on 03/13/12

Order Releasing Medical Records filed on 04/08/1 1 303%-3040
Order Requiring Material Witness to Post Bail or be Committed to

Custody filed on 03/10/09 0230-0231
Order Shortening Time filed on 08/16/10 1283
Petition for a Writ of Mandamus or in the Alternative Writ of Coram

Nebis filed on 12/06/13 4663-4694
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus or in the Alternative Motion 1o

Preclude Presecution from Secking First Degree Murder Conviction

Based Upon the Failure to Collect Evidence filed on 01/26/09 0125-0133
Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive |

Based On Subject-Matter of Amended Information Vested in Ninth

Circuit by notice of Appeal Then “COA™ Granted on a Double Jeapardy

Violation with No Remand Issued Since filed on 05/15/14 4940-4949
Petitioner's Supplement with Exhibit of Oral Argument Scheduled by the

Ninth Circuit Court of Appeals for Nevember 17, 2014, Courtroom #1

filed on 10/01/14 4984-4988
Pro Se “Reply 10 State’s Opposition 10 Defendant’s Pro Se Motion to

Modify and/or Correct [llegal Sentence fited on 03/04/14 4821-4832
ProSe “Reply” to State’s Opposition to Defendant’s (Ex-Parte) “Motion

for Reimbursement of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declaring

Defendant Indigent and Granting Forma Pauperis™ filed on 02/24/14 4792-4799
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/03/11 2761
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/12/11 2812
Receipt of Copy filed on ¢1/12/11 2813
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/18/11 2876
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/27/09 (134
Receipt of Copy filed on 01/30/09 0146
Receipt of Copy filed on 02/06/09 0168
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Receipt of Copy filed on 03/04/09 0221
Receipt of Copy filed on 03/24/09 0323
Receipt of Copy filed on 05/24/10 1031
Receipt of Copy filed on 06/13/11 3163
Receipt of Copy filed on 06/30/1( 1036
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1240
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1241
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/02/10 1242
Receipt of Copy filed on 08/32/10 1243
Receipt of copy filed on 08/13/10 1255
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/14/10 1432
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/17/10 1433
Receipt of Copy filed on 09/21/10 1440
Receint of File filed on 07/01/10 1044
Reply in Suppont of Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus
(Post-Conviction) filed on (08/25/15 5500-5510
Reply to State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction

Petition for Habeas Corpus filed on (06/16/15 5423-5432
Reply 10 State’s Response 1o Defendant’s Supplemental Petition for Writ

of Habeas Corpus filed on 08/24/15 5489-5499
Regeust for Rough Drafi Transcripts filed on 10/21/15 5549-5551
Request for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 07/17/12 3458-3460
Reguest for Certified Transcript of Proceeding filed an 09/05/09 0772-0723
Request for Rough Draft Transcript filed on 05/21/09 D329-0331
Reguest for Rough Draft Transcripts filed on 11/20/12 4629463 1
Return to Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/29/09 (i35-0145
Second Amended Informatien filed on 08/19/10 1326-1328
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s (Ex-Parte) “Motion for Reimbursement

of Incidental Costs Subsequent the Courts Declaring Defendant Indigent

and Granting Forma Pauperis™ filed on 02/07/14 4768-4791
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for a Reasonable Bail filed on

09727710 1452-1461
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion for Judicial Notice — The

State’s Failure to File and Serve the Response in Oppeosition filed on

03/10/14 4834-4839
state’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Dismiss filed on 03/21/12 3407-3411
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the State from

Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and Argument filed on 01/12/11 2814-2871
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Seal Records filed on

04/05/12 3431-3433
State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Suppress his Statements to

Police, or, Alternatively, to Preclude the State from Introducing Portions

of his Interrogation filed on 08/17/10 1306-1319

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Motion to Withdraw Counsel for
Conilict and Failure to Present Claims When LA.C. Claims Must be

-0.
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Raised Per Statute in the First Petition Pursuant to Chapter 34 filed on
06/25/15

5442-5446

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion for Leave of Court 10
File Motion. . .Rule 2.4 {iled on 09/12/14

4935-4939

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion 1o Chief Judge to
Reassign Case to Jurist of Reason Based on Pending Suit Against Judge
Michael Villani for Proceeding in Clear “Want of Jurisdiction” Thereby
Losing Immunity, Absolutely filed on 09/12/14

4930-4934

State’s Opposition to Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Modify and/or
Correct Iliegal Sentence filed on 02/24/14

4811-4817

State’s Opposition to Motion for Evidentiary Hearing on Whether the
State and CCDC have Complied with their Obligations with Respect to
the Recording of & Jail Visit Between O°Keefe and State Witness Cheryl
Meorris filed on 08/10/10

1244-1247

State”s Opposition to Motion to Admit Evidence Pertaining to the Alleped
Victim’s Mental Health Condition and History, Including Prior Suicide
Atempts, Anger Outbursis, Anger Management Therapy, Self-Mutilation
and Erratic Behavior filed on 08/16/10

1277-1282

State’s Opposition to Motion to Admit Evidence Showing LVMPD}
Homicide Detectives Have Preserved Blood/Breath Alcohol Evidence in
Another Recent Case filed on 08/10/10

1248-1252

State’s Opposition to Motion to Dismiss and, Alternatively, to Preclude
Expert and Argument Regarding Domestic Violence filed on 01/18/11

29{8-2565

State’s Opposition to Motion to Preclude Expert Testimony filed on
08/18/10

1320-1325

State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss Defendant’s Motion for Relief
from Judgment Based on Lack of Jurisdiction for U.S. Court of Appeals
had not Issued any Remand, Mandare or Remittatture of filed on 08/07/14

4891-4902

State’s Response and Motion to Dismiss to Defendant’s Pro Per Petition
for Writ of Habeas Corpus Pursuant to NRS 34.360 Exclusive based on
Subject-Matter of Amended Informmation Vested in Ninth Circuit by
Notice of Appeal Then “COA™ Granted on a Double jEopardy Violatio
with No Remand Issued Since {Post Conviction). Amended Peition and
Accompany Exhibits, Opposition to Request for Evidentiary Hearing, and
Opposition to Pro Per Mation te Appoint Counsel filed on 10/10/14

3041-5050

State’s Response to Defendant’s Motion to Preclude the State from
Introducint at Trial Other Bad Acts or Character Evidence and Other
Evidence that is Unfairly Prejudicial or Would Violate his Contitutionsal
Rights filed on (8/16/10

1268-1276

State’s Response to Defendant's Patition for a Writ of Mandamus or in
the Alternative Writ of Coram and Response to Motion 1o Appoint
Counsel filed on 12/31/13

4708-4713

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Post-Conviction Petition for Wril
of Habeas Corpus filed on 06/02/15

5145-5147

State’s Response to Defendant’s Pro Per Supplemental Petition for Wit
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of Habeas Corpus and Evidentiary Hearing Request, “Motion for Leave to
File Supplemental Petition Addressing all Claims in the First Instance
Required by Statute for judicial Economy with Affidavit,” “Reply to
State's Response 1o Defendant's Pro Per Post Conviction Petition for
Habeas Corpus,” and “Supplement with Notice Pursuant NRS 47.150(2);
NRS 47.140(1), that the Untied States Supreme Court has Docketed (#14-
10093 ) the Pretrial Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 USC 224 1{¢c)(3)
from the Mooting of Petitioner’s Section 2241 Based on a Subsequent
Judgment Obtained in Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending” filed

on 07/09/15 5455-5458
State’s Response to Defendant’s Reply in Support of Supplemental Posi-

Conviction Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 09/03/15 §511-5516
state’s Response 10 Defendant’s Supplement to Supplemental Petition for

Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post-Conviction) filed on 07/31/15 5473-3475
State’s Supplemental Opposition to Motion to Seal Records filed on

04/17/12 3436-3437
Stipulation and Order filed on 02/10/09 0173-0174
Substitution of Attorney filed on 06/29/10 1034-1035
Supplement to Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus {Post-

Cenviction) filed on 07/13/15 5459-5460
Supplement with Notice Pursuant NRS 47.150 (2); NRS 47.140 (1), That

the United State’s Supreme Court has Docketed (#14-10093} The Pretrial

Habeas Corpus Matter Pursuant 28 U.5.C.§ 2241 ©(3) From the Mocting

of Petitioner’s Section 2241 Based on a Subsequent Judgment Obtained in

Want of Jurisdiction While Appeal Pending filed on 06/17/15 5433-5437
Supplemental Appendix of Exhibits to Petition for 2 Writ of Habeas

Corpus Exhibits One (1) Through Twenty Five (25) filed on 06/12/15 5161-5363
Supplemental Notice of Defendant’s Expert Witnesses filed on 67/29/10 I17-1151
Supplemental Notice of Expert Witness filed on D5/17/12 3443-3447
Suppiemental Netice of Expert Witnesses filed on 01/03/11 2756-2760
Suppiemental Nohiwe of Expert Witnesses filed on 08/13/1¢ 1266-1267
Supplemental Notice of Expert Witnesses filed on 08/16/10 1297-1305
Supplemental Notice of Withesses filed on 01/14/11 2872-2875
Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on 03/10/09 (228-0229
Supplemental Notice of Witnesses filed on (13/11/09 (237-0238
supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus (Post Conviction) filed

on 04/08/15 3094-5144
Supplemental Petition for Writ of Habeas Compus filed on 06/15/15 5364-5419
Verdicl filed on 03/20/09 0289
Verdict filed on 06/15/12 3457
Verdict Submitted to the Jury but Returned Unsigned filed on 09/02/10 1397-1398
Writ of Habeas Corpus filed on 01/30/09 (147-0148
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TRANSCRIPTS

Document Page No.
Transcript — All Pending Motions and Calendar Call filed on 02/04/11 2996-3038
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 07/10/0% 0351-0335
iranscript — Al Pending Motions filed on 08/30/12 3461-3482
Transcript — All Pending Motions filed on 11/23/10 1464-1468
Transcript - All Pending Motions on 07/10/09 0348-0330
Transcript - Calendar Call filed on 02/04/11 2968-2073
Transcript — Calendar Call filed on 08/30/12 3520-3535
Transcript — Continued Hearing: Motion in Limine to Present Evidence of

Other Bad Acts filed on 08/30/12 3483-3509
Transeript — Defendam’s Petition for Writ of Habeas Corpus {Post

Cenviction) filed on 10/29/15 5560-5564
Transcript — Defendant’s Pro Per Motion to Dismiss Based Upon

Violation(s) filed on 08/30/12 3510-3519
Transcript — Defendnat’s Motion to Settle Record filed on 07/10/09 0342-0345
Transcnpt — Entry of Plea/Trial Setting filed on 07/16/69 (3356-0358
Transcript — Jury Trail -~ Day 1 filed on 10/14/09 0724-1022
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 0582-0651
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 07/10/09 0652-0721
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 1 filed on 09/04/12 4278-4622
Transcript — Jury Trial -~ Day 1 filed on 11/23/10 1579-1602
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 2 filed on 07/10/09 0515-0581
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 2 filed on [1/23/10 1603-16]35
Transcript — Jury Trial — Dayv 2 on 09/04/12 4001-4227
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 07/10/09 0462-0514
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 filed on 11/23/10 1616-1738
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 3 on 09/04/12 3779-4000
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day 4 filed on 07/10/09 0408-0461
Transcripi — Jury Trial — Day 4 filed on 11/23/10 1739-2032
Transcript = Jury Trial — Day 4 on 09/04/12 3600-3778
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 07/10/09 0359-0407
Transcript — Jury Trial - Day § filed on 09/04/12 3538-3599
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 5 filed on 11/23/10 2033-2281
Transcript -- Jury Trial — Day 6 filed on 11/23/10 2282-2507
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 7 filed on 11/23/10 2508-2681
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 8 filed on 11/23/10 1469-1470
Transcript — Jury Trial — Day 9 filed on 11/23/10 1471-1478
Transeript — Matthew D. Carling’s Motion to Withdraw as Attorney of

Record for Defendant filed on 10/29/15 5557-5559
Transeript — Motions Hearing — August 17, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1479-1499
Transcript — Motions Hearing — August 19, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1500-1536
Transcript ~ Motions Hearing — August 2§, 2010 filed on 11/23/10 1537-1578
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Transcript — Notice of Motion and Motion by Defendant O'Keefe to
Preclude the State from Introducing at Trial Improper Evidence and

Argument filed on 02/04/11 2974-2989
Transeript — Partial Transeript of the Jury Trial - Day 2 filed on 03/18/09 | 0240-0244
Transcript — Petrocelli Hearing filed on 05/19/11 3049-3162
Transcript — Proceedings filed on 01/02/09 N028-0124
Transcript — Sentencing August 16, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4632-4635
Transcript — Sentencing August 28, 2012 filed on 12/03/12 4636-4652
Transeript — Sentencing filed on 07/10/09 0337-0341
Transcript — Status Check: Availability of Dr. Benjamin for Trial filed on

02/G4/11 2990-2995
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1 Q Ukay. Okay. Now when you were asked to axamine --

2| compare the knife with known exemplars. you were also acked to
3| compare it to Victoria Whitmarsh's exemplars: is that correct?
4 A Yes. Sha was listed on the reguest as -- which would
g be typical in this -- in any investigation, to look at all of

E the people who may have access to a particular icem.

7 9] Okay.

8 ) Elimination -- of these elimination standards. 3o

g her listing was algo on the reguest.
1o 9} Ckay. HNow you had said that the area of the hand, I

11 believe that's called the writer's axea; ia that the term for

iz it?
13 h Well the writer's area would actually -- the writer's
14 -- what we call the writer's palm would actually be out a

15| little further than what I've described to the jury today.

16 L] Okay.

17 A Because in the writer's palm, what we call a writer's
1g palm is this blade, or cthe end, And it's called that in the

1% vernacular, Because if you put your hand down to sigh

20 something, that's the portion of the hand that's going to touch
21 scmething, as if you're writing.

22 But normally what happens ot that atea of the hand is
23 that the ridges begin to get skinnier and skinnier and

24 skinnier, and they eventually kind of bhlend inte the rest of

25 your akin. And I didn't ses any of that in thia particular
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tpuch. 8o that's why I believe that the print was more in thia
hypothenar, this area on the fatty part of the hand, ap opposed
to that writer's blade,

Q Ckay. And it was in blood? It waz a —-

. Well in --

e} -- patent print?

A It was a patent print. How it appeared £o be blgod
to me. I am not a ONA or a blood expert, that the print did
appear to be in what I would call suspected blood.

Q Okay. and before you subjected the knife to the
various mean=s of enhancement, was DNA already collected from
ie?

A Yes,

Q Okay. So when you did the final enhancement where
you subiject the entire knife surface to the super glue method?

A Only the blade would have been subjected to the super
glue process, And the handle would have subjected to the acid
yellow process.

Q ckeay. If you had previcusly tescified chat you usge
the super glue method on the entire knife surfacs, would that
be incorrect?

¥ oh.

Q 1 can approach if it would --

A Well the entire --
Q -- help you remember.
ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPFT
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A Well I suppoee the entire knife would have been
placed iato the super glue tank,

Q Okay.

A The primary area of my interest though would have
bean the blade. Because the acid vellow at that point, by
applying this liquid cover the handle. If there had been any
regidue left there that would have been developed by super
glue, it would have been gons, becsause it would have been
gimply rinsed away.

Sa even though I processed -- may have processed cthe
whole item with the glue, and maybe with -- and even maybe
dipped it with the -- as I said, that chemical that we use the
ALS (phonetic) with, my primary emphasis was on locking at the
klade for additional latent prints.

o] Ckay. Once you performed the super glue -- you know

& Yes.

Q -- method of analysis, would that have corrupted any
DA that was left there? Or would it have ruined the ability
ta collect other DHA?

A Additional DNA?

o Additional DNA.

R I believe there has been -- have been -- and maybe
the witness who comes after me next can explain this better.

But I belisve that therse still are some -- there is still some
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ability to collect DNA from items even after they have been
Gglued, super glued, is what my recollecrion is from some
articles that I'wve resad.

Q Okay.

¥ S We don't like te do it thah way. We like te collect
-- obvicusly collect the blood sample, or anything from the
item prior to latent fingerprint processing.

g Qkay. And that's why you do the DNA first?

A Absolucely. It geoes through a seguential system
through che laboratery, starting with DMA, and moving it's way
through the laboratcry in an organized manner.

o Could the blood on the knife handle have bsen caused
from dripping. and then laying a hand on the knife? From blood
dripping onte the knife, and then a hand resting on it?

MS. CRAHAM: Objecticon. It's beyond his scope of
knowledge.

THE CQURT: Sustained,
BY MS. PALM:

o Are you familiar with how fingerprints are caused?

h Yes.

Q And you're familiar with that fingerprints can bae
imposed on a bloody surface?

a Correct.

Q Ckay. Weould you -- is it -- are you able to

determine if a fingerprint might have been caused by blood

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT
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dripping on a surface, and then --

MS. GRAHAM: Objection, Judge. She --

M5. PALM: -- a hand resting oo it?

M5, GRAHAM: He's not a blood spatter sxpart. He's
fingerprint eaperk analysis.

THE COURT: Ms, Falm, why don't you ask him 1f he --
if Mr. Guenther has that expertise ta answer that dquestion.
BY M5. PALM:

Lol Do you have the expertiss to answer that guestion,
sir?

A Well I'm certainly not a hlood apatter expert by any
stretch of the imagination. I mean, could give a layman's
opinion based on the hleod that I've seen on evidence. That
would be it

Q Dkay. Well can you give an opinion on a fingerprint
might be placed in blood because blood had somshow gotten onto
that surface?

A I sould give a generality.

2 Okay.
A What we normally -- what was normally observed is if
the print -- if the bloed is on the fingers, and there is not

too muach pressure applied, what you'll see is that the ridge
getail will bBe in blood. oOften if the blood is an a surface,
and the had or finger touches it, and it's -- and once again,

findlacearnible) a very small amount of blocsd. 5And the hand

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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would pull the blood away from that surface, then the ridges
would be in what we call a reversed position.

8o in other words, they're not as you would normelly
visuallze them. They're going to be kind of flipped backwards,
because the ridges actually pulled that blecd away, as opposed
toe the hlood being deposited an that surface. Generally
speaking, that's rhe only way you can tall.

Q Okay. And in thip situation, there jusat was not
snough clarity for you to be able to determine either way?

A I would not like to venture a guess. There 13 a --
it'o a omall area there.

¥ Okay. Thank you very much,

A Okay.

MS. PALM: No more gquesgtions.

THE COURT: Any redirece?

M5. GRAHAM: No, Judgs.

THE COURT:; Any guestions from any of the jurcrs? No
gquestionsa. Thank you, Mz, Guenther, for your testimony. You
are excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Homor.

MS. GRAHAM: Thank vou, Mr. Guaenther.

UNENOWN MALE SPERKER: {Indiscernible} .

THE COURT: All right. Do wae have & questicn? Oh,
we did have a guestion.

THE WITHESS: Sorry.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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1] THE COURT: Counsel, approach.

2 [(0ff-Tecord bench conference)

3 THE COURT: Mr. Guenther, we hava a guesticn from one
4 of the jurcrs.

L THE WITNESS: Yes, Your Honor.

£ THE COURT: “Is it possible and or likely prints will
7| wipe off the kpife?®

8 THE WITHESS: Well in wmy snalysis of the knife prior
9 to the collection that Jen Bas did, because I did examine the
10 knife in her presence prior to her collection, and then my
11 subaegquent processing, I did not see any indication on the
12 knife anywhere of any kind of wipe marks.
13 Now when I got the knife eventually and I did process

14 it, there were some rub areas cn the knife itself. And those
15 were caused by Ms. Bas and her collection technigue, where they
1% -- and she will explain all of this, how it's -- how blood is
17 sweabbed off of a surface.

18 But when I did that initial wvisual exsmination in her
19 | pressnce at her work area, I did no see any indicated that the
20| blogod -- that the knife had been wiped in any fashion

21 whatsoever.

22 THE COURT: All right, thank you. Ms. Graham, do you
23 have any follow up questions to that guestion?

24 MS. GRAHAM: Judge one, Judge.

25 REDIRECT EXAMINATION
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BY M5. GRAHAM:

o Will you always find evidence of a wiping if a wiping
coourred?

A Na.  Ho,

THE COURT: Mz, Palm, any follow up?

RECROSS-EXAMINATION
BY MS. PALM:

g Would you have expected to find some evidence of
wiping if a wiping occurred?

. It's hard to say. I -- it's wvery difficult to say.
Sometimes 1f there's moisturs on the blocd or if thers's
moigture oo the hand, or if there's -- if say a cloth is used
to actually wipe it., or if a hand is used to wipe that surface,
these arae all variables that come into whether -- you know,
whether you can actually visualize these things.

So it's really difficult to make an asserticn about
things -- about that, It truly is. But you can definitely
tell when it's not. But you're asking me if I can tell if it
ig, it's hard.

o Okay .

A It's really difficult.

Q Okay. Well there was -- there was the blood that's
on the handle of the knife that you locked at?

A ¥Yos.

o} Okay. Did that appear to have wipe marks inm ik?

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT
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A No.

g Ckay. And the knife Blade that you examined had some
blaod on it?

A Yes.

Q Okay. AaAnd there was nothing to indicate to you that
it had been wiped off’

E-9 No. When I -- ad I explained to the jury, wien I saw
that knife the wvery first time in the presence of the DNA
analyst, Jen Pas, and I locked at ik, there was no indication
of & wipe -- of any wipe marks on that blada ar that cime.

s Thank you.

M5. GRAHAM: Just briefly, Judge.
FURTHER REDIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MS. GRAHAM:

e And you say indication of any wipe marks. That
doesn't mean that there -- the knife was not wiped off before
it was given to you for analysis?

ME. PALM: Asked and answered, Your Honor,
THE COURT: No, overruled.
EBY MS. GRAHAM:

(8] You can answer.

F:1 Oh. Well az I paid, when I got the -- when I
eventually received the Jmife from Jennifer Bas, then,
eapecially after when I did my wisual examlnations and so

forth, I could eee where her collection technigue had made some
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wipe marks on the blade especially, because she was in the
procesa of collecting thoge blood swabs that were on the blade.
S0 yes, at that point I did see some wipe marks from

-- caused by the solution and the movement that they use in

collecting blood.

4] Um-hum. Bur my gquesktion specifically Mr. Guenther
was, just because you didn't see wipe marks that would indicate

ecmebody actually took a knife and wiped it off with a sheet

doesn't necessarily mean that didn't happen?
A ¥Ho. It doesn't necesgarily mean thae, no.
Q Ckay.
THE OUURT: Ms. Balm?
MS. PALM: No more guestions. Thank you.
THE QOURT: Any other questiens by the jurora?

questions., Thank you sir, for your testimony. You are

excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank you, Your Henor.

THE COURT: MNext witness for the State?

THE WITHWESS: Jemnnifar Basa.

THE MARSHMYL: Ma'am, raise your right hand and face
the clerk,

JEMMIFER BARS, STATE'S WITHNESS, SWORN
THE CLERK: Fleasa be seated.

THE WITWESS: Thank you.

THE CLEHRE: full up to your mic. And state and spell
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THE WITNESS: My name is Jennifer Bas.
J-E-HN-N-I-F-E-R, EBH-A-5,.
DIRECT EXAMINATION
BY MR. LALLT:

Q Ma'am how are you employed?

A I work Eor the Las Vegas Metropolitan Police
Department. I'm the DNA technical leader of the biclogy DNA
detail.

o Okay.

F:8 Sorry.

Q That's okay. ¥You indicate that you're & techtileal
leadex?

A Thak '3 correct.

Q What is a technicel leader?

A I am technically responsible for everything that
comes out of the DNA lab. I'm responsible for everybody's
training, &ll of our guality control procedures, I am
responsible for following the federal -- the FBI's gualicy
assurance standards rthat set forth what it means to be an
accredited DNA lab. Prier to this, for the six lasr years,
was alac a forensic scientist gpeclalizing in DNA tesbing.

g So I take it the position of being a technical

director is kind of a supervisory pesgition?

A It's a position thar's mandated by the Federal Bureau
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1| of Investigation. I do not supervise people. However, I do

2 have the authority to shut down the laboratory if I felt there
3 was any issues. I am responsible for everybedy that'g in

4 training and the qualicty of their work that leaves the

o laboratory as well.

& 0 So it's kind of & guality assurance managsr-type

7| poesition?

B A Exactly.
9 2 Am 1 getting closer?
ig A Yes.
11 1] Okay, thanks. Now you indicated that in addition to

12 that positcion, at least at one point, you alsc did analysis?

13 A Yes,

14 Q Do you still do analysis?

15 A I do.

16 g What kind of analysis?

17 A Since 2044, I've been a forensic scientlst

18 | specializing in ONA testing. Over the course of that six

1@ yvears, I've processed over 500 cases and thousanda of samples
29 for DHNA. So I am axpected to be a fully trained DHA analyst.
21 That means that I examine evidence, I make comparisons, I issue
22 reports and do all of the things that other DNA sxaminers do.
23 Q Ckay. Can you tell us about your formal education?
24 A Yes. I hava a bachelor of science degree in genetlcs

and cell biology from the Undiversity of Minnescta. And Lhen I
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algo have a masters in forenslc science specializing in
molecular biclogy from George Washington University. As I
menticned, I'we been employed in the forensic DMA testing field
for over gix yeoars.

And prior to working at Metro, I worked at the Armed
Farces DHA identification laboratory in Rockville, Maryland,
wherse my primary job responsibilities were to identify soldiera
that had 1lecst their lives in previcue weork conflicts, or
currsnt work conflicts like Irag and Afghanistan.

Q Did you do that using DHA?

A Yes.

Q Dkay. So how long have you bhesn at Metro?

A Dver three years.

o) Have you ever testified in the courts of Mevada as an
expert in the area of DNA analysig?

A I have.

ME. LALLI: Your Honor, at this point I would ask
that Ms. Bas be allowed to testify as ta her opinionms in the
area of DHA analysis.

THE CQURT: Yes, she can tastify in that Field,

BY MR. LALLI:

Q Ms. Ba=, can you explain to us what is DNA, and how
ig it used to agssist in criminal investigatlons?

A I like rto think of DNA as kind ef the blueprint for

the human body. It'a a molecule that's found in the cell, and
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it's what makes each of us unigue from the person sittipng next
to you. With the exception ¢f identical cwins, no people on
this planet have the same DMA profile.

Atd so iv's very useful in ipvestigative situations
ta try and identify the source of the ODNA of who could bBave
been contributing to certain pieces of evidence that I'm
examining. And so more generally what I do is I take evidence
from crime scenes, and I generate DNA profiles from that.

And I z2lsc generate DNA profileg in the form of a
buccal swab, which 1g a swab from the inside of a cheek, for a
known individual. And then I can compare those DNA profiles
from the unknown samples to the known individual to determine
who may be included or excluded as contributing to that DNA.

] Wichout getting too much into nitty gritty, can you
Just explain in wery general terms how you make a DHA
compayison?

A ¥eah. There's & few steps in the laboratory that I
have to do. Typically, an item is examined for DONA and s
sample is collected, whether 1 swak that piece of evidence, or
a crime gvene investigator takes a collection at the scens and
gives it to me.

I take that piece of evidence intc the laborakory,
and I do four basic steps te it. The first thing that I want
to do is extract the DMA. It essentially means that I'm going

Ea isclate the DNA and get it by itself so that I can do
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further testing on it.

The next thing that I do ia, it's called
guantitation. And basically I'm just trying to figure ocut how
much DHA is present. The third thing that we do is to amplify
the DNA, which basically means I want to go in and look at
certain regions of the DNA, and make millicns of copies of it
80 that I can interpret it on the fourth stage, which is
analysie on the instrument,

So from start to finisgh, I go in the lab and I do
that extracticon, the quantitation, the amplification. Thank
you, Thank you.

Q You'te welcome.

A And analyze it om the instrument. And then the DHA
profile igs genersted in a format that I can visgalize. Once
i've generated a profile from a piece of esvidence, and I can
gensrate ancther profile from a known contributoer, I compare
those visually. &o --

o -~
Yeah @o --

I'm --

b = B

Ho, go ahead.

Q That's ckay. 5o the analysis that you were just
talking about deals with unknown biological fluild, such as
blood, at a crime scene; is that correct?

A That'a correct.
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4] And you compare it with a known sample from an
individual?

A Yes.

Q You used the terminclogy, & buccal swab. GCGftantimes
are buccal gwabg used ag a known?

A Yes, Buckle swabs are almost excluaively uged as a
known reference sample for an indlvidual.

Q How is a buccal swab generally cecllected?

A We just take a swab and scrape the inside of che
mouth. You know, hopefully this 13 a really good scurce of
your own DNA. I wouldn't expect anybody elsge's ONA to be
lingering in your meuth. And so that gepnerates a nice profile
that we can compare to the evidence items.

o Iz that profile somekbimes zeferred te as a standard?

A it ie.

Q Okay. Did -- in this particular case, what standarde

or known samples of DNA did you use, and for whom?
A May I refer to my case file?
Did yoi create a case file --
¥ did.
-- as part of your analysis?
I did.
Q Did you prepare your notes at or near the time of
yYOur comparison?

A 1 did.
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Q And as you did so, did you accurately record the
information in your notes?

A I did.

Q You may do Bo.

K Thank you. Two bucecal swab atandards were submitted
ta me as known referencea, The first was from Victoria
Whicmarsh, and the msecond was from Brian 0O'Keefe.

D Dkay., Let's talk about the buccal swab from Brian
C'Kmefa, Were you able to obtain a DNA profile from that?

A I did. 1I generated a full male profile, which meaane
that I was able to obtain DNA results at all of the locations
that I test.

o Dkay. And with respect to Victoria Whitmarsh, was
that a buccal swab collected at autopsy in an evidencs
collection kit?

A I believe ao, yes.

Q Okay. And were you able to cbtain a full DNA preofile
from that buccal swab?

B I was., It was a full profile consistent with a
female.

Q A1l right. Now let's talk abour gome of the things
that you compared. Just for the henefit of the jury, I'm golng
to publish State's Exhibit number 26. BAnd then State's Exhibit
number 29, Crime scene analyat Maldonado testified that she

impounded a swab of what appears Lo be & red substance cn a
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light awitch. Did you have the occcastion to analyze that swab?

A
swab frem
was blocd
from that

Q
posicive?

A

phenolphthalein. And when it reacts pesitively, it's a

prasumptive test, meaning that it indlcates that bleod is

present.

¢ase the full male profile, that's confirming that that was

blood.

Q

profile of the dafandant, Brian O'¥Xeefe?

A

Q

A

L

¥
the bBleod
G'Keafe,
read that

Q

A

136

I received & swab from Jocelyn Maldonado. It was a
a light switch cover. I tested it for kload, and it
positive. And then I developed a full male profile
Blood.

How do you test it to determine whether it is bloed

We do a presumptive test in the laboratory, it's call

and then when I generate a human DNA profile, in this

Did you compare that full male profile with the

I digd.

And what were your results.

I'm going to refer to my report specifically.

Thkay.

Thank you. The DNA prefile that was obtained from
on the light switch cover was conaistent with Brian
We generate a statistic associated with it, and 1'1l
to you,

Wall befors you read that --

oh.
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Q -- gan you explain bo the jury -- I'm not a math
perscrn. Butbt <¢an you explain to them -- you indicate that it's
consistent. And but you also associate a statistic with chat?

F.N That's correct.

o Explain what that statistic means.

A Okay. The statistic that I'm going to tell you
about, it's called =mn identity statement. When we have a
sample of evidence match or be consistent with a known
reference standard, we generate a statistic. The statcistic
that I generated here is rarer than 100 timss the entire
Earth's populatien.

8o if you were to take 188 Earths, all of the people
on the Earth 100 times over, the ststistic was more rare than
that, And so we cap it off at 100 times the Earth's
population, and we <all it an identity statement, meaning that
the identity of the bloocd is assumed to have originated from
that person.

Q Okay. To a degree of certainty more tham 100 times
the pepulaticn of our Earth?

A Yes.

Q And whose blood was that?

A Brian O'Keefe's.

2 All gight. ¥ow we had some testimony about what is
depicted in State's 35, which are some stretch pants located in

a bathroom. Did you c¢reate some diagrams to help explain aresas
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of evidence that were in fact tested?
X I did.
Q All right. Did you create a diagram specifically for
some black stretch pants?
A I did.
ME. LALLI: May I appreoach?
THE COURY: Yes.
MR. LAELI: Thank you.
BY ME, LALLI:
Q Showing you what we've marked as State's proposed 123
for identification purpases, do you recognize that’y
A I da.
o What 1s it?
A This is & picture that I tock in the laboratory of &
pair of black stretch pants.
Q and is there also gome arrows and some diagraming on
the phaotographa?
A Yes.
Q Would this exhibit assist you in explaining the
regults of your amalysis to the jury?
A It would.
ME. LALLI: Your Honor, move for the admission of
Statre's proposed 123.
MS. EAIM: No objecticon.

THE COURT: It will be admitked,
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{Exhibit 123 admitted)
MR, LALLI: Okay.
BY MR. LALLTI:

L] What I will do is -- well why don't you explain,
there's some labeling up at the top of this?

it Surea.

(8 what is that?

A The laheling at the very top is the event number
under which I analyzed the evidence. The JBS is my iniltials
for Jennifer Bas: and 5 meaning it was the S5th item of evidence
that I examined. We always create a unigue identifier for a
piece of evidence. And then in the yellow --

0 Well let's go to the left midae first,

A Sure.,

Q and I'll zoom in there. Whar is that?

A Okay. So this is a picture of ocne side of the black
stretch pantsa. And here you see my labeling -- oh. Right
thera you scoe the labeling of the event number, that unigue
identifier that I just mentioned, as well as the date that I
examined it.

Q Let's move ovar to the lefthand zide now. What is
this?

A Okay. This ig a picture that I took where it might
be kind of hard to see what I had done. But right there, I had

the pants laying flat out, and then I tock the pant leg, and I

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFPT

1062420




10

11

12

13

14

1%

1le

17

g

15

20

21

22

23

24

25

140

foclded it up so that it was laying on top of the top of the
pants over hers. And sc these two circled areas are indicakting
the areas that I took samples af on the pants.

Q Okay. So I'm going to zoom in to the lower of those
Ewi,

A Okay .

=] Doess that -- well what is 1it? Is that a bloosd spet
at the bottom of the pants?

A Thig i=. I noticed a blopod Epot on the fronc side of
the pant, on the lower left ankle area, and zs I had mentioned
before, if I see something that appears te logk like blood, I
do that prasumptive best to let me know that it is bloed,

Q Did you do that in this case?

A I did.

Q And what were your results?

A It was presumptively positive for blood.

g So did you perform an analveis on that area of the
panks?

A I did. 8o T tock a eample of that bloodstaln, and I
took it on to DMA tescing.

Q And what éid you f£ind?

A The profile that was generated from this particular
gtain wag a mixture, meaning that more than one pearson's DHA
was present in that specifiec locatiem.

g So let me just ask you this. We looked at the swab
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taken from the light switch. Is that different from this DMA
resulg?

A That was. The swah that was taken from the light
switch was consistent witfi a single source, meaning that ic
originated from one individwal. This particular DNA profile
generated from this stain is a mixture.

2 Okay. Are you able ta make comparispon statements or
conclusions with respect to DHA mixtures?

A Tes.

] Okay. Did you compare this particular bloodstain
against the ONA profiles of the defendant and the DFA profile
of Victoria Whitmarsh?

A T did.

Q And can you tell us what you found?

A The DMNA that was obtained from cthis particular stain
was consistent with a mixture of two lpdividuwals. And chose
two individuals that could not -- that were included in that
mixture were Brian O'Keefe and Victoria Wnitmarszsh.

] 5o you could not exclude chem?

- Ko, I could not exclude either of them.

8 All right. Bo -- now you wentioned in the previous
example a statistical number associated with ycur comparison?

A Yes,

6] Do you alas receive statistical numbers with respect

te the compariscon of mixtures?
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I generate statistics.
You gensrate those?

Yes.

Q Do they work a liccle differently?
A

They do. So thie ig & different type of scenario.
Berause it's a mixture of two people, I have Lo generate a
ctatistic that is c¢ongistent with a mixture, So the statistie
that I generate in espence ig saying, what percentage of the
population could be excluded from this mixture, And sc the
statistic wae that greater than 9% point 99 percent of other
individuals in the population could be excluded from this
mixture profile.

Q Could e excluded?

A Yesg.

Q Okay. Are you able to put that number in the
inverae, like the identiry atatement we talked about in the
last example? 2Are you able to give us in other words a
frequency of inclusion for that --

A Yeo.

Q -=- mixture?

A I can generate -- it's called a combined probability
of inelusion. It's slightly different, because again it's a
mixture. So the ineclusion‘s statement is basically saying,
what percentage of individuals in the popularion could be

included in that mixture.
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Q Ckay. A&nd what number did you reach for thatc
stacistic?

A I'm just going to refar to that --

Q If you would.

¥ -— gtatistic page, please, The gtatistic was that
approximately 1 in 21,000, 8%0 pecple could he included. So one
cut of every 21,000,890 individuals.

Q Okay. So if you take a group of what, Z1 million --

over 21 million people, two of those people would be --

A One --

Q 0r one of thoase pecple --

A I would expect one person to be included for every
million.

Q Got it. Thank you.

A You're welcome.

8] Now that wasn't the only are=a on thesge pants that you
looked at, was ic?

A Ho.

3] In addition to at the hottom cuff area of the pants,
did you alsc lock at ancther stain on the pants?

A ¥Yag,

g And does that -- am I correct that we're loocking at
almost the very top of the pants, or?

A Yeah, this is the top. It's kind of the front panel

of the pant, undermeath the waist drawstring area, or the waist
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-- elastic walst area.

Q Okay. UDid you perform an analysis of the blood in
that araa?

A Yes., Again I saw red, which indicated blacd to me.
I did a presumptive test for bloed, and it was pomitive. From
this sample, I generated a pingle pource profile, and that was
consistent with Victoria Whitmarsh, meaning she is the source
of the blocd that was at that location.

a] Ckay. ©Did you analyze a DA collection kit that was
collected at autopsy?

A I examined an evideace collecticn kic from Victoria
Whitmarsh.

o All right. Can you tell the jury what kinds of
things are in a DHA collectien kit?

a One of the first things that is collected is a buccal
swab. As I mentioned earlier, that's used as the atandard
known of the individual, where this kit was collected from. I
also received some vaginal swabs, some cervical swabs, rectal
swabs, an oral swabs (sic), which just means from the mouth,
tha oral cavity. I received a2 pubic hair brushing., and some
nail clippings from the right and the left hands.

o] Okay. Did you analyze the vagipal swabs, the
cervical swabs, the rectal swab, the oral swab for the presence
of gemen?

. I did.
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] Aind what were your regults.

A The vaginal swabs, the cervical swabs, and the rectal
swaba were all semen negative, meaning I did not detect any
samen at all, aAnd the oral swabs, they were negativaly
presumptive for semen.

2 COkay.

A 1 think I had mentioned earlier that I kind of do --
I do a presumptiwve test, and then I can do a confirmatbory test.
8o for the firat three, the vaginal, ¢ervical and oral, I was
ahle to confirm that semen was not there. For the oral swabs,
1 did that first presumtive test. It was negative, and I
stopped testing at that point.

&) Okay. Now did you also have the fccasion to analyze
nail clippinga?

A I did.

[#] And when those are collected, are they designated as
from the right hand and from the left hand?

A In this case. they wers.

Q All right. What if anything did you find with regard
to the right hand nail clippings of Vicroria Whitmarsh?

A There was blood in the right hand fingernail
clippinga, it was positive for blocd. And the profile
generated from that was & full female profile, and it was
Wictoria Whitmarsh.

O What about the left hand nail <clippingas?
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A Again, there was also blood on the fingernails. And
the DNA frem that blood was Victoria whitmarash ag well.

8] Qkay. I'm going to show or publish for the just
State's Exhibit number €2. Did you analyze a swab that was
collaected by Dan Ford {(phonetic) frem the right index finger cof
the defendant?

A I did.

Q Ckay. And you subjected it to the aame sort of
analysis that we've been -- cops, I gan't really tell what that
i9. What if anything did you find in that analysis?

A The awab that was submitted to me wag from the right
index finger of Brian ¢'Xeafa. That was positive for blood.
And I goenerated a full male profile, and the source of that
blood was Brian Q'Keefe.

Q In your report, you indicated that there ware

additional alleles below threshold which were detected.

A Ckay .
Q Iz that correct?
A That's correct.

Q And I don't want to get overly technical here, hut
can you explain to us what that means?

A Surem. The DMA profile that I generats iz essentially
made up of alleles. And what I like to thipnk of alleles as is
differant forms of a gene, And so maybe you might hawve heard

that if you're a female, you have X and X chromoscmes, and
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maybe you've heard that males have an X and a Y.

and so I -- that's a really good example of what an
allele ia., BEven through they're from the same location or in
the same general area, they're two different forms of the same
gene. S0 males are X and a ¥, and females are X apnd X.

And so the alleles are the profile that I generated
of Brian Q'Keefe, you know, that's what his alleles are or his
DNA profile, And in this cage, there was an indication that
there was gome cther DHA there. But it wasn't abova my
threahold, so I couldn't make any determinaticns aboub it one
way or the cther.

Q So for ¥ou to make a conclusion with respect to
biological fluid, am I correct that there has to be encugh
information thera for you to da ip?

A Thatts correct.

Q Mr. Guanther just testified that he was able to find
a partial patent print on the knife, and there just wasn't
encugh information there for him to conduct an analysis. 1Is
that kind of the game giruation here?

¥ That's correct. I do not -- the DNA that I talking
{sic) to you about in court has to meet a certain thresheld for
me to report it. So¢ the DNA profile thar I cbtainad, Brian
O'Keefe's profile met that threshold, and it exceeded that
threghold. There was a little bit of something else thers, but

it didn't meat that thresheld that I need te determine what
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2lge it was.
Q That something else thers, ia it -- can you tell
whether it's human DHNaAZ
A I would have to lock at the profile. I mean -- yes.

Because the markers that we amplify are human gpecifig, it's
just not there at a level that I ¢sn make any conclusive
statements about it cne way or the other.
Q Okay .
MR. LALLI: May I approach the witnese?
THE CQURT: Yas.
BY MR. LALLI:
c Ma. Bas, I want to show you what we've marked as
State's proposed --
(Pause in preceedings)

BY MR. LALLI:

Q -- State's proposed 121 and 122. Do you recognize
thoge?
A I do.

o Are those similar explanatory diagrams, except with
respect to a knife?
A Yea.
MR, LALLI: Your Honor, I would move for the
admisaion of State'a proposed 121 and 22.
MS. PALM: No cbjection.

THE COURT: They will be admibbed.
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{Exhibits 121 122 admitted}
EY ME. LALLI:

Q Puring the course of this trial, Ms. Bas, there's
been a lot of discussion about a knife that was recovered from
the crime scena,

A Ckay.

G And so I want to show you your diagram, State's
Exhihit 121. What 1s that?

A These are some plictures of the knife that I take for
my own reccllectlon, and I keep these pictures in my case file.
Up at the top again, you sea the even:t number under which the
knife was collected. And then the initials, JB4, again JE for
my name, and 4 being that it was the fourth item of evidencs
thar I examined.

a Ckay. Let's zoom in to the lefthand photo.

. This is a picture of how the knife was packaged
inaide the hox at the time that I receiwved it.

Q And there appear to ke the initials JM, and the P
number in between. Do you see that?

A ¥Yeah, that Jocelyn Maldonado's P number and initials.

Q Have you analyzed items impounded by Ms. Maldonado
=

A Cuice freguently.
Q Okay. And let's move to the top lefthand photo.

What's Ehat?
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A Thiz is a picture of one gide of the knife.

Q And is there -- what appears to be a ruler type
device above it¥

A Yas.

Q Ckay. BSco on cone side of the knife, do you see any
biological -- what you later confirmed to be biclogical fluid
e that =ide of the knife?

A Well I can see there's some, you know, red staining
up here. And T also see a liktle bit over here. And this is
just based on this picture.

Lo Sure. Ckay. How let me just go down to right below
it. what's that?

A And this ig the other side of the knife. And hare I
can see some, you know, more distinct stains.

Q Did you analyze both sides of the knife?

A I analyzed different areas of the knife. I would
rathey lock ab the picture with the circled items.

a] Ckay. Let's do that. Let's move to State's Exhibic
number 121, And I'll zoom out just for a moment eo we can get
some perspective. And I'1] go over ko the le=fthand side.

A Okay.

o Okay. What are we logking at there?

A The areas that are in yellow are specific areas that
I tegted on the knife. I think when you look atk itc, if you gan

see as I can see, you know, there's other areas where there was
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some rad-brown staining.

However, I don't test avery =single area where there's
gtaining en a knife. I want to make sure that I'm getting a
representative gample of what's thare, but also ieaving sncugsh
evidence in case, you know, there ever needs to be testing in
the future,

Sg I chose to test four areas on thig knife. The
first three are indicated right here. This iz the first --
this one over here is the First sample that I togk, and I
designated that as JB4A.

! Okay. Tell us about your analysis on that spot.

A I noticed that there was hlood at this locarion of
the knifa, and I tested it., and it was positive for blood. And
I actually -- in wy report, I call this the middle of the
blade. I call this the top of the bhlade, and down here waz the
tip of the blade. 5o in the middle area on thip one side of
the knife, it was poaitive for blood, and it was a mixed
profile. Again, it was DNA from more than one person there,

Q Did you compare that mixture profile with the
standard profiles from the defendant and Victeria Whitmarsh?

A I did.

] What did you find?

! In this cage, there was a majar DMA profile. What
that means is that one perscon had che majority of the DNA thac

waa present. You know, maybe cone person had this much DHA --
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and I'm just giving you a visual bere with my hands. Maybhe
somebody else contributed a lictle bic., &0 --

Q And just for the racord, you're holding one hand up
higher cthan tha other hand?

A Exactly. I'm just demonstrating that somebody is
contributing more DNA here. So the major DNA profile was Brian
D'Keefe.

o) And were you able to create a statistical statement
asscciated with that?

A Yes,

9] What was itL?

F.| The staristic associated with that was that the
frequency of that major profile was rarer than 100 times the
Rarth population, or it's rarer than one in 650 billiecn,

Q So you gan without any guestion say that's Brian
Q'Keefe's blood?

) He is the source of thar major profile.

Q Okay. What about 2 minor profile? Were you able to
come to any conclusicns in that regard?

A Yes. And then Victoria Whitmarsh could not be
excluded az the minor cantributor to that mixture.

Q And were you able to reach any etatistical statemente
with that finding?

A Yes. Greater than 32 point 92 percent of individuals

in the population could be excluded as as contributor to that
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mixture.
Q Okay. Now the next area that you looked at, just
kind of following your photograph across --

A Um-hum.

o] ~- from left to right is -- ch --
A Whoa .
Q -- now you're gcrewing up our -- okay.

A I didn't do it.

2 Okay. You want £o try cne more time? There you go.
Ckay. Is that JB487

A That is my JBAE.

Q Okay.

¥ and vou can ses I had swabbed a little stain right
there at the tep of tha blade. And again, it was bloed
positive. And this one was a single source, full male profile.
And the source of that blood was Brian D'Keefe,

Q All right. What about JB4C?

A This sample, I called it the bhottom of the handle. T
was actually eswabbing on the underside of the handle. Again,
this was positive for blood, aad it was a mixture proefile. The
mixture again had a major contributor, and the major
contributor was Brian 0O'Keafe., 2And sgain the statistic was
rarer than one in 650 billion. However in this instance, the
minor profile was so low that I couldn't make a conclusion

about it at all.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIPT

102434




10

Ak

12

13

14

15

ig

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

24

25

154

a Ckay. So aomeone else's DNA waa there, but you can't
tell us anything abcout that person?

A Eecauge it didn't meet that threshold that I had
talked about previcusly.

8] Let me ask you cthis. Mr. Guenther testcified that
there was what he called a patent print on the handle.

A Ckay.

4] Ia that what you ewabbed, or did you swab =omething
elag?

A Na, I did not ewab the print.

Q Okay.

A In my experience, if I see something that locks like
a print, even though I'm not & latent print examiner, 1 know
enough to leave it aleone and leb the latent print examiners
handle that.

Q All right. %ow all three of those samples came from
the same side of the knife?

A a8 and 48 did. 4C is the underpide of the handle.

o Fair encugh, fair encugh. ©Okay. Now I believe on
the other side of the knife, {(indiscernible) the top photo, you
have an area near the tip that you analyzed?

A That's correct.

Q What did you find in that regard?

.Y Again, the staining here con the tip of the knife, it
was pogitive for bload. And I generatad a full famale profile,
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and the gource of that blood wag Victoria Whitmarsh.

] Was there i statistical number associated with the

frequency of Victoria Whitmarsh having been the donor of the

blocod if you will on the tip of that knife?
b3 Yes. Again, it did meet thar identity statement
threshold. It was rarer than cone in 650 billion.
3] S50 can you tell us without any guestion at all
whether that was Victoria Whitmarsh's blood?
A Yes. Yes.
Q Ic was her blood?
A She's the source of the bleogd on the tip of the
knife.
MBE. LALLI: Yeour Honor, that concludes
cross-examination.
THE COURT: All right. HMs. Palm?
M5, PALM: Thank you.
CROSS-EXAMINATION
BY Ms. PALM:
Good afterncon, Ms. Bas.
A Good afternoon.
%] When you -—-
{Pause in proceedings}
MS., PAIM: Court's indulgence.
{Patse in procegedings)

BY MS. PALM:
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Q When yow swabbed the JB42 and -- in State's Exhibit
121, was that -- did that actually lock like s drop cf klocd,
and you swabbed the middle of it out?

A Yes.

4] Okay. So what you see there isn't what it actually
looked like before you swabbed ic, that's after the swakbbing?

-3 That is correct.

Q okay.
A Yes.
Q tkay. And ag to mixtures, you have no idea how two

sources became mixed, do you?

A Ha.

a Ckay. And yocu don't make any statement about that in
your report?

A Mo. I only make statements about what the scurce of
that mixture is,

4] Okay. aAnd the ankle on the stretch pants, that was
the front ankle?

A The front left ankle.

Q kay. And che other portion where you toock thea
cutting from, is that -- what part of the pants was that?

-} The first sample?

Q Yee, the --

A JHBEAT

[n] Yes.
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A Was the front of the pant.

QO Okay. Did you take any from the back side?

A I did not.

n] Okay. 5o those were the only two you took fram the
pants?

n That's correct.

Q Were you able to tell if those pants were contained a
lot of blood at ong polne?

A They did.

Q okay.

A I could see quite a it of blood on them.

Q Skay. Soc but you these to test two different areas,
not becavee that's the only areas that were there?

A That's correct.

Q when a knife -- or a print on a knife is enhanced,
for example the knife in this case, by super glue, ecan you
gtill collect DNA afterwards, or does that compromisze your
ability to?

A In my expsrience, I've never done thac, because it's
net a best practice to do that. Typlcally the items are
examined for DNA first, and then they're moved on to the other
area of the lsboratories.

Q Clkay .

F-4 So I've never done ic.

o] And in the storage of items that are bloody, are
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precautions taken to satore them so that fluids don‘t seep to
other places?

A Typically, samples Chat are wet or have wet fluid on
them should be dried, and then packaged appreopriately so that

it maintains the dryness.

Q Okay.
A Yes.
] And I wasa't sure if I heard -- I note, correct me if

I‘m wrong, thesez swabs, the oral awabs, and the waginal swabs,
and the rectal swabs were all negative for semen?

B That's correct.

c Okay. And the pubic hair brushing, was that negative
for pubic hair also?

A Thera were no pubic hairs prasent in tha pubic hair
brushing. %S¢ 1 ¢id not -- there was nething to test,

c OCkay. &and I just want to talk a lizcle bit about
alleles. You had mentioned that alleles wers pressnt on the
wound that was swabbed. Can you explain how alleles transfer
from one perscn to another.

A It really could be anything. You know, if I had
touched rthis glass, and chen you had touched this glass, both
-- the chances are that both of cur DHA would be present here,

Q Okay.

A 50 how an allele gets there, I can't say, much like

we had just described, I can't say how it gets there.
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o] Qkay. So 1if I touch som=body, chey might have my
all=les on them?

A Yea,

u] Okay. And that would not be uncommon at all?

A Ho, it's quite frequent to see mixtures in a lot of
samples that I test,

4] And the DNA under Ms. Whitmarsh's fingernails was
only her DMAT

A That is correct.

ME. PAIM: Court's indulgence., Pams the witness,
Thank you.
THE COURT: Any redirect?
THE WITHNESS: Ckay.
MR, LALLI: Just cne area, Your Honor.
REDIRECT EXAMTNATICN
BY MR. LALLI:

Q Ms. Bas, with respsct to the DNA profile that you
obtained in State's Exhibit 121 from the tip of the knife, were
thara any other alleles in that sample?

A No.

4] ¥o indicaticn that anyvbody elza's --

& Ch, I'm serry. I'm sorry. Let me rephrase that.
Yes, there were additional alleles below threshold detected on
that (indiscernible}.

G Ckay. On the -- in the tip of the knife?
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A Yes, my sample JBAD.
Q Okay. Thank you wery much.

ME., LALLI: HNothing further,

Ms. BALM: Nothing further, thank you.

THE COURT: Any questions from any af the jurara? We
do have a guestion. (ounsel, approach.

{Off-record bench conference)

THE COURT: Ms. Bas, we have a question from ane of
the jurore. "#Has there DNA skin cells of the defendant under
Victoria's npnails?*

THE WITMESE: Under the fingernails, there was blood,
and that blocd was Victoria Whitmarsh's. I have no way of
knowing if there wac gkin cells under thera. I don't have a
test for skin cells, I just know that there was blood under
her fingernails, apnd that was her blood.

THE COURT: Mr. Lalli, anything follow ug -- any
follow up?

MR. LALLI: Mo, Your Honor,

THE COURT: Ms Palm?

MS., PAIM: No, ¥our HoOnor.

THE COURT: Any follow up questicn by any of the
jurora? 2ll right, no questcions. Thank you, Ms. Bas, for your
teatimony. You are excused.

THE WITNESS: Thank you.

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, we're going to take
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a muick recess hefore our next witneas.

During chils recess, it is your duty nob to converse
amgng yourselves, or with anyone else on any subject connected
with the trial. Or to read, watch or listen Lo any report of
or commentary on the Erial by any person connected with the
trial, or by any medium of irnformation, including without
limitation, newspaper, television, radio, or the internet., You
are not to form or express an opinion on any subject connected
with this case until this matter is submitted to you. We'll
see you back in 5§ or 10 minutes.

{Cutside the presence of the jury)

THE COURT: Now we are gutside the presence of the
jury panel. Mr. Lalli, with this next witness, or your pripr
or gubseguent thereto, are you geing to be admitting the
conviction into evlidence?

MR. LALLI: I am, Your Honor.

THE COURT: Ckay. Well at what point, so I can --
and have you reviewed the limiting instruction thaf Ms. Falm
has propased?

MR, LALLT: I will.

THE COURT: Ckay. Okay. Well give me enough time to
-- you know, if we need to discuss it if you have any
objection. Do you know which cone it is?

MS. PALM: You'we got ic?

THE COURT: Yeah, I have 1t.
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M3. PALM: Okay.
[Pause in proceedings)
{Court recessed at 2:58 p.m. until 3:12 p.m.)
{fouteide the presence of the jury)
THE COURT: &ll right, let's bring the jury in.

MZ. GRAHAM: Are we going to bring Juror 2 im?

ME. LALLI: Oh, yeah. What do you want te do about

the procedural --

M3, CGRMHMM: Are we going to bring Juror & in?

THE COURT: I'm sorry?

MR. LALLY: What about --

MS. GRAHAM: Are we going to bring Juror 2 in?

MS. PALM: Yeah, we should probakly find ocut what
thar procedural thing is.

THE CD&HT: Ch, that's right. <Can you -- Ms.
Graham, if you can catch the marshal.

MS. GHAHAM: Sure.

THE COURT: There wasa a note from one of the jurors.

Maybe he's going to discuse proper technigues for DNA.

MS. GRRHAM: Eringing Juror nomber 2 in.

THE COURT: Sir, you can just have a seat in the
front here. Or just anyplace. Take a2 seat wherever you're
confortable.

JUROR NO. 2: Okay.

THE COURT: All right. &ir, the marshal advilsed me

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT

162

002443




10

11

12

i3

14

i5

16

17

1A

1s

20

21

22

23

24

25

163

that you had a questilion for me regarding some procedural
matker.

JUROR NG, 2: Yeah, I don't know if it's important.
But on witnesa Ed Guenther, I don't remenber any questions
about his notes, and him being a tair representative, like they
do on every other witness.

THE COURT: 59 --

JORCE MO, 2: It didn't aeem like his notes -- he
could use his notes.

THE COURT: OCkay. Bs far as admitring the nates inte
evidence; ie that what you're referring to?

JURCR KO, 2: Well uawually ie's -- and I have no
legal expertise, Bub in every other witness, they've
established -- they've asked the witnesa if the notes are a
fair and accurate representation of theilr reports, and they did
not da that.

THE COURT: Well I don't think it goes so much to
reports. It's been typically the photographs that one of the
attormeys would ask, does this photograph appear to be a fairx
and accurate depiction of the scene of the crime, a car
agcident, whatever it may be, Thart's what you're referring to,
sir?

JUROR HO. 2: No. It seemed like they did that with
the nctes as well.

THE CCURT: Ckay.

ROUGH DRAFT TRANSCRIFT

N02444




10

11

12

13

14

15

1s

17

18

12

20

b g

22

23

24

25

164

JUROR NO. 2: Something to that effecc.

THE COURT: They only de that when semething's
actually being admitted into evidence. And so his notes were
not admicted into evidence.

JURCE NOQ., 2: DOkay.

MR. LALLI: Well, can we approach?

THE COURT: Sure.

MR. LALLI: I think I understand what he's saying.

(Off-record bench conferenca)

THE COURT: Sir, actually I think we do understand
what you're eaying. That matter that bring up is a parc of
evidentiary foundation that you nemed not be concermed about.

JUROR NO. 2: OQkay.

THE COURT: A1l right. Thank you, sir.

JUROR NO. 2: Thank you.

THE COURT: Why don't you go out with the marshal,
and then we'!ll bring you back in together.

JUROR NO. 3: OQkay.

THE COURT: But thank you wvery much, sir.

THE MARSHAL: All rise for the presence of the jury.

{In the presence of the jury)

THE MARSHAL: Fleasa be ssated,

THE COURT: A1l right. State, your next withesae?

ME. LALLI: Youy Hooor, State calls Detective Martin

Wildemann.
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THE COURT: All right.

THE MARSHAI.: Step up to the witness stand. Raise
your right hand, face the clerk, and remain standing.

MARTIN WILDEMANN, STATE'S WITNESS, SWORN

THE CLERX: Pleasze be seated. And statke and spell
yvour name for the record.

THE WITBESS: WMarti wWildemann. W-YX-L-D-E-M-A-N-N.

THE COURT: {Indiscernible}.

ME. LATLT: Your Honor, before I begin this witness,
I intepd to elicit evidence admitted pursuant bto NRS 4B045.
And go I would just ask that tha Courk read the reguisite
admonishment to the jury.

THE COURT: And that was the instructlion you
praviously approved of?

ME. LALLI: Yes, sir.

THE COUGET: All right.

ME. LALLI: Thank you.

THE COURT: Ladies and gentlemen, evidence that Brian
O'Keefe committed the felony cffense of domestic battery or is
alleged to have made statements indicating an intent to harm
Victoria whitmarsh, and evidence that he iz alleged ta have
indicated an ability to kill with a knife by cutting a person
in the sternum area was not received, and my not be conzidered
by you to prove that he is a person of bad character, or to

prove that he has a propensity to commit any Crime,
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Such evidence waz received, and may be considered by

you only for the limited purpese of determining the issue of
whathar or not Brian O'Keefe had a mobive or incent to commit
the crime occurred. Heither the felony conviction nor other
acts if believed necessarily establish procf of motive or
intent to commit the crime charged. You must weigh this
evidance in the same mapner as you deo all cther evidence."
Thank you, Mr. Lalli.
MR. LALLI: Thank you, Your Honor,
DIRECT EXAMINATION

BY MR. LALLI:

o Zir, can you please tell gur jury hHow you're
employed?

A I'm a detective with the Las Vegas Metropolitan
Folice Departuent.

Q Do you have a specific assigoment within Mecro?

A I am currently assigned to homicide for the last
eight and-a-helf years.

3] How long total have you been with Metro?

A Almost 23 years.

4] In the -- iz it almoat eight years, or Jjust over
eight yeare in homicide?

A Almogt fine years, coming up on nine,

4 Ckay. In the almost nine yeara that you'wve been a

homicide detective, ¢an you glve us a sense of the number of
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cases that you've investigated?

F:X I would estimate well over 200 cases.

L] And approximately how many of chosze involve stabbing?

& I would say roughly 25 percent of them.

Q Ckay. Now Detective Wildemann, I want to direct your
attention to November, actually probably the &th of Z008. Werse
you assigned the investigation of a homicide on that early
moriiing?

A Yea, I was.

C Where waa the homicide located?

A It was at an apartment complex on EL Pargue. I'm not
exactly sure of the exact numbers.

Q 50017
5001 is ik, yesa.

Ckay. A&And do you travel to that location --

oo P

Yes.
-- for a crime?
Yag, I leave my house, and travel directly there.

Okay. Is there a person in custody when you arrive?

¥ oo » O

Yes,

Who ia that?

Brian 0O'Keefe.

Do you sea Mr. O'¥eefe in the courtroom?

Yeas, I do.

(= S R = R S

Can you please point to him and identify something
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he's wearing today?
A He's wearing & green sports jacket, seated at the
defense table.
MR, LAILT: Your Honor, may the record reflect the
witness has identified the defendant?
THE COURT: Yesa, it will,
BY MR. LALLI:
] Did I ask you, or were you asked to ragearch whather

the defendant had ever heen convicted of an cffense of domestic
battery?
A ¥es.
Q Did you da that?
A Yes.
MR. LALLI: May I approach the witnessg?
THE COURT: Yes.
BY MR. LALLI:
Q Detective Wildemann, does that appear to be a
judgment of conwviction?
A Yes, sir.
Q Ckay. ©&Bnd is that marked am State's proposed Exhibit
mumber 133 for identification purposea? Down at the botbom.
A Qh, I'm sarry. Yes.
L okay .
MR. LALET: Your Honor, move For the admission of

State's proposed 133.
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